
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

PUBLIC AGENDA 
Thursday, June 17, 2021 

	
Time: 8:30 a.m. 

Non-Public Session: 8:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. 
Public Meeting to commence at 9:00 a.m. 

Place: 55 International Drive - Board Conference Room 
Watch Meeting Via Live Stream: https://townhallstreams.com/towns/pease_dev_nh  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING 

AGENDA 

I. 	Call to Order: 

H. 	Non-public Session *: (Parker) 

III. 	Vote of Confidentiality *: (Lamson) 

1V. 	Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors' Meeting of May 20, 2021 * (Levesque) 

V. 	Public Comment: 

VI. 	Old Business: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	Lonza Biologics, Inc. — Emergency Generator * (Fournier) 

VII. Finance: 
A. 	Executive Summary * 

B. 	Reports: 
1. FY2021 Financial Report for the Ten Month Period Ending April 30, 2021 * 
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending February 28, 2022 * 

C. 	Approvals: 
1. Proposed FY 2022 Operating Budget and FY 2023-FY2025 Forecast * (Ferrini) 
2. Release of the Economic Development Administration's ("EDA") Federal Interest in 

the EDA Revolving Loan Fund * (Anderson) 

VIII. Licenses / ROEs / Easements / Rights of Way: 
A. 	Report: * 

1. 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air) — Right of Entry, 53 Exeter Street 

1 



IX. 	Leases: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. Port City Air — 44 Durham Street Building Addition (Request for Bump Out) * 
(Parker) 

2. 68 New Hampshire Avenue — Consent to Lease Assignment and Approval of Lease 
Amendment * (Fournier) 

X. 	Contract: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	LeaseQuery — Property Management Software * (Anderson) 

XI. 	Signs: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	Temporary Banner Signs — 14 Manchester Square * (Levesque) 

XII. Executive Director: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Golf Course Operations 
2. Airport Operations 

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 
c) Noise Line Report 

(i) 	May 2021 * 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. Bills for Legal Services * (Ferrini) 
2. 75 NH, LLC — Request for Tree Removal at 85 New Hampshire Avenue * (Fournier) 
3. Fuel Flowage Fee * (Lamson) 

XIII. Division of Ports and Harbors: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of April 14, 2021 * 
2. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2021 * 
3. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Flanders to Martell * 
4. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Flanigan to Methot * 

B. 	Approval: 
1. 	Cianbro Corporation — Right of Entry Extension * (Anderson) 

XIV. New Business: 

XV. Special Event: 

NH ANG Air Show 	 September 11 t1  & 12 th , 2021 

2 



XVI. Upcoming Meetings: 

Port Committee 	 July 1, 2021 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Board of Directors 	 August 19, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

XVII. Directors' Comments: 

XVIII. Adjournment: 

XIX. Press Questions: 

• Related Materials Attached 
** 	Related Materials Previously Sent 
*** 	Related Materials will be provided under separate cover 
• Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting 
NE 	Confidential Materials 

PABOARDMTMAGENDAS - Current\Agenda June 17, 2021 - PUBL1C.docx 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONALINTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91-A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that "If a 

member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session, violates 

this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the objection, 

the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue to participate 

in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A 8, IV or V. Upon such request, the public body shall 

record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in nonpublic session, the 

objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall include only the members 

name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a reference to the provision of RSA 

91-A:3, II, that was the basis for the discussion." 

MOTION  

Director Parker: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non- 

public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing: 

1. Sale or Lease of Real or Personal Property [RSA 91 -A:3, II (d)]; and 

2. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 

91 -A:3, II (I)]. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Non-Public Lease - Sale of Property 6-1 7-21 .docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



10-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91 -A:3, the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the divulgence of 

information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of 

its June 17, 2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and the 

consideration of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if 

disclosed publically, would render the proposed actions ineffective and 

further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held confidential until, 

in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid 

circumstances no longer apply. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \Confidentiality 6-17-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

I make a motion to approve the minutes of the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors meeting dated Thursday, May 20, 2021. 

N \RESOLVES \2021 \Approval of Minutes 6-17-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



1 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

Thursday, May 20, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING 
MINUTES 

Due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, members of the public were encouraged to 
attend this meeting remotely utilizing the Zoom meeting information, or video live stream 
options. All in-person meeting attendees were required to observe appropriate social 
distancing, and are required to wear face coverings, while in the Pease Development 
Authority building. Due to room size constraints there was a limit on the total number of 
people in the meeting room at one time; the PDA respectfully asked attendees to exit the 
meeting room if they had no additional business. Face coverings were available for those who 
needed them. The meeting was video I audio recorded. 

Presiding: 	Kevin H. Smith, Chairman 
Present: 	 Erik Anderson; Thomas Ferrini; Steve Fournier; Margaret F. Lamson; Neil 

Levesque and Susan Parker 
Attending: 	Paul E. Brean, Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Executive Director; 

Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director /General Counsel; Maria Stowell 
Engineering Manager; Iry Canner, Finance Director; Suzy Anzalone, Assistant 
Finance Director; Geno Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") 
Director; Scott DeVito, Pease Golf Course General Manager; Greg 
Siegenthaler PDA, IT Director and Raeline A. O'Neil, Legal Executive 
Assistant. • 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order: 

Chairman Smith ("Smith") called the meeting to order at 8:35  a.m. 

II. Non-public Session: 

Director Anderson moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non-public session pursuant to NH RSA 
91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing: 

1. Sale or Lease of Real or Personal Property [RSA 91-A:3, II (d)]; and 
2. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 91-A:3, II 

(1)1. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried.  

The non-public discussions commenced at 8:36 a.m. via Zoom. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



2 

Director Fournier moved  the motion  and Director Ferrini seconded  that the Board of 
Directors return public session at 9:23  a.m. 

Ill. 	Vote of Confidentiality: 

Director Parker moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that it he resolved, 
pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 
determines that the divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public 
session of its May 20, 2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and the consideration 
of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if disclosed publically, would render the 
proposed actions ineffective and further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held 
confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid 
circumstances no longer apply. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried.  

Smith took a moment to recognize this meetint2, was the first meeting held that Peter Loughlin 
(Loughlin - ) had not been on the Board; Loughlin provided an invaluable service as a member of the 
Board for 31 years and also served on the Redevelopment Commission. Loughlin was instrumental 
in helping Pease become one of the most successful BRAC closures in the country. Loughlin will be 
missed and the Board will formally and appropriately thank Loughlin for his many years of service 
later this summer. 

Smith also welcomed Susan Parker who is the combined Board member representing the 
Towns of Newington and Greenland. Parker's appointment to the Board is with experience in the 
non-profit and governmental sectors, with an expertise in public / private partnerships. 

Election of the Vice-Chair and Committee Appointments  

	

1. 	Elections (Vice-Chair) 

A. 	Vice-Chair: 
Director Anderson moved the motion  and Director Fournier seconded that Director 

Levesque be elected as Vice-Chairman  of the Pease Development Authority. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by roll call (6-0) vote for; motion carried. 
Levesque abstained from voting. 

	

2. 	Committee Appointments 

PDA COMMITTEE LISTING — EFFECTIVE May 20, 2021 (UPDATED) 

Standing Committees  

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



Executive Committee  
Kevin H. Smith, Chair 
Neil Levesque, Vice Chairman 
Thomas G. Ferrini, Treasurer 
Staff Contact: Brean/Blenkinsop 

Finance Committee  
Thomas 0. Ferrini, Chair (Treasurer) 
Margaret Lamson 
Neil Levesque 
Staff Contact: Brean/Canner 

Marketing and Economic Development 
Committee 
Thomas G. Ferrini, Chair 
Neil Levesque 
Susan Parker 
Staff Contact: Brean 

Zoning Adjustment & Appeals Committee 
Steve Fournier, Chair 
Susan Parker 
Kevin H. Smith 
Staff Contact: Blenkinsop/Stowell 

Airport Committee  
Kevin H. Smith, Chair 
Steve Fournier 
Margaret Lamson 
Staff Contact: Brean/Stowell 

Ad Hoc Advisory Committees 

Capital Improvement and 
Land Planning Committee  
Steve Fournier, Chair 
Thomas G. Ferrini 
Neil Levesque 
Staff Contact: Blenkinsop/Stowell 

Golf Committee  
Erik Anderson, Chair 
Thomas G. Ferrini 
Steve Fournier 
Staff Contact: Brean/DeVito 

Audit Committee  
Thomas 0. Ferrini, Chair 
Kevin Smith 
Erik Anderson 
Staff Contact: Canner 

Transportation Management Committee 
Margaret Lamson, Chair 
Erik Anderson 
Steve Fournier 
Staff Contact: Stowell 

Port Committee  
Neil Levesque, Chair 
Steve Fournier 
Erik Anderson 
Ex Officio: Chair DPH Advisory Council 
Staff Contact: Brean/Marconi 

Legal Bill Review  
Kevin H. Smith, Chair 
Thomas G. Ferrini 
Erik Anderson 
Staff Contact: Blenkinsop 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



4 

IV. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors' Meeting of April 15, 2021 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Ferrini seconded  to approve the minutes 
of the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors meeting dated Thursday, April 15, 
2021. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

V. Public Comment: 

George Bald of Somersworth, NH asked to address the Board of Directors ("Board") 
concerning Loughlin. Loughlin has done a tremendous job for the Pease organization. From 1990 
to roughly 1995 there wasn't a lot going on at the Tradeport and the City of Portsmouth ("COP") 
had a great deal of difficulty clue to the closure of the Air Force ("AP) base due to the transfer of 
personnel and their families (students left school system and funding depleted). During this time 
there was tremendous pressure on the Board to get something going; the difficultly had been turning 
a military base into a public establishment for the benefit of the local citizenry. It would have been 
easy for the Board to get off track from its focus on establishing good businesses and the 
development of the airport. The Board could have succumbed to the pressure to put malls at the 
base. but the Board stood its ground and determination to create a location with great jobs and good 
opportunities. Bald also indicated when he worked at PDA, he thought Loughlin was a stickler with 
his concerns requiring properties to look good; Loughlin's determination to require properties to 
provide landscaping and planting information has continued to make a difference on all properties 
at Pease and it truly has made a difference. Bald indicated when speaking to counterparts in Maine 
and Vermont, he continuously hears how good the Tradeport looks. Often when you have a large 
project such as the Tradeport there are differing opinions on how things should go and Loughlin 
\ vas always mindful of everyone's voices being heard and that a good job would always be done. 
Bald indicated that NBC did a story on the Tradeport when there were discussions of another round 
of base closures. Bald indicated that Loughlin deserves a lot of credit for his focus, determination 
and commitment to the Tradeport. Bald stated while he felt bad that Parker would be following in 
Loughlin's footsteps, he believes after reviewing her resume that Greenland and Newington have 
done an excellent job with its appointment. Bald indicated that Loughlin is a remarkable man who 
has left his footprint on the Tradeport. Lastly, Bald indicated that there are not 10,000 people who 
work at the Tradeport, rather there are 10,000 families that are impacted by what goes on at the 
Tradeport. 

Bald indicated that the State of NH invested $25 million dollars into the Tradeport in the 
mid-90s which was needed to "prime the pump". The money has been repaid to the State, 
conversely the State continues to receive payment through taxes and the citizens of NB should not 
lose site of this. Bald indicated while he has sat on the Board and knows that decisions are not 
always easy, he believes that the Tradeport is on a continued trajectory of growth. Bald indicated 
he was on the panel who assisted in the hiring of the Airport Director, now Executive Director, Paul 
Brean ("Brean") and this has been an excellent decision. Bald thanked the Board for allowing him 
the time to speak. 

Andrea Amico ( -Amico") spoke to the fact that her family (husband and children) have been 
directly impacted by HAS contamination at the Tradeport and she actively participates with a 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



5 

group that advocates for a PFAS health study at Pease and the impact on an individual's health. 
Amico indicated she is a co-founder of a community action group called "Testing at Pease" that 
formed in 2015 to look into the exposure of PFAS at the Tradeport. In November of 2019, approval 
was provided for a first in the nation PFAS health study by a branch of the CDC. Currently there 
are a combined 1,575 participants in the Seacoast community registered for the study (1,000 
exposed adults, 350 exposed kids and 100 unexposed adults and 175 unexposed kids). When the 
registration commenced in 2019 there was a strong turnout; however, due to COVID the registration 
has commenced with the trickle of registrations in October of 2020. Last month Amico worked in 
collaboration with Councilor Cliff Lazenby to request permission from the Portsmouth City Council 
to place eighty, 18" x 24" lawn signs in high traffic areas around the City in order to help raise 
awareness (the signs were approved by the City Council to be placed throughout the City for three 
months). Amico requested from the Board to be allowed to place signs in highly visible locations 
throughout the Tradeport. Amico indicated that as of May 19 th , the study had recruited 52% of the 
required adults and 21% of the children required for the study. Amico concluded by indicating that 
while the signs are working, there is still a long way to go. 

Smith thanked Amico for her advocacy on this serious issue which affects not only 
Portsmouth but a lot of communities. Smith asked if the request needed Board approval; Deputy 
Director/General Counsel Anthony Blenkinsop indicated approval would be needed and there was 
an approval within the current agenda that would be addressing this sign request. 

VI. 	Old Business: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. 	30 New Hampshire Avenue — Authorization to enter new lease with 
Spyglass, LLC 

Director Levesque moved the motion  and Director Anderson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby: 

(1) authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to enter into a 
new direct Lease Agreement with Spyglass Development, LLC concerning 30 
New Hampshire Avenue; and 

(2) authorizes and approves such other action(s) and the execution of such other 
document(s) as the Executive Director, PDA General Counsel, and the 
Engineering Manager deem necessary or advisable to facilitate the full 
implementation of the transaction contemplated; 

all on substantially the same terms and conditions as previously approved by this Board and 
with such modifications as have been set forth in the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, 
Executive Director, dated May 13,2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



6 

VII. 	External Audit: 

A. 	Report: 
1. 	Berry Dunn FY 2021 Audit 

Representatives from Berry Dunn, Renee Bishop ( - Bishop"), Engagement Principal, and 
Katie Balukas ( - Balukas"), audit manager for the engagement, walked the Board through a 
presentation regarding the external audit. Bishop indicated there are required audit communications 
to be provided to PDA, both at the commencement and conclusion of the audit. One of these 
communications is the difference between management versus auditor responsibilities. 
Management is responsible for the fair and presentation of the financial statements and the design 
and implementation of the maintenance of effective internal controls and the auditors cannot be a 
component of internal controls. The auditors' responsibilities are to express an opinion on whether 
the financial statements are fairly presented in all materials respect (not all transactions are tested) 
and do not express an opinion on the required supplementation information that is also included 
within the financial statements, Bishop spoke to a snapshot which provides a financial picture of 
the Authority from last years financial statements. While the auditors do consider internal controls. 
they do not express an opinion on internal controls in conjunction with the federal fund audit, Berry 
Dunn does some passing of internal controls relative to the programs for a federal funds audit, At 
the conclusion of the audit, Berry Dunn will communicate a qualitative aspect of accounting 
practices and any significant adjustments (list of large and small) in order to see when all added up 
they become material; also identify any internal controls which may be considered to be material 
weaknesses or sufficient deficiencies these will also be communicated as well. Regarding the 
federal fund compliant audit, last year this was delayed due to the CARES Act funding; needed to 
wait for guidance and while more funding was received this year, does not believe there will be a 
delay. Bishop did inform the Board that last year's federal funds audit was a clean audit and there 
were no findings. 

Balukas spoke to the various reviews performed by auditors (he.; cash / cash flow; banking 
institutions; accounts payable / receivable etc.) and the proper recording of the various actions into 
the proper periods. Balukas further indicated various liabilities (i.e.; vacation / sick pools; pension 
liability; employee benefits, retirement etc.); she also spoke to the receipt of federal funds as well as 
the new BUILD grant received this year and the review of compliance of federal funds and the 
spending of same, Balukas stated regarding this audit, it is anticipated there will be a review of 
both the Airport Improvement Projects and the Revolving Loan Funds. Balukas spoke of additional 
testing and further indicated during previous audits there have been extensive reviews of PDA 
leases and review or the controls on how the lease is set up in the system as well as the review of 
PDA's payroll conversion a few years ago. Further there will be a review of cash receipts from the 
Division of Ports and Harbors and the collection thereof, as well as the Grill 28 cash receipts and 
the calculation of the funds received by PDA for this concession. 

Balukas indicated that the interim work of the audit will commence on June 13t h  with a 
preliminary internal walk through and risk assessment and it is at this time Berry Dunn will do a 
bulk of its compliance testing for the federal funds' audit. Last year a physical inventory audit was 
performed via Zoom and this will be managed in the same manner this year as Berry Dunn 
continues to operate under travel restrictions that may prohibit them from coming out on June 30th. 
How-ever, will be in contact with management in August to further discuss additional deadlines 
regarding the audit and various testing. During the week of August 30 th , the year-end field work 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



7 

will be performed as well as substantial balance sheet testing and financial statement review 
prepared by management. During this time they will complete any procedures related to the 
Uniform Guidance Reports and federal funds audit; and a draft report will be provided to 
management no later than September 30 th  with the final report being provided by October 12 th  and 
will issue the reports after acceptance by the Board. As Bishop mentioned, the Uniform Guidance / 
Federal Funds had been delayed and was not offered at the October meeting and it is hoped that 
guidance is received before Christmas this year (this was when it came out last year) which is the 
only caveat to provide at this time as it is out of Berry Dunn's control as that is the guidance they 
have to follow. 

Balukas spoke to the CARES Act funding of last year being $1.6 million and Berry Dunn 
being aware that $122,000 is still available for this current year. Emerging issues such as the 
varying GASB requirements which will occur over the upcoming months and over the next several 
years regarding implementation requirements, have been discussed with management. Balukas 
spoke of a couple topics for discussion regarding the upcoming 2021 audit, those being whether 
there is anything that Berry Dunn should be aware of regarding to 2021 results (i.e.; staffing 
changes; policy changes etc.) that could potentially impact the audit. 

Bishop concluded the presentation to indicate that should the Board have any questions, 
Berry Dunn would be happy to provide responses to address questions or concerns. 

VIII. Finance: 

A. 	Executive Summary 
Canner stated the Executive Summary starts with the nine month cash flow summary 

bringing PDA three quarters of the way through the year. Previously discussed trends have held 
which indicate overall revenues being slightly below budget by roughly 1%. COVID 19 has 
impacted PDA revenues (i.e.; pay-for-parking and fuel flowage), as well as the incremental costs in 
preparing to operate under a safe environment. Canner further indicated that operating expenses are 
below budget being attributed to underruns in maintenance, legal, utilities as well as the cost of fuel 
at Portsmouth Fish Pier ("PFP") as they are undergoing continued renovations there. Therefore, net 
revenues against operating expenses shows that PDA is $1.2 above budget meaning the net revenue 
goes to help offset debt repayments. Canner also indicated this net revenue has allowed PDA to not 
to have to draw down monies as anticipated from its Revolving Loan Fund [sic Revolving Line of 
Credit] with Provident Bank; as of the 20 th  PDA has outstanding debt of $250,000. 

Canner spoke of a spike of approximately $6.5 million that will taper down by the end of 
January with probably very little debt outstanding at that time. Last month had the benefit of 
looking at the proposed Capital Improvement Plan over the next several years and this will be 
brought back for further review; and next month there will be a presentation to the Finance 
Committee on June 14' 1' regarding the 0 & M Budget for FY22 which ties in both the Capital and 0 
& M budgets. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



8 

B. 	Reports: 
1. 	FY2021 Financial Report for the Nine Month Period Ending March 31, 

2021 
Canner stated that the operating revenue budget is approximately 1.1% below budget with a 

primary indicator of reduction of fuel sales directly related to the PFP renovations, and concession 
revenues (Grill 28) which have been impacted due to COVID 19. Further, Canner informed the 
Board that rental of facilities represents 65% of total revenues. Additionally, the impact of COVED 
has played a role regarding the pay-for-parking at the airport and fuel flowage fees with underruns of 
about 40%. The operating expenses have also seen underruns in personnel services, stalling 
(currently at 129 — but there are some open positions which indicate that payroll is down 3.1 %). 
Lamson asked Canner about the organization chart; Canner indicated there are four positions open 
and the operating position may be deferred to the future as have been able to maintain a good handle 
on open positions (i.e.; Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH"), Legal, Airport Operations). Canner 
further indicated that operating expenses are below budget being attributed to underruns in 
maintenance, legal, utilities and fuel revenues. Canner further informed the Board of the additional 
CARES funding which will be received in the amount of $1.4 million dollars. this will help to offset 
the need to go into the Revolving Loan Fund [sic Revolving Line of Credit]. Canner provided the 
Board with additional in depth detail regarding the various line items contained within the budget; 
also spoke of an electricity contract to purchase power that allows PDA to purchase power fairly 
cheaply which will expire next year. Canner indicated there will be a need in the near future to 
develop an RFP process for the purchase of electricity where pricing can be locked in now for the 
future. 

Canner spoke of capital expenditures in the amount of $22 million with contributing capital 
of over $13 million requiring the need to draw into the Revolving Line of Credit ("RLOC"); Canner 
reminded the Board that the RLOC is $15 million through Provident Bank which is used to offset the 
timing differences associated with the timing of federal grant monies for projects. 

Canner spoke to the various business units, the various underruns and overall revenues; spoke 
to the effects the underruns as pertaining to the overall budget. 

Concerning enplanements, Canner informed the Board that PSM is slightly lower than last 
year at 15,000. Regarding Skyhaven, the Board was informed that the consistency of additional fuel 
sales has provided excess revenue; cumulatively, the net cash flow and impact fees is about $1.7 
million which represents money PDA has absorbed since 2009 to improve operations at Skyhaven. 
Canner also informed the Board that Skyhaven is currently making money due to increase fuel sales 
and hangar space. 

The Gott-  course has been open since March, there has been a variance of about 4.7% since 
last year at this time which also includes the Grill 28 sales; conversely the simulator revenues are up 
by about 20.5% for indoor play. Canner indicated that there were over 62,000 rounds of golf played 
last season and the golf course has responded accordingly due to COVID with necessary adjustments 
required by following CDC guidance and are ready for the coming season. 

Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") unrestricted funds shows an impact of fuel sales 
being underrun due to the continued construction at the PFP but an excess revenue over expenses has 
been observed by the allocation through the various marinas and Market Street. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



2. 	Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending January 31, 
2022 

Canner spoke of the RLOC and a spike in the July time period primarily due to the 
remaining obligations PDA has with the runway and terminal. 

Brean wanted to bring to the Board's attention that Finance has not factored in the sale of 
the property at 30 NH ($1.75 million) as PDA has not yet received the formal release; Canner 
affirmed this statement and further indicated the CARES Act monies of $1.4 million has been added 
into the cash flow. Parker asked for confirmation that the CARES Act money does not need to be 
paid back; Canner affirmed and further indicated that PDA is required to provide documentation on 
how the money was spent and typically it has been employee related. Parker asked how the money 
is received; Canner indicated the federal government sends it to the State of New Hampshire who 
then wires it to Provident Bank for deposit into the PDA account. 

Canner indicated under "use of funds" the heavy draft continues to be capital expenditures 
($11 million). Further he stated the rent money will be going towards finishing the runway and the 
purchase of snow removal equipment; in the non-grant area there is still much to be paid under the 
terminal and we are in good standing as the projections continue to be consistent and they are 
tightly managed. Canner indicated the need to go into the RLOC in the amount of $1.2 million 
regarding the grant funds which does include CARES money. Lamson asked if there would be 
additional work performed on the runway; Brean indicated he will speak to this information during 
the airport report to the Board. The Board was informed that on or about June 1st, PDA will make a 
payment to the City of Portsmouth for the Municipal Services Fee ("MSF"). 

Canner stated that the RLOC is $15 million and as of the end of April there was $1 million 
outstanding with the interest rates staying flat at approximately 2.9%. 

Regarding DPH's unrestricted funds are very consistent with previous presentations and the 
cash line is typical as it receives a majority of its income related to mooring fees received in January 
and February which tapers down with the cycle remaining consistent. 

IX. 	Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way: 

A. 	Reports: 
Brean indicated that in accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, 

Approval and Execution of License Agreements," PDA entered into the following Rights-of-Entries 
("ROE"): 

1. 	PROCON LLC — Right of Entry at the corner of Hampton Street and 
Aviation Avenue (11 & 21 Hampton Street) 

Entered a ROE with PROCON LLC for the premises at 11 & 21 Hampton Street for the 
purpose of Site Inspection Purposes through July 31, 2021. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



10 

2. Lonza Biologic — Right of Entry at the corner of Corporate Drive and 
Goose Bay Drive (30 Corporate Drive) 

Entered into a ROE with Lonza Biologics, inc. for the premises at 30 Corporate Drive for 
the purpose of Site Inspection Purposes through July 30, 2021. 

3. 1895 Films — Right of Entry at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease 
Entered into a ROE with 1895 Films for the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease for the 

purpose of photographing and recording certain scenes in connection with a program tentatively 
title -Shock Does: Abduction of Betty and Barney Hill" through May 6, 2021. Smith further 
indicated that Betty and Barney Hill is the first reported alien abduction in the United States, and 
happened here in New Hampshire. 

4. Unitil — Right of Entry for property near 16 Pease Boulevard 
Entered into a ROE with Unitil for the premises near Spaulding Turnpike & 16 Pease 

Boulevard for the purpose of Site Inspection Purposes through July 30, 2021. 

5. AeroClave, LLC — Right of Entry Extension (Hangar 227) 
Entered into a ROE with AeroClave for Hangar 227 located at 14 Aviation Avenue for the 

purpose of extended its original term through June 10, 2021. 

6. City of Portsmouth — Right of Entry at North Apron for Emergency 
Vehicle Operators Training 

Entered into a ROE with the City of Portsmouth for the use of the North Apron for the purpose 
of Emergency Vehicle Operator's Training Course from September 15, 2021 through October I, 
701.. 

X. 	Leases: 

A. Reports: 
1. 	Lonza Biologics — 101 International Drive (Appraisal proposal regarding 

PDA owned portion of building related to potential sale as part of new 
Lonza lease) 

Blenkinsop indicated that during discussions for the Iron Parcel lease agreement, Lonza has 
proposed to purchase that portion of the Lonza building still owned by PDA. Therefore, an 
appraisal is required to determine fair market value and the cost would be split between PDA and 
Lonza. Parker asked of the team doing the appraisal and whether there would be any federal money 
involved in the transaction or would this be on the private side. Brean indicated it would not be 
federal funds used and the appraisal company did a similar appraisal a number of years ago so there 
is institutional knowledge. Parker brought item 13 in the appraisers report to the Board's attention 
to indicate PDA needs to be mindful when an appraisal is done as it is necessary to be aware of 
what the ADA issues are. 

B. Approvals: 
1. 	Extension of the Food and Beverage Service Concession Agreement with 

Galley Hatch Restaurant, Inc. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



11 

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive 
Director to enter into an amendment of the Food and Beverage Service Concession Agreement 
with Galley Hatch Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Grill 28 to extend the term of the agreement to 
October 31, 2023; all in accordance with the memo from Executive Director Paul E. Brean 
dated May 11, 2021. 

Discussion: Anderson inquired of that portion of the memo which references the "long term 
lease of the golf course..." and is perplexed the agreement would have anything to do with a long 
term lease. Brean indicated the desire for transparency for prior to the pandemic there were 
preliminary discussions regarding a long-term lease and PDA wanted to identify that in the memo. 
Anderson asked for confirmation regarding the long-term; Brean affirmed the desire to be transparent 
regarding a potential long-term lease to the Board on its decision whether to extend this option. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

2. 	Lonza Conceptual Site Plan Approval and Lot Line Adjustment (30 
Corporate Drive) 

Director Ferrini moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors approves the attached concept plan and lot line 
adjustment plan for Lonza Biologics, Inc. ("Lonza"), for a 200 space surface parking lot on 
2.5 acres of land at 30 Corporate Drive; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated May 12, 
2021. 

Discussion:  Lamson thanked Maria Stowell ("Stowell") who outlined all the pertinent 
information regarding parking. 

Parker also thanked Stowell for the outstanding work and further spoke to the paragraph 
entitled "Traffic". While Lonza is successful at what it does and it has done a great deal in the world 
associated with science, being a representative to both Greenland and Newington the traffic issues 
are a testimony to PDA's success. In 2018, Greenland brought in an outside planner to work with its 
Planning Committee; studies have been set up to gain an understanding of liability and traffic tie ups 
on Route 33 (from the Portsmouth line to Stratham). Parker indicated that there are three choke points 
and one specific study shows a DOT traffic Level of Service (LOS) the Greenland/Bayside 
Intersection is rated at "E" observed during two time periods during the day. From this information 
Greenland is developing a plan which will need to be implemented and tabling here that Lonza also 
understand that with additional proposed additions, additional traffic studies will be required. Parker 
stated she will speak with PDA staff to discuss what the planning numbers are and she would transfer 
that information to the proper individuals in Greenland. 

Lamson indicated during the early developmental stages at the Tradeport, it was a mandate 
from the State for job creation; Parker indicated an understanding of the need for jobs and is very pro-
growth. A key policy area that NH & ME became known for was about building jobs, in this case 
for people with disabilities who are able to work in the competitive labor force and supportive labor 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



12 

force. Parker indicated that planning is a wonderful field and there is a need to work with numbers 
that are realistic. 

Smith asked if Parker was making a motion to table; Parker indicated she was not, just a point 
of information and where this is her first meeting she wanted to mention Greenland's justified 
preoccupation with the traffic on the Route 33 corridor. 

Stowell mentioned that while they are not currently in the room, Patrick Crimmins from Lonza 
is attending via Zoom; Smith asked Parker to provide Stowell with the information referenced during 
her discussions. 

Anderson indicated this adds 2.5 acres of land not to the existing lease but to the prospective 
lease of the Lonza expansion and asked when it is anticipated the lease would be signed. Brean 
indicated it is currently in negotiations; Blenkinsop indicated he was hopeful to have a draft of the 
lease to Lonza by the end of the week with discussions over the next month or two, with finalization 
over the summer as it needs to be in place by October ls t . Blenkinsop indicated that the 2.5 acres 
would be rolled into the new Iron Parcel lease for the entire facility. Anderson indicated that a lease 
would have additional impacts to others, such as the Waste Water Treatment Facility of COP. Brean 
indicated that he has been informed that negotiations between the City and Lonza on that topic are 
going very well. 

Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

XI. 	Contracts: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. 	ALP Grant for Snow Removal Equipment - PSM 

Director Levesque moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director 
to: 

(1) accept on behalf of the PDA a Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") Grant 
Offer of AIP funding up to $1,000,802, for snow removal equipment for 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM); 

(2) accept from New Hampshire Department of Transportation matching funds up 
to $50,040.10; 

(3) expend PDA funds up to S50,040.10; 
(4) award a contract to Oshkosh, Inc. to purchase a carrier vehicle with integrated 

high rotary plow for the price of 5601,190; 
(5) award a contract to M-B Companies to purchase a carrier vehicle with plow and 

spreader for the price of S376,538; 
(6) append the Jacobs on-call Master Contract to include the work described and 

make appropriate payments; and 
(7) execute any and all documents necessary to receive funds and procure the snow 

removal equipment. 
all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager —

Engineering, dated May 10, 2021. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



13 

Discussion:  Anderson asked for an explanation of the $17,748 referenced in Stowell's memo 
regarding Jacobs; Brean indicated that the design spec in the Request for Proposal is funded in part 
by the FAA grant and PDA did have a line item that needed to be rebid and Stowell accounted for 
$2,252 being paid by PDA (in the rebid the majority of the Jacobs fee is covered by the FAA). Stowell 
indicated the rebid was due to the fact that only one bid was received and it was deemed not 
competitive so went back and changed specs to give a little more leeway. Jacobs has had to perform 
justifications that the equipment is necessary, do the grant administrative work to put the application 
together and requests for reimbursements. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

2. AIP Grant for the Acquisition of an Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
("ARFF") Vehicle 

Director Parker moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and accepts FAA Airport 
Improvement Project ("AIP") funds on behalf of the New Hampshire Department of 
Transportation, Bureau of Aeronautics and New Hampshire Department of Safety, for the 
acquisition of an Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting ("ARFF") Vehicle with a projected cost of 
$860,100, with FAA and NHDOT providing all project funding, for the ARFF Facility in 
Concord, NI-I; all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E. -
Engineering Manager, dated May 5, 2021. 

Discussion: Anderson asked if he understood correctly that PDA would be sponsoring this 
piece of equipment for FAA funding which would be located in Concord; Brean indicated PDA is 
acting as a gateway for the funding mechanism. Brean indicated that the State of NI-[ does not have 
another AIP eligible airport so NH Division of Aeronautics uses Pease to get the funding (for 
clarification this is a facility in Concord that supports all of NH's Airports' Fire Fighting Training). 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

3. Underwood Engineering — Corporate Drive drainage 

Director Ferrini moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that The Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director 
to: 

(1) Enter into a contract with the City of Portsmouth and Underwood Engineers for 
Phase 1 Corporate Drive Outfall Improvements design, and in so doing waive the 
Board's Consultant Selection Process as: a) the City utilized a similar process to 
select Underwood Engineers; and b) Underwood is under contract with the City 
to provide the design for the remainder of the Corporate Drive project; 

(2) Spend up to $75,300 for Underwood Engineers to provide Drainage Outfall 
design services; 

(3) Submit a wetland permit application to NtIDES for improving drainage outfalls 
with a permit fee estimated to be $20,000+/-; and, 

(4) Allocate $20,000 for PFAS treatment, if required; 
all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager — 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



14 

Engineering, dated May 12, 2021. 

Discussion:  Blenkinsop reminded the Chairman of the need to do a roll call vote where PDA 
is waiving a selection process. 

Anderson indicated that the Port Advisory Council ("PAC") / DPI-I had discussions with DES 
and legislation was passed which restricted a wetlands application fee to S10,000 and wondered if it 
would he beneficial for PDA to have a similar conversation regarding in an effort to bring down the 
application fees. Brean stated that discussions could he held with the counterparts in Concord. Wean 
further stated that the amounts contained in items (3) and (4) are estimates as Stowell was planning 
ahead so that the project does not become stalled. 

Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous roll call  vote for; motion carried.  

4. 	Honeywell - Replacement of the Controller Boards for the Terminal's 
Access Control System 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Parker seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive 
Director to enter into a contract with Honeywell International of Westbrook, ME and to expend 
an amount not to exceed S80,000 for the purchase and installation of all new controller boards 
at the airport terminal building; all in accordance with the memorandum of Ed Pottberg, 
Security Manager, dated May 5, 2021. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12—G:8, VIII, the Board justifies the waiver 
of the RFP requirement as the existing system is manufactured by Honeywell and PDA has 
determined that it is significantly more cost effective to replace all new controller boards with 
Honeywell components as it is a proprietary closed system. 

Discussion;  Blenkinsop prOvided clarification to indicate the motion stated the memo of 
-- May 5. 2021", however the memo is actually dated May 20, 2021" [sic April 20, 20211. 

Disposition;  Resolved by unanimous roll call  vote for; motion carried. 

 XII. 	Signs: 

A. 	Approvals: 
1. 	PEAS Testing signage —"Temporary placement of signage on PDA 

property 

Director Fournier moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves and authorizes the 
placement on PDA property of 24"L x 18"H lawn signs related to the CDC/ATSDR PFAS 
Health Study for a period of up to three months beginning May 20, 2021, conditioned upon 
the signs being provided at no cost to the PDA, Pease CAP volunteers placing the signs in 
locations approved by PDA staff, and Pease CAP volunteers removing all signs at the 
conclusion of the three month period; all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. 
Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated May 11, 2021. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



15 

Discussion: Smith thanked Amico for her advocacy on this issue and that the signs will 
hopefully bring about good results. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

XIII. Executive Director: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Election of Vice Chairman and Committee Assignments 
These items were addressed at the beginning of meeting, prior to the acceptance of minutes. 

Director Fournier left the room at 10:54 a.m. and returned at 10:56 a.m. 

2. Golf Course Operations 
Scott DeVito ("DeVito") General Manager of Pease Golf Course spoke to all 27 holes being 

opened as of April 21" with record rounds in April and May. The bathroom projects have been 
completed with compliments received from both the women and men. The utility cars will be 
delivered on the 21". The rough mower is in Minnesota due to transportation / delivery issues; it is 
anticipated the mower will be received in the next couple of weeks. Grill 28 daily sales are trending 
in the right direction and are pre-booking non-golf events throughout the season. 

3. Airport Operations 
a. 	Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 

Brean indicated in April PSM saw 7,484 enplanements primarily from Allegiant travels to 
Punta Gorda and Orlando / Sanford (4,800 enplanements); this is a strong uptick since April 2020 
when there was 250 leisure travel enplanements. Brean indicated that for the year there have been 
22,800 enplanements with 4,600 utilizing the facility since January (seeing strong ridership coming 
back to Orlando / Sanford due to the theme parks reopening). Brean informed the Board that 
addition service will commence later this month to both Nashville, TN and St. Pete, FL. 

Regarding revenue parking there were 1,100 transactions; historically February and April 
are the strongest months and the capacity for those travel periods look to be trending in the right 
direction. 

With respect to fuel .flowage fees, Port City Air has indicated that 1.1 million gallons had 
been pumped at the airport. 

PSM has received both AIP funding as well as COVID relief funding and thanked the 
congressional delegation for its work it has done for PSM. Currently there is another AIP to help 
support another taxiway rebuild and we are optimistic this will be received. 

Concerning Lamson's inquiry earlier regarding staffing, there are two open positions in 
airport operations. The badging specialist position was not backfilled as a means to show fiscal 
responsibility as both terminal and runway projects are anticipated to be leveling off, this is also the 
case 'for the fulltime operations specialist. 

Brean indicated he anticipated providing the Board with a memo next month with a proposal 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



16 

to increase the fuel flowage fee to $0.04. The primary reason for this is due to a lease requirement 
between US Customs and Border Patrol ("USCBP"); PDA is required to absorb all of the USCBP 
expenses (i.e.; Comcast, IT, telecoms etc.), with the exception of labor for the facility at PSM. 
USCBP draws air traffic ultimately increasing the fuel flowage fee received for both corporate and 
transient international traf fie. 

Brean spoke of the primary pavement funded by AlP money and the PSM ramp pavement 
parking area is low in the funding mechanism; don't receive federal money in order to repair the 
1950 ramp aprons so those are both repaired and funded internally which is where the large oversize 
aircraft park. 

Anderson asked of the estimated return for the one cent increase; Brean indicated it would 
be an estimated $100,000 in revenue. 

Lamson commented about the new service to and from Nashville that will allow people to 
see this part of the country. 

b. Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 
13rean informed the Board of a future proposal concerning lease rates. Surrounding rates 

have been researched regarding surrounding facilities, amenities and lease rates (i.e.; Sanford with a 
lease rate of $0.18/sq. ft.) and believe that is economically viable and could bring additional 
attraction to Skyhaven. 

c. Noise Line Report 
i. 	April 2021 

Brean indicated that there were no noise inquiries at either airport during the month of April, 
2021; the phone line and website were tested and found to be operational. Brean indicated that this 
was good seeing how things are getting back up to speed both with Guard transports and Allegiant 
travel. 

Lamson spoke to the engines being retrofitted which has helped with the reduction of engine 
noise. 

Anderson asked if Brean would speak to the recent dedication at the Grafton Drive City of 
Portsmouth Water Treatment facility as the facility is online. Brean indicated that Parker and 
Anderson accompanied him to the grand opening of the COP Water Facility on Grafton Drive 
which is first in the nation type of facility. The congressional delegation was in attendance along 
with the COP, the Haven Well has been activated and the technology of the ionization I carbon 
ifiltration system was observed which will allow drinking water to be placed back into the 
community. Brean indicated that this is the first project of this size that the Air Force has 
conducted. Amico was also in attendance and she too received accolades for her work. Brean 
indicated he is often asked by his counterparts from other facilities as to this issue / process 
regarding this facility and he has been able to communicate how this has occurred with cooperation 
from many parties. 

Lamson indicated that there are many in Newington who are concerned with the Haven Well 
being activated after being shut down due to the issues PFAS. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



17 

Anderson indicated that the facility is state of the art for what it is doing and to bring Haven 
Well back online with the amount of water it represents and the size and magnitude of the facility is 
impressive. 

Parker indicated the dedication of the facility was an important landmark occasion on 
several accounts. One which she noted was the collaboration that exists presently between the Air 
Force, PDA and the COP. The remarks made by the Acting Secretary of the Air Force, who is the 
citizen head of that service, commented several times as to why this initiative is important for the 
Air Force. Further, she indicated that the lessons learned from this facility at Pease is important on 
how to apply them to other parts of the country. Parker indicated she sees the actions of the Air 
Force regarding this issue as an important benchmark but that there is movement forward and there 
could be thought regarding how the collaboration could remain tangible. Another item addressed 
by Parker was the level of interest that is going on inside the scientifically driven operation at the 
facility regarding the treatment. Parker thought it would be important for others to be educated as 
to what is being done at that facility and wonder if the Board might think that Town Managers in 
the surrounding towns and members of select Boards might have an interest in tours of the facility. 
Parker feels it is important for public activities and information to continue moving forward as it is 
very successful in what it has accomplished. 

Smith indicated he too would like to tour as he was not available to attend the dedication. 

Fournier indicated that regional town / city managers (Rochester, Stratham, Durham, Dover, 
Newmarket etc.) have discussed touring the facility with the COP City Manager. 

B. 	Approvals: 

1. Bills for Legal Services 

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive 
Director to expend funds in the amount of $21,672.42 for legal services rendered to the Pease 
Development Authority from Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green for March 1, 2021 — March 31, 
2021 in the amount of $2,262.00 (for the Division of Ports & Harbors); March 1, 2021 — March 
31, 2021 in the amount of $5,539.00 (for Tradeport General Representation); and March 1, 2021 
— March 31, 2021 in the amount of $13,871.42 (in support of MS4 and CLF settlement 
implementation); and to expend funds in the amount of $8,158.50 for legal services rendered to 
the Pease Development Authority from Anderson Kreiger as outside counsel for Federal 
Regulatory Advice from March 1, 2021 through March 31, 2021. For a total amount of 
$29,830.92 in legal services. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

2. New Hampshire Air National Guard Air Show September 2021 

Director Fournier moved  the motion  and Director Parker seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



18 

to enter into a license agreement with the New Hampshire Air National Guard for the 
temporary use of airport land, and airport runway and taxiways from September 7, 2021 
through September 13, 2021, for the purpose of hosting an Open House and Airshow to be 
held September 11, 2021 and September 12, 2021; all in accordance with the memorandum 
from Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance dated May 
10, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

3. 	Galley Hatch Catering Services, Inc. — Purchases for Grill 28 in Lieu of 
Concession Revenue for April, May and June 2020 due to COVID-19 

Director Anderson moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to accept 
certain improvements to the Golf Course Clubhouse restaurant space made by Grill 28 in full 
satisfaction of its outstanding concession obligation for the months of April, May and June of 2020, 
which it was unable to pay as a result of the COVID-19 public health emergency; and to finalize 
and execute any necessary documentation to transfer ownership of said improvements from Grill 
28 to the PDA; all in accordance with the memorandum of Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, 
dated May 5, 2021. 

Discussion: Anderson asked for an understanding of the funds being used by Grill 28 and 
ultimately being transferred to PDA; whether funds were CARES Act related and if it were an 
appropriate use of those funds for PDA to accept that property. Brean asked Anderson if he were 
referring to CARES Act funds received by PDA; Anderson indicated "no" CARES Act funds which 
were received by Grill 28 in its purchase of these items. Brean indicated he did not know if Grill 28 
had received any grants and that the grant requirements would have been taken on by Grill 28. 
Anderson questioned whether PDA could accept the property where it is unknown where the funds 
came from; Brean indicated he did not know with certainty where the funds to purchase these items 
came from but with the size of limos Hospitality ("Tinios"), believed Tinios may have had additional 
funds to invest in these items. Brean indicated he could speak with Tinios directly if it were the 
request of the Board. Anderson only questioned it to make sure that the Board could appropriately 
accept these items. 

Parker indicated Anderson made a good point with a valid concern and legal counsel should 
weigh in because the CARES Act was put together very quickly; what are the requirements regarding 
the complete spending of funds and whether it is transferrable to other entities. 

Blenkinsop indicated that a request could be made to limos on where the funding for these 
i tems came from; that being said, PDA has not asked any other tenants where their funding has come 
from regarding payment of obligations. Blenkinsop indicated a request could be made for 
clarification from Tinios and that the following item on the agenda is related so may also be impacted 
(the Board may want to continue to the June meeting in order to receive information). 

Levesque indicated he did not feel comfortable asking where a private business gets its funds 
from. Further he stated the private business must report on the CARES Act funding. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



19 

Parker indicated that there is a condition of acceptance that could be put in place that it doesn't 
need to be asked as a question. 

Levesque indicated that it is up to the private business if it is doing something which is not 
acceptable then it is on the business owner; Parker agrees. Parker further stated that the PDA concern 
would be that it doesn't want to infringe on the private business while at the same time it needs to 
make sure that PDA does not want to accept something purchased with federal funds if has no proper 
manner to do the same. Parker indicated it would be a waiver / assurance. 

Fournier indicated when the CARES Act came out it was to help offset the business expenses 
at that time and it did not indicated it could only be spent on "X, Y and Z" it was very broad. The 
Board doesn't know and shouldn't know how the funds were used and at the end of the day, it 
wouldn't fall on PDA it would ultimately fall on the private individual / business. 

Ferrini indicated he understood the comments of the Directors and that the inquiry was well 
intended but there are sufficient laws for the protection of the Board vis-à-vis Grill 28. 

Smith indicated from the sounds of discussions it would be not to postpone the vote and 
therefore he called for a roll call vote. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried.  

Vice Chair Neil Levesque left the room at 11:20 a. in. and returned at 11:22 a.m. 

4. 	Cost Share of Seasonal Patio Canopy at Grill 28 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Fournier seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive 
Director to cost share with Galley Hatch Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Grill 28 for the purchase of a 
seasonal tent covering for the Grill 28 patio, for a total cost not to exceed $49,500, and with the 
PDA share not to exceed $24,750; all in accordance with the memorandum from Scott DeVito, 
PGA General Manager dated May 5, 2021. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver of 
the RFP requirement as the tent covering, which is designed to match the existing patio tent 
covering in terms of structure and material, has already been ordered from a local supplier by 
Galley Hatch Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Grill 28 in order to have it fabricated and installed for the 
2021 golf and outdoor dining season. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried.  

XIV. Division of Ports and Harbors: 

Chairman Smith left the meeting at 11:23 a.m. and returned at 11:25 a.m. 

A. 	Reports: 
1. 	Port Advisory Council - Minutes of March 10, 2021 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



Geno Marconi ("Marconi") DPI-1 indicated that PAC approved the minutes of March 1 O th , he 
provided the minutes so the Board could see the activities and discussions engaged in„ 

2. Northeast Fishery Sectors, Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier - Office 
Rental, Right of Entry 

Marconi indicated that under the Delegation of Authority, Director Brean executed a ROE 
for Northeast Fishery Sectors for office rental at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier. 

3. Rye Hose Reels 
Marconi indicated this was a purchase of hose reels on the recreational side of Rye Harbor 

facility. The reels were old and started to cause problems as they were spring loaded and presented 
a hazard. The new ones require that the hose be pushed onto the reel as it winds up and is under 
control. These hose reels are on the commercial side of Rye Harbor as well as Hampton and are 
installed at the Portsmouth Fish Pier. 

4. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Syphers to Cummings 
Marconi reported that in accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, 

:Approval and Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers", there was a commercial mooring transferred 
from Syphers to Cummings down in Hampton. 

5. Commercial Mooring for Hirer — Esther's Marina 
Marconi indicated that under the Code of Administration of Rules there is an ability to have 

a Commercial for [lire allowed and upon review by the Harbor Master a recommendation is made 
to the Executive Director who is allowed to sign off on these through the Delegation of Authority; 
this was for the south end of Portsmouth. 

6. Commercial Mooring for Hirer — Pull and B.D., Inc. 
Marconi indicated that under the Code of Administration of Rules there is an ability to have 

a Commercial for Hire allowed and upon review by the Harbor Master a recommendation is made 
to the Executive Director who is allowed to sign off on these through the Delegation of Authority; 
this was for the club on Goat Island in Newcastle. 

Marconi also informed the Board that the dredging project regarding the uppermost turning 
basin project is moving forward. He indicated there has been an amendment to the capital budget 
that came out in the House and an amendment from Senate regarding this project for an additional 
$1.5 million; the budget for construction has increased since the funds were appropriated in 2015 
and 2017 due to delays. Therefore, the Senate has included funding in its side of the budget which 
will still have to go back before a Committee / Conference and the project will commence in 
November. 

Marconi indicated the PEP project has the wall on the inside installed (pins installed and tie 
backs have all be taken care of), it has been backfilled to elevation 10 and starting to do the form 
work for the concrete wall cap. Also the utilities and the floating docks are being installed at the 
same time. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



21 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. Rye Harbor — Right-of-Entry, RHLP one year waiver 

Director Levesque moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors approves a one year waiver for the purpose 
provision of Rye Harbor Lobster Pound's 2020 Rye Harbor Marine Facility Right of Entry, in 
order to permit the sale of ready to eat items, contingent on certain specified stipulations; all 
in accordance with the letter from Governor Christopher Sununu dated April 20, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

2. Rye Harbor & Hampton Harbor — Winter Storage Fee 

Director Anderson moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Board of Directors hereby approves of the Winter Boat Storage Initial Proposed 
Fee Amendment, and authorizes the Division Director to take any necessary or recommended 
action in furtherance of this matter; all in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. 
Marconi, Division Director, dated May 13, 2021. 

Discussion: Anderson indicated that this was discussed at the PAC meeting and asked of the 
dates this would go into effect. Anderson further indicated that there are boats that are stored there 
12 months of the year; Marconi indicated that the vessel storage fees are broken into the season 
(separate fees for summer storage and winter storage) so if a boat is in storage year-round then when 
the clock strikes midnight and rolls from one storage period to the next, so too does the fee for that 
boat. Anderson asked if the summer season rate was different than the winter; Marconi affirmed. 
Marconi indicated that the winter rate would commence as of November 1st. Anderson indicated 
there too had been discussions about liability for the storage and asked if there would be an insurance 
requirement or waiver for the storage; Marconi indicated that all of the agreements for the use of DPI-I 
properties contains a section which discusses indemnification; hold harmless and accept the use of 
the property at its risk. Marconi indicated that the Chairman of PAC had a discussion concerning 
insurances. Marconi stated he will have a discussion with General Counsel Blenkinsop and Executive 
Director Brean, as in the past DPH has operated its agreements with the indemnification, hold 
harmless and use of property at own risk. Marconi indicated that the PAC meeting was held virtually 
and there was no way for him to provide the members with the storage application; he will be 
providing this to the Council at the next meeting for its review. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

Executive Director Brean left the meeting at 11:32 a.m. and returned at 11:35 a. in. 

3. Swell Oyster Company — Amendment to Right of Entry for small 
exterior restroom 

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded that The Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to 
complete negotiations and execute an Amendment to the Hampton Harbor Marine Facility 
Right of Entry with Swell Oyster Company for the construction of a 3' x 6' addition to an 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22,2021 



22 

existing building owned by Swell, the purpose of which is to house an "employee only" 
restroom as required by the NH Department of Health and Human Services in order for it to 
operate its oyster business year round; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated May 5, 2021. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

4. Swell Oyster Company —Right of Entry for Cold Storage Building 

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to 
complete negotiations and execute a Right of Entry ("RoE") with Swell Oyster Company 
through June 30, 2023, for the construction of a 12.5' x 17.5' cold storage building for the 
purposes of housing a walk-in cooler and a sorting table in association with its current 
Hampton Harbor Marine Facility RoE for oyster harvest operations; all in accordance with 
the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, 
dated May 6, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

5. Granite State Minerals — Exercise of Fourth and Final One-Year Option 

Director Parker moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and - authorizes the 
Executive Director to execute all necessary documents to approve Granite State Minerals, 
Inc.'s request to exercise the fourth and final one-year option of its License and Operating 
Agreement, effective November 1, 2021 through October 31, 2022, for use of a portion of the 
Market Street Terminal on terms and conditions substantially similar to those set forth in the 
memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated May 5, 2021. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous vote for: motion carried. 

XV. New Business: 

XVI. Special Event: 

XVII. Upcoming Meetings: 

Finance Committee 
	

June 14, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors 
	

June 17, 2021 @_.; 8:30 a.m. (Board 
Photograph) 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



23 

XVIII. Directors' Comments: 

Fournier asked per CDC Guidance if the Board would be reviewing its meeting policies; 
Smith indicated he would be fine returning to the Board room if others were okay with that. 

Blenkinsop indicated that internally the building is still operating under a mask policy but 
there is a meeting scheduled in the upcoming week to discuss policies. Blenkinsop indicated that 
from a planning standpoint we can plan on having the next meeting in the Board Room. 

XIX. Adjournment: 

Director Lamson moved the motion  and Director Parker seconded  to adjourn the Board 
meeting. Meeting adjourned at 11:37  a.m. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.  

XX. Press Questions: 

No press on were at the meeting or on via Zoom. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

PABOARD MINUTES\2021 \Bd Minutes 5-20-2021.cl= 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 May 22, 2021 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves the request for a variance from Part 308.02 (c) of the PDA 

Zoning Ordinance to allow the installation of an emergency generator with 

a diesel fuel tank capacity of 3,312 gallons, submitted by Lonza Biologics, 

Inc. ("Lonza") and attached hereto, as part of the work to construct a new 

production suite inside the premises located at 101 International Drive; 

contingent upon Lonza securing the requisite variance from the City of 

Portsmouth's Board of Adjustment for the additional fuel storage 

associated with the installation of the emergency generator; all in 

accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager -

Engineering dated June 9, 2021 and attached hereto. 

N:\RESOLVES\2021  \Lonza Emergency Generator Installation 6-17-2021.doc 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Director—Qc 

From 	Maria J. Stowell, P, E., Engineering Manager_ 

Date: 	June 9, 2021 

Subject: 	101 International Drive, Lonza Generator Installation 

Lonza has notified us of its need to install an emergency generator as part of the work to construct a 

new production suite inside the existing building at 101 International Drive. The proposed generator 

set is diesel fueled and is furnished with a tank that is integral to the equipment. Emergency 

generators are common accessories to commercial buildings and do not typically require Board 

approval. However, the fuel tank of Lonza's proposed generator exceeds the 2000 gallon maximum 

capacity allowed by PDA's Zoning Ordinance (Part308.02(c)) and the installation requires a variance. 

Lonza has previously requested and received variances for generator fuel tank capacities greater than 

2000 gallons. In 2015 and 2019 Lonza went before the PDA Board and the Portsmouth Board of 

Adjustment and was granted variances. 

Attached you will find a site plan showing the proposed location of the generator, a spreadsheet listing 

all tanks on the 101 International site along with pertinent information, and a letter from Lonza's 

counsel explaining the need for the request. 

At the June meeting, please ask the Board to allow Lonza to submit an application for a variance from 

Part 308.02 (c) of the PDA Zoning Ordinance to allow the installation of an emergency generator with 

a fuel tank capacity of 3,312 gallons. The application will be considered by the City of Portsmouth's 

Board of Adjustment. 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\Lonza Generator.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



8 June 2021 

Via email: a.blenkinsop'.4easedev,orc2 
and U.S. Mail 

Anthony Blenkinsop, Esquire 
Deputy Director/General Counsel 
Pease Development Authority 
55 international Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: 	Request by Lanza Biologics Inc. ("Lanza") from the Pease Development Authority 
("PDA") Board of Directors 

Dear Anthony: 

I write on behalf of Lonza to request that the PDA Board of Directors authorize Lonza to 
file a variance application with PDA's Building Inspector for referral the City of Portsmouth's 
Board of Adjustment. I  Specifically, Lonza intends to seek variance relief from PDA 308.02(c) 
to permit an above ground fuel tank which exceeds the capacity of 2,000 gallons at property 
located at 101 International Drive (the "Property"). This correspondence follows my recent 
phone call with Maria J. Stowell, PE regarding this filing. We understand that the PDA Board of 
Directors will next meet on 17 June 2021 and we respectfully ask that this matter be placed on 
the agenda of that meeting. Thereafter, we would anticipate filing a Variance Application with 
the City's Board of Adjustment in advance of the 30 June filing deadline so that Lonza's 
application will be heard at the Board of Adjustment's 20 July 2021 meeting. 

By way of brief background, in May of this year, Lonza announced significant 
investments to expand its mammalian drug substance manufacturing facilities at both its Visp, 
Switzerland and Portsmouth, New Hampshire facilities. In Portsmouth, the new facility, which 
is referred to as the "Lynx Project" and will be sited within the existing building on the Property, 
will support late-phase clinical and commercial development and manufacturing of 
pharmaceuticals and will help address increasing market demand for small to mid-scale 

I See PDA 317.03. 

r. 
03833 

„ivic; ..nne„ 	 03801. 

2,, 104 bir ;.- .. 9_01. 1:2.  25, 	 NH 03253 

v\i.c„tc:awy(- 



Anthony Blenkinsop, Esquire 
Page 2 
8 Rine 2021 

mammalian-derived biologics. The facility will include state-of-the-art technologies in 
perfusion, purification and automation and is projected to create 250 new jobs. 

The Lynx Project will be located within the southeastern portion of the existing building 
on the Property and Lanza's proposed parking expansion project to accommodate the same will 
be the subject of a future Site Plan Review Application to be filed with the PDA and with the 
City of Portsmouth's Planning Board, The proposed fuel tank will service an emergency 
generator which will support the Lynx Project. The fuel tank and generator are proposed to be 
situated at the southeastern portion of the Property, as depicted in the enclosed Proposed 
Generator Pad Concept Plan produced by Tighe & Bond. See Enclosure 1. Variance relief is 
required because pursuant to PDA 308.02(e), above ground storage facilities shall not exceed a 
capacity of 2,000 " gallons per facility, We look forward to detailing Loriza's variance application 
and the ways it satisfies the requirements ofiri'DA 317„01.(c) and RSA 67403,1(2) in ourfbl [OW- 

11 

We also attach, per Ms. Stowell's request, an updated spreadsheet depicting Lonza's 
current storage facilities at the Property. See  Enclosure 2. 

Thank you for your time and attention. Please let us know if you have any questions or 
comments regarding the foregoing or thc enclosed. vAte stand ready to assist y(au and the PDA 
Board of Directors as is required in acting on the request stated above. 

Yours truly, 

DONAHUE, TUCKER 

Justin L. Pasay, Esq. 
i basay(ciildtclawv ers _corn  

JLP:sc 
ce7 . 	Lonza Biologics Inc. 

Juliet T,H. Walker„AJCP, Planning Director 
Suzanne M.. Woodland, Esquire 
Patrick Crimmins, P.E. 





Itr
i  i

p
m

s  
'p

a
l  

P
al

le
ts

  o
ic

in
o

a
 

 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 int.Grn,., 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Date: June 8, 2021 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Iry Canner, Director of Finance 

Subject: Executive Summary- Financial Reports 

In anticipation of the upcoming June 14, 2021 Pease Development Authority Finance Committee meeting, the 

following is an Executive Summary of the two financial reports for your review and comment: 

Report #1- Financial Report for the Ten-Month Period Ending April 30. 2021 

We are reporting on the first ten months of operations specific to FY 2021. Consistent with our previous 

discussions, there are no meaningful trends that have been identified that would challenge the FY 2021 

operating budget. 

Actual operating revenues of $13.7 million are slightly above budget by 0.3% primarily due to the increased 

golf course public play and fee revenues associated with facility rentals and the sale of mooring permits. 

Offsetting these gains were decreased fuel revenues associated with the reconstruction of the Portsmouth 

Fish Pier Wall as well as, pay for parking and fuel flowage revenues at PSM as related to the Covid-19 

pandemic. 

Actual operating expenses of $10.0 million are below budget by $1.5 million primarily due to expense under 

runs in facilities maintenance, legal, marketing, utilities, and the cost of fuel at the Portsmouth Fish Pier. In 

addition, the favorable winter season also contributed to lower operating costs. 

The resulting Operating Income of $3.7 million is $1.5 million greater than budgeted which directly 

contributed to our ability to address internal working capital requirements and somewhat minimize the need 

to draw-down from the $15.0 million Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) with the Provident Bank. 

Business Unit Performance 

Portsmouth Airport 

Operating revenues total $1,473,000 which is under budget by $42,000. The primary reason for the budget 

variance underrun, was associated with the Covid 19 pandemic highlighted in lower pay for parking revenues 

and fuel flowage fees. Slightly offsetting these budget underruns were monies received under the Affordable 

Cares Act. Current enplanements of 22,800 are greater than the prior year to date (20,177) 

Skyhaven Airport 

Operating revenues total $ 204,000 which is above budget by $43,000. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance was primarily due to higher fuel sales of 16,872 gallons versus 11,069 gallons on a fiscal year to date 

basis. Cumulative net cash flow losses, since accepting the operational responsibilities for Skyhaven Airport 

during FY 2009, now total approximately $1.7 million. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

03- 4 ?, 3-307,8 	 603-42 -0433 	www peas 	e, v o 

1I Pa g 



Report #1- Financial Report for the Ten-Month Period Ending April 30, 2021  (continued) 

Business Unit Performance  (continued) 

Tradeport  

Operating revenues total $7,820,000 which is above budget by 1.3%. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance is associated with rental of facilities and the Consumer Price Index 

Golf Course 

Operating revenues total $2,300,000 which is above budget by 10.6%. The primary reasons are associated 

with public play at the golf course. A total of 62,315 rounds were played through December versus 55,321 

rounds the prior season. Gross revenues at the Grill 28 of $1,309,000 are somewhat greater (6.2%) than the 

prior ten-month period ending April 30, 2020. The course opened the new season on March 26th. Current 

season rounds of golf played total 6,366 versus 361 for the prior period. 

Division of Ports and Harbors 

Unrestricted operating revenues total $1,750,000 which is slightly less than budgeted revenues of 

$2,037,000. The lost fuel sales at the Portsmouth Fish Pier (PFP) have been slightly offset by incremental 

mooring and facilities fee revenues. It is anticipated that the PFP may reopen prior to October, 2021. 

Balance Sheet  (Page #8) 

Total current assets are $6.9 million consisting primarily of $4.1 million in unrestricted cash and $2.2 million 

in accounts receivables. Net  cash balances (PDA $2.2 million and DPH $1.9 million) have decreased by 

$1,134,000 since June 30, 2020 due to the following activities: 

Operating Income 	 $ 3,766,000 

RLOC Line of Credit Draw Down 	 1,000,000 

Contributed Capital 	 14,089,000 

Accounts Receivable 	 6,739,000 

Accounts Payable 	 (4,120,000)) 

Capital Expenditures 	 (22,503,000) 

All Other- Net 	 (105,000) 

Total 	 $ (1,134,000)  



Report #1- Financial Report for the Ten-Month Period Ending April 30, 2021  (continued) 

Balance Sheet  (Page #8) 

The majority of the accounts receivable balances can be attributable to federal or state construction 

activities. 

Restricted assets total approximately $1.5 million and consist primarily of the Revolving Loan Fund which has 

total assets of $1.2 million. At present, there are 21 participant loans outstanding with a principal balance 

outstanding of $943,000. 

Capital assets have increased approximately $17.8 million, net of depreciation, to $93.4 million primarily due 

to the extensive capital improvements at PSM including the terminal expansion and runway reconstruction 

project. During the ten-month period ending April 30, 2021 the more significant capital expenditures 

included: 

• PSM Runway Reconstruction Project $ 10,556,000 

• PSM Terminal Expansion 9,258,000 

• DPH Main Pier BUILD Grant 977,000 

• DPH Bulkhead and Construction 870,000 

• PSM Alpha South Hold Bay 337,000 

• Volvo L9OH Wheel Loader 176,000 

• Automotive Vehicles 76,000 

• PSM Eldorado Bus 72,000 

• All Other 181,000 

Total $ 	22,503,000 

Total current liabilities are approximately $7.6 million, representing a $3.0 million decrease from June 30, 

2020. Accounts payables represent $5.8 million, reflecting a $4.1 million decrease from June 30, 2020. In 

addition, during the ten-month period we requested a net $1.0 million draw down from our RLOC at the 

Provident Bank to help offset the cash requirements in supporting of the two primary capital projects at PSM. 

Updated net pension and OPEB liability for the PDA at June 30, 2020 total $9.8 million which was a $1.9 

million decrease from the prior year. The 16.2% reduction was associated with the investment returns of plan 

assets being in excess of targeted benchmarks and changes in investment assumptions. The New Hampshire 

Retirement System reported a 1.1% return on investments in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

As noted on page #5, the current PDA Organization Chart reflects 62 filled benefited positions and 4 open 

benefited positions. 



Report #2- Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending February 28, 2022 

During the next nine-month period internal cash flow projections are dominated by approximately $8.3 

million in capital expenditures primarily in support of the PSM Runway Reconstruction Project and the PSM 

Terminal Expansion. Of these monies, $4.5 million will be grant funded requiring the PDA to draw upwards of 

$4.1 million through our $15.0 million RLOC with the Provident Bank. Based on current expectations of actual 

grant reimbursements during this period, we anticipate having no debt outstanding at February 28, 2022. 

Revenue projections have been modified due to the coronavirus environment as associated with the 

reopening of the golf course and Grill 28 operations. To a lesser extent PSM Pay for Parking revenues and fuel 

flowage fees are also anticipated to be less than budgeted. 

Page # 3 of the report provides the detailed monthly cash flow projections noting the minimum cash balances 

remain at approximately $1.5 million to allow the PDA to address its ongoing working capital requirements. 

Again, a critical component in developing these cash flow projections is the timely reimbursement process 

associated with grant funded capital projects. 

PROJECTED CASH AND DEBT BALANCES 

PROJECTED 
CASH $  1,822 

PROJECTED DEBT 

FES 

Through May 31, 2021 the PDA has $250,000 outstanding under the $15.0 million RLOC with the Provident 

Bank at an interest rate of approximately 2.8%. 

At your convenience, I would be pleased to address any questions or supplemental information 

you may need. 





t  
A

T
IN

G
  I

N
C

O
M

E
  

...' 
..L. 	■.- 
D IP 	7:: 7- 	' 	

:•-, 

Z •–. r Z 	 • 	r ' 

> a. 
ti-r 	is 
ex 

gl— 	11-; 
LLI. 

6.•  ` 

;.. 

• 

z 

G
E

T
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

  A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 

4 

cr}  W1 

z 

X 

(i) 
111 

Z 
UJ Z 
W O  

W 
0 

0 z 
UJ 

111  
LL1 O. 

Z 

Ci 	1-1 
W(NI 

Z 
r44 

•--1 

m 

• 

-1- 
*-1  

Z 
O 0 Cl-
U LL. < 

=. 1" 
.1 

C.1 
' 

Is 
eri: 

44 

P. 

Chi 

•er 
v-1 

N 	 • 

N 

•■i 
N 

N 

'• 
0'1 
CrL 
t-4  

ti 

—Ij 

ra 
N 

 

o 
0.;  

• r•-• 	1.0  
< .g• 	rel 

o 

- 

 



0 MM. 
rn 

rl 

=MI 

0 
eh 
0 

-AL- 
EN.= 

8 

I.- )..)1  

W -,-,   ,  ) 
i.:'  

12 
..,".. 

di 

• Cr". 

 U- 

... 	 -T 	. 

Lo 	I- 
,-  7 	'..1 
	

ti • 
..  

..-.  a 
)'• 

CL 

C..)  

a i...-  fV: 

0J  >  
ce.  ,.., 
v..: 
,--,

- 

 Lt■ 
•1  >-' 

0 	

▪ 	

c:6 
	 6C, 

o". 
aj  n 

o ,.,. 
..-g ' 11  r--, 
w  0 ....... 	*. 

i—. 

rsJ i  Z 
 ..i.i  ii.1 

VI  Z 
i-i  , 

ik. 	Z  C..' +t 0 "7.'" 	.. ,,A 	).-7 	 ,.; 	fil 
L: .4.j 

	 z 	'LLI 
:';,.. r...) 	 _C 	IA  = 	et 	:I-. 

d 	U 	Z  (— 
--,  M  cc':  ct." 	 0  1:4/  ,.._,  U 	0 Z  U Lc,i  u-t  	4  >  -.1  re ia. L‘t  

,q 	0  g.A 	L.,  .1.1..4 	. j ..-, 	 • 	..,.': U.i. 	.,, 
N V  :  i...-.: 	44,  1. I.) tr  LP X 	•V: 



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

T
A

F
F

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S
 

f:  F
it

.L
Ei

t ?
 P

O
S

IT
IO

1 '
S

 

-14 



W I- 
-1 03 

Z Cece 	-1 c-5 
O 0 w 	W m 
-1 03 I- 	= .4 
Z CO 03 	0 
< < < 	o z 
x x E M E 

< 0 _1 < 

W 
-J D 
ul 

111 

Z E U < Z Z 
I 0 1c, 
w -1 w ■-■ 
• > 
• E 0 

• z 

E 
w ca 
O *4 < 

to 

U. 	 I- 

Zi_izIll 	ix Z 

- 	

Z _J < 	 CO 

	

LI IZ .2 	.2 -I j_ 	.2 co 
CO LI-1 0 0 0  

	

Oz- y 01-  2 Oz 	> 0 

	

O,.0  <cni-<_, ...12z 	ta MD 	< < 
0 101_,,_ Nwoz 	<Lum 	>-0 zu< z<w 	(1)CD 	0 < 	< 1- 	 Z.' 

Z wz < ee l' 	0 	mg 	-.( 0 

	

< 	< 

	

0 	 W 

	

< 	 LI. "a0   w 
 a 0  / I I /  0 

z w i- ,ce 	
cnz 

	

-I'M 0 < 	
0 0 - 

0 02 cou )w-., Z 	w Z 
w 	ce(n D a_ I-  7W yr 	0 .< 

Z Z < Mir <u)  0 	w0 ce 	z 0  

	

w KW 0<00) m 22  0 	< W  I D D- 	 0 U. 	M O 0 ,,,Z  
0 

IL, 
E 

wT, 
- 

< 0 w 
0 O 0W 

w O 	cc , 
w O. 	W A 0 

M M 	
.-1 `-' ix 

a a Lu , < 
a 

	

1.- 	i- 
z D w 

	

W 

2 	

, , , ,c,  ) 	c.  L) 74 

	

1- 	 5 '.1f 0 .4 
-1 	 w  ce 	CO 

	

I-I -I  < 	 III Z m Z 

	

Z
W < I- 	 M  0 E ID 

 0 

	

0  (0) 	...1 	w 	c- 
0 
OF 

 O
F 
	< a iD -1 	

z 0 

	

<   	. w  0 w 	 w 0. 	.7i, 	 < 0.0‘ 	 z 0. 
0 c, „.., 	i 	 4 0 ,w  
N ?- 0, 	 E 8 	z 	 0  

	

0 fx 	,-- 03 - z sr.., 0, 	0 < 07  2  

	

a '''' w  "---LA. w w 	LT, 
	N  cn 

Zliztuil W 	■-<w - 
u.si3-, o° n ce '1'  Z 	

a 2 	CC  
4 0 y  . ,J , w Z  ,‘LI 	 Z  0 < J. a .z D  '` 

. 
0 Lu C  a 	 U. 

Z m 	 W LS 	 W  <  	, ,  w ._

• 

>- 0.1 . 0 	 0  -,  0 0 
W}-  _,   co 0 O (

▪ 	

X c[ 	t,-;:t 

	

WOW w 	 -..,...  21 m w 
Z ir < 

w cc 

	

"P  x w u) 0. 	0 w  
.., u Lu 	 w co l- 	D  ■.:  _1 0 -1 
0 ,., ■-■ < 0.1 es. 	W 	< 0 < < 	w 	0. (.0  
o. W"' 	 >- - 0 re 

I 
US E 	0 

O Z Z w  
' 	 1  o < 0 Z - W .. Z -1 < 2 ,,c 0. z 

O < E < 
0. -1  0 E a. 0 

ce 
OF  < 

r[ 
5 U.1 < 
W Z Z 
O 111.2 

W 

  

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 

-J 

S
T

O
W

E
L

L
 

-1-111 

0 

	

1- 	 1- 	 1- 	 I- 	= 	
1- 	 1- 	 1- 	

1- 
i- ,.>" 0  -.., 	 w 	z (0 	in 	0 	- 

	

(/) 	I- 	 0) 	cn 	 0 
ce.7, 	 0 - 	 9 	(7)  

	

w '-71  ' 	0 cc)  w 	H 	-1 

	

>-1:0 	O re <  04 	W I- 	a.<  01 	 0 (n -I 	-17  (1) 	co <:1 	
Z 	x 

	

" 	la as 	w (I)  eel 	0.0 „-  e+  Z p. U) 	 I-  11. < 	Ce  MC°  5 	z a5.. 	w a< 

	

< OW 0 00 	ce OW 	a. - 	--I 0. - 	-1 < 

	

W  re W 	CS arlii  a  < 0 -i 	0 o 9.- w ,-, 	I-  O W  D 	2 133 

	

1._ D .2 	 a. 	CO 0_ 	13_W 	8 ow 	Euj  mw 
	Y OU 	=1  0 0 u.i 

	

a_ 	2 lit 	3 E 
a z 

, 0 z 	a u)  a ‘...  uj= ,< 
Ill < 	(/) ° 	 V) 	CO O 	M 	(0 m 	 w 	 E Cl)w 

	

Lu < 	w 	 < 
> W cL Z W w u) 	.■-.....1 	_I 	

II  
Ln 	I 	I 	1 	I 	1 	I 

  W 0 .1  

O < -2 
I.) z 

>- m 
LLI CL CO 
	

CO 
W I--  2 
M (1,  < 

(.1 1 	CO 0. 
2 0 
< a. 
	a s  (7) 

0  
X Z 

Z W 
-1 W 

	

< J 	
O- D 
D 

	

CO 	

0_ 
< o w 

	

a 0- 	o a_ 

	

w a 	o 

	

-1 o 	o w 
0 i= 

u) 
W w 
O a 

N 
co 

0 a 2 	  
< M 0 

Z  Z I-. 	 i- 	ix 

	

z 	 i- 

	

o 0 	in 	 z 

0 cn x 	 _i 5 	 CU 1.- 	 0 - 	3 71 -I m < 	Z CO 0 	W 	-1 	 w 15 	w co 	 z 

• 	

0 3 	--, = 	Y 5 	<z z a  z 	w a La 	0 	- a co 3 W 	al 	E u)  
J 

.:c 0.  
o Lu ... 	-, M 

	Z Z 	 -I 	M CO 	 J 	E Ill 	< W
Y U. 	 0 0 ." 	 Y < W 	 W 	 > 2 	 < 	0 	 < 

g [-LI  g 	I 	I 	I 	4 	I 	I 	I 	1 
Z z  0 

w z< 	 z 	0) 
>-   

2 	z 0  • 

	

y 0 	00 	<0 	<0 	W 0 	re 

- 0

- 
• a. 	re a. 	i- a.  	_1 	0 0 	Y O  
• 5 	cc 5 	k '' 5 	

N 

- 

a- cc 	0 5 	< m 	a 5 	a D 
0 m 0 a- 

	

3 °- 	D O- 
a a 	CL a 	a 0 	z a 	_1 a 	re a 	o a 	Y , 

ig Z g  ''''''"1 	 1/1 	 111 	M LU 	< W 	5 Lu 	co W 	0 W Z it 

< ). cj  
I ce w 0 E 	 ,,, ,.. 
I-  < re u) I" Z 
Z X 1-1 	te ,1-* w 
11J W0 W w' X 
0 0 = 1-  u) 0 
ILI 1/. „ 	1- 	< 
•+ Z ‘'. 	< 1-  
th m W 	12. P-1  1- 	 .-.L 

0 
Z 

:E
 

NOI•mms■ 



ai 
"4: 

w. 

9  ch 	 — 	• ...., 	_ ,-, 	1..1 et 
•■r:til 	.._,.  1.. 4 . 

4 ,  
.i. — 
r 	C.  

d 

DA 

ri 

A 
iki  c..,r,  ''''',0 	{'1

'4.  52 
›- 

— 

77' 

CD 



ti 

( 

X 
uu 

0 
W 

ZZ I-4 o...4 

• Z 
Z LLI 

g 
W 
O. ILI O s 
z= 
0 z Z 
al 0 

E U.1 	(NI 
Z 0 

QLLJ rsi 
CZ 
I.N4 	0 
—1 
0 
(/) 	mg! 
Z 
O 0 a. 
U < 

N 

nt 

• 

-, !r.! 
=  >.-  -, 
L; 	"2  

04  i- 
.r.  

4 

 • 

•cr  I,: 	 CZ 
Liii  n  r,.., 	 NI 
).-  c :7 



D
EF

ER
R

E
D  

;N
1=

LO
W

S  
O

F
 R

E
SO

U
R

C
E

S  

"I'--, 1 I  ir. 	•D I 	 16 NI 	N. 

CI 	.A  
3 

L
IA

U
IL

IT
I1

 

n't 	 ±-,t). 
'7" 

,31.1 1.• XJ• 

C
U

R
R

E
IN

f  
A

S
'A

  I
  S

  

7;7 

R
E

S
ri

tl
i  

E
D

 A
s

SE
  

 

61,  

`‘l:111 : 

   

CO 

ui 

C
O

N
SO

L
ID

A
T

E
D

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 O
F

 N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 

X 

.6 
--, 

1=4 
 P 

r.: 

..• 
, ,...-', 

-. r 

'..• 

.... :. 

"4C. 
 

- 	. 
. :.• '-= 

-1 '_,:::. 
t. 

...i 

• .- 

:-. r' .  -_... ...'. 
...:-. 

'-' .,,•_ 
_, 

fl 

S[I 
7,j  

•,...1 "1 
3 3 

...: 
P:-.. 1 

 3 
0 
N 

6; 

'' 
.:', 

Z 
,■-; x, 

. 	 - 

`-1: 
....7., 

... 

If 
- i 
•■■ 

— 

.:.:. 	Ci 	 '  I  : 	i  1 

Z.' .--.- 	,- .  „ 
:' 	4_ 

!•,,,_, 4  ci 	E 	 5. 

	

, ..-... 	.7.' 

r.q 	.,... < 
:',.. 	...L.; 

01 



cr) 

os 

11.1 4 

Z  a, 
5 
< a 

' 
It 

-7" ti 
1.r7 	 •-• 

..• 	 fti 

—4 

Z 

.... 	c,
, 	=2, 	1.'.F 	 '':-.-:,. 	

..-.. 	..,,  .7, 	 c, 	
'.:‘ 	,..-1. L., 	....._-, 	 3 	8 

4-.... 
.,,,- 

0  

, rl 
',.-,....' 

ir.  Oe 
0 

CCI 

> 

• 

 LI4 

C4 	jec 
a. ❑ 

a. 

... 
... 	

.. 	 .. 	 . 

.,. 	

. 	• 	 ' 	 ' 

' 	• 	• 	: 
1....] 	•.;.: 
, a 

. 	.. 

. 	
.  -. 	

•, 	1- .-. 1 	
.:. 	 • 

C',
±] 

.  _ 
..., 

.- 	...t- 	< 
.— 	

... 	 . 

4; 	,I, 	,..... -  : 	.  - 	..:!: 	2.; 

z r..,.... 	;_,... ...-..: 	•=z  .— 	..:- 	:,-. 	,. 
. 	

. 

oc 

• 1J3 
	 .4 



0 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 W

O
R

K
  I

N
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

r'J 

P
R

L
IJ

E
C

t N
A

M
E

 

#3
()

R
  T

 



•'K
Y

H
A

V
E

N
  A

IR
P

O
R

T
 



EX 

Z ■7.■ 
CZ 
X cL, 

EW 

• 
iN 

ILI  el 

Z 
t1:2 

44 

Ja 

- 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
A

M
E 

D
I
V

IS
IO

N
  (

II
- 

P
O

R
T

S  
A

N
D

 H
A

N
B

O
R

S
 (

C
P

H
 

4z; 

r1 
P-4 

0 

1-4 

O 

0 
1,411  
U 

z 
0 
U 
LL. 
0 
>- 
re 

2 

(r) C
O

N
T

IN
U

F
D

:-
  

P
R

O
G

R
E

SS
 



X 

k F. 

14. 

:—. 

-4 —   

,...,--,  r 
-...  --.,  X 

.. 	a.  -j  4, 
1...i r-L 	ct  

Z  rg x  v 	Z  ee 	VI 
it,  I—( 	0, 	̂  r  I-0  

0 ;-- 

, ■1  .,-.: 	f_:::  , . 
. 

t-- 	f-e  ;-, 	 !-- •,7. 	 :4 < F )-, 	< ,t-,- 	u .7r 
I--  '--  44  cc 	i.—  < 	t.:.  ;._, 
ill  7  =  i_._. 	fil  I  



t7-  

' 

.1.1 

z L.: 
•,-, ,J,. 
..7, u., 

to: 

E 	 '...:::. 

•-..: 	 ..--, 

-,-.•-. 

- 

. 

..i. ._ 
A •„.. 

•7' 1  

''?.- 

0 

- 
, 

-..,:: 
ce 

	

..i 	—,. ¢ 	 I— 	 - 

	

c,.....m 	T.:  

141. 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

3 

x 

rJ 



• N 

Zi 	g 

• • t 0 

LU 

LU 

OLL  itej 

N 
Z 
O 0 

Lir 

LU 	ce  

< 0 
u- Z 
0 0-■ 
I- < 
Z Z Z 
LLI 
E Q 
WO < 
11••• 
< 

UJ 
ti) 0l. CA 

.,l 

9 	(

• 	

d3 	 :..... 	 r 	,.. 
!L-I 	lit 	..< 7.. 	°  

	

--:
■IL. 	 E 	 i..,. ---.. 	Z 	. i ' 	 .  .. 	0 	 ';'• 

iii 	U.1 	
•  . 	.. 

8  

	

(2 	
i

i0. 

	

2., 	
-..,.., s..,  _I 	

2i 

Z  Z 
---, 	4.1 

g  in 

 Z 
CI 

Z 

(.2 	 0 	 .-•-•  i:,,' 	:I' 	Z 	 ..7 	'CC   	At Z  Z V)  11: 	 C '!,   

	

6 	z  ct 6U 6  ,,,14  r 	P 	..:-.., 	,_i,  u.,  O. 
At 	<= 	 ,_•_. 

C4 	e.,  

1•U 	!!--1-7. 	ce';  

ci 0  w a: 0 
a. 	a. 	5'  .- . 	 : 	0. 	o  z  t  t O 	0 	..-..  in 	on  .-: 	Q 	E 	---.i 	0 	Z A% 	C., 	Z., 

iii 

r 

-.a 

o 

n 

Let 

;1. 

.) 



6 
, 	v4 

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

PE
N

S
E

S
 

r:. 

1J 

Oi 

"4 
rn 

0 

z 
LLI 

LLJ 

ce O gi u. 

0 
1-4 
I- 

cd 
CL 
Ict 

O 0 
U- Z 
O I 

Z Z 
LLJ W  0 
E O  CI- 
LLJ 0 Wes  

1-4 
 cr 

in— ILI 
ti) 

.•' 

o 

r
oz 

4.4 

V* 
rr1 

*IND 

Lu 
I 
O 0 
..) 	Z  .4., 	 -.. 	LD Z 	-t  ;.., 	 .- 	 Z 
H 	 .4.  z 	•,‘ 	

4, 

O 4 es 
z 	= 	r  ,.,. .::. 	 4 ..; a., 

.  ..., - x  4:: 	L) 	4.3.  It•,. 4 	9  	at, 	f-.: w 
C1J 	2r  --  0. 	CL  	

.r

- : 	
0  Z  ,,, 	;lc 	u4 r  

s 	z ,r,,w 	❑ 	z ',.i 



Lri :-. ■ .11 
71 	 .7-  

( 
i 

;1'1 (7,  
L1T1 

tvi 

cz) 

a : N 

11:7o di, 

1.17. 

C'.`2 

1-1.1 	 :(1 	 ,11J1 	1.417 
r•J 	 -41 	 .7-t 

0 

z 
0) 
If? 

z 
> 

T. 

LC) 7.4 	C1 - 1 
7,1 

z  7- 41 

7=1  

cr. i 

0 

2 
.777 

47 1. 

N
E

T
 O

P
E

R
A

  T
IN

G
  I

N
C

O
M

E
 

O
P

E
R

A
T
IN

  I
N

C
O

M
E

 



 

■ 

    

N
O

N
M

E
M

B
E

R
 R

O
U

N
D

S
 (

SE
*S

ci
N

,  

.1
.1

Ff
  

       

       

       

       

        

        

         

         

Y
O

U
R

N
A

M
E

.:  
-
I
  

8 

z  , 

T. 

un 

0 
  04.  

C.5 

a . 

 4 

e, 

; 

z- • • ■>_. 

Le! 

.7; 

rt: 

i n 

rcc 

C.) 0 
1.1  

Z  

Z 
0 

•cr. 

LA 

W. 
„ w 
4- 

‘.1 

K
E

Y
  G

O
L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 

MN 



rJ 

4,  0 2 

ce 

mi 

,...., Lo 4 	 174  irt 	::.:,■ 1 	••• Ley 
..--: 

sp 

rn 

r rn co 

P 

g 

X 	0 

734 

ILA 

z w 
g.eS 

1 Z 	 LLJ 
C.; 	 0 	 .

• 	

....: 	0 	 '  ::: 	Ce 
P :-.„-: 	w 	 .... 4  .I,-.? 	;4  w 	6 	il 	 — 	i-o. 	•':; i,..,  1,- 	.._i  in  .:) > 	z   <  z 	<  La ;I.'  liJ 	 Z 	4.   

,-....-,  u., 	0., i---- 0  ii; 	re 	* 	se 	 -:
LrS  

,-,"  > u  zz,  Z  7, 
e..„  61 	 i.,.o 	 ce 

.4  4-..o.  0 	< 	P. 	t 	T•''t 
c it.f 	u.  Lv: 	1-....4  CC, 	u,

▪ 

	a. 	4:1. 	ii.:,' 	;;.,' 

re) 
rt:  ri 	r4 

Pro 

O
P

E
R

A
T
IN

G
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 

N
F
I  

O
P

  I
N

C
O

M
E

 

- 	-; 



.0 
N 

H 

C.) z 

▪ 6.7 

9 W 
  Q C 

••••1'. ; -'24 
•••• 

•• • • 

• - 

• - • • 

• - 

O
P

E
R

N
1_

  
 

_ 

Z 
Z 	

• 

 F 

0 
N 



N 

ilr 

❑
L
V

I N
G

 L
O

A
N

 F
U

  

CC 
CC 
U.; z 
LU 4 

F. 

14
• 

 

2  

 KI 



F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

I 



D
 C

A
S

H
  A

N
D

 D
E

B
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

b 
0 
o. 

c..0 	•c:1- 	OD 	NI  
N 0 NI LO q1 	Cr)  

CO N 	Ln 	,-i 
cn (-4- 	cr 	---4 - 

CD 

Vs  
N. 

V 
M 
•:1-...  
v 

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

sel 	int 
6f11 	74 	10 

44' 

0 

PV 

(s,000 $) 

O 
r'1 

0' 

0 

D
E

S
IG

N
A

T
E

D
 

N 

T
O

T
A

L
 FU

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

T
R

A
D

E
PO

R
T

 T
E

N
A

N
T

S 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

 F
E

E
 (

C
O

P)
  

R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

 LI
N

E
 O

F
 C

R
E

D
IT

 (
PR

O
V

ID
E

N
T

 B
A

N
K

)  

P
S

M
 A

IR
PO

R
T

-  
LE

A
SE

S,
  F

U
E

L
 FL

O
W

A
G

E
 FE

E
S

 A
N

D
 PA

R
K

IN
G

 

G
O

LF
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 F

E
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

 R
E

V
EN

U
ES

 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

PO
R

T
 H

A
N

G
A

R
 A

N
D

 F
U

E
L

 R
E

V
EN

U
E

S 

U
S

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

G
R

A
N

T
  A

W
A

R
D

S
 (S

E
E

P
A

G
E

 #
9
)  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

ER
V

IC
E

 FE
E

 (
C

O
P)

  

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S-

  N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T

 (S
E

E
P

A
G

E
S

 #
5

-
#

8
)  

C
A

PI
TA

L
 EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
-  

G
R

A
N
T

 (S
E

E
P

A
G

E
 #

4
)  

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 N
H

-  
PO

ST
  R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

IH z 
0 

< • 
F-) 	CA.  

2: 0- a (f) 0 Lu ,_'• 
LLI < Lu 	Z 0:...' = in  
121(....) 	0<1.....< 

0 5 0 114 172 II_ U 
161 0 1-1-1C 	U < O UDI  

: cam :  
f:  

1,-, _, 	op 
,--; w 	u-i 

1w 1-<-n- 5l.)w,._: 
' 	1-- j-L. 	(f) '=', t.—.3(.9< 	D — '—"`D'.- (f) NI - .--, (f) -1-_, Li U-. 	D 0 

I—  t-L-I r--1 co 	0 .....- --I Ca  Z .--, •-• - 	—I<ZD 
< II; <g7C1-1U- (/) 0 	in y D.q.7  ui '0' Ill 	00e!oL", 0<b 0  
011- ui  

C.C1 1—  < U.)  
< I—  r.--' 	w LL ,-- IJ-1 

Q- 0= 
LI-I 0.- 0 	'-' 1- °---DU u_i 	, 	>, °-- Lu I- =1, =U uL-1 <c f—Lu=r5.,.. 

H ;-nZu) u) -' (-) H 1- u_i uil-<Lu = ozI-Luia' 
2:e! u 00-u-I 

,--,1-1-117,' D 	tr -',_,Lu  a j>-: 01-  
N I-  crGipr; Eow <  

ti-21- z 	DDI-v 
F-' -±-18-2 	c-DJ O672C21 
1-0<>< nzz<Z <1-031-t-I U-,-,U< 

CD CD 	0 0 CT 
N 	N 

c.0 
tC).  

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 
rl
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

C 
C 



LO 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

G
R

A
N

T
 A

W
A

R
D

S  
(S

E
E

 P
A

G
E

  #
9
)  

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 T

E
N

A
N

T
S 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

-  
( P

SM
)  

P
SM

 P
A

Y
  F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 / 
 F

L
O

W
A

G
E

 

G
O

L
F 

C
O

U
R

SE
 

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
-  

N
E

T
 

U
S

E
  O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

0 

	

OLn 	c) 	at • ix) c) a-  co 

	

N. 0,1 N 	N 

	

LO 	71`. 	 Lc) 	
cn 	co N N 
• CO 	N 	LC) 	 O rn C rs

▪  

l 	 01 	 L.n 	rci 	(N.  

LL 

IN  

ri 

co in c) 	Ln co 
00 	N Lt) Lf) 	LC, 7-1 
N rn MnIn  N 

- 	

LO

- 

 N 
CO 	 CO GO 

rsj 

Nr1
•Zr  

:41 

C1 

ZI 

1-1 

0 
0 

CO 
CO 

N.1 

c) 
,x)Ln 

N 
Ln 

0 
mN 

In 

N 

LC) 
N 
N 

N 
 in 

N. 

N 

N 
N 

in 
CO 

OLn 
Lc) 

N 

N 
 in 0 

LC) 

Ln 
t.to 

Ln 
LO 

0 

.r.-1 

N 

cp 
O 

c) 
O 
CO 

O 	0 ill 
rn 
00 O CO 

N ri 

O 	CD Li) C) 	Lfl 	,--, co 
Lc, 

▪ 	

N 	 cn 	1i 

	

c
N
n MN 	cr.) 

N 

LC)) 

 

rl 

0° 1 
rc:41 

oo co 0 0 t.n 
N. N. Ln 
CO N 

0 

Co CD 
N 

0 LC) LO 

O. N N N 
LLI 

11:4 

S91 
co LC) 

N 

Er) 
N 

0 
N 
N 

0 
tf) 

CO LO 	0 	 LO 
LO 

- N 	CN• N' 	 1-r3 

I 

LC) LO o 	In 	'cr 
c0ri LC) TI" N 	 0 

N 

 

ZI 0 

N 

c',1‘11 

0)) 

CI' 

1.11 

(NI 

co 

CO 

Ln 

N 

LO LC) 
N 

NN 

oo 

oncii  coin  

co  
,_ i 
00 

0 in 

e°  Crj 
4.  

*--1  

01 CO 

0'1 

N 

Ln 

00 

M 

N 
CO m 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
  E

X
PE

N
S

E
S 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 

S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 N

H
-  

P
O

S
T

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

CO 
CO 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 



P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 (E X
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 T

H
E

 D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O
F

 P
O

R
T

S
 A

N
D

 H
A

R
B

O
R

S
)  

LU 
LEI 

F:t1 

VI 

z8  

otl 

QI 
Llj u1 

51 

El 

ON 	 NI 

1‘) 
1411 N 

C  • 

	

`411 

N 	LEIN 

▪ M.1 
LA 
rl 

CNI 

CD CO C) 
C) 	N 	

col 

rl 

CD 	 CD 
Ln 	O 	 N CO 

U.) 
Ti 	 N 

©
7-1 CO 0 

0 7-1 0 00 0 
N N 

0 a 
z Z 	z 
a ...--, < ,--, 	0 

z E z  
1,.., 	

u ,P. u cp. 
(7, 4. (z) u 	D 

Z 	 w I-- 
61.1 	Cj. 	0 r,I 0 Lb 	cn 

d 	0 0- 0 0- 	o 
0 

L7i -•=i' (7) 'Zi Lu 
di 	 z  ,.._., z 	 ce 
X 	H <z < z 	•1- 
t-I 	 X ,-. X .-+ au &) Ill b LL1 b 	vs ec  	_., 	. 

L) 	a

- 

 D < p 	>- 1 uj 	Z W Z 	 < Z 8 	— 1-- — 1— 	- 
g cd 	

E . z v, , z z ,, 0 Lu 0 	, z (,,_ .7-. 

0 
0 	N N 

qt 
at 

7.3 T1 M 

CD CD 
C3 CD 

7-1 

Ln Ln1 	 LI) 

751 

A
 S

O
U

T
H

 H
O

L
D

 B
A

Y
 (
A

IP
 67

)  

P
E

A
S

E
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

-A
R

B
O

R
E

T
U

M
 A

V
E 

 

FR
O

N
T

 E
N

D
 S

N
O

W
 C

O
M

PA
C

T
 **

 

S
N

O
W

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 A

PR
O

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

  (
S

B
G

 9
)  

L
O

W
E

R
Y

 LA
N

E
 P

A
V

IN
G

 

      



E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

  
R

A
N

T
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
  

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 

00 OA 0 0 
es1 	P+1 	Peb 	qt 	SI 

rl 	W
VD 	 P,1 	01 

Ift IA 0 0 0 LeD 

mlLL 

zi 

O 	 to 	U) N 	r-I 

L11 

r-11 

H 	 in in 	 OI k.o LI7 	 (NI 
0 

, 	LO 	 9 	0 , 	■ c ■ 

tilliV) 

(71 	
0 to , o 

tn 	N 

N0.1 1 

A
R

E
 U

PG
R

A
D

E
S

 **
 

M
IC

R
O

S
O

F
T

 S
O

 

M
A

IN
 S

E
R

V
E

R
 R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N
T

 **
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 S
Y

ST
E

M
 

PA
Y

C
H

E
X

 P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 K

IS
O

SK
S 

D
U

M
P

 T
R

U
C

K
 W

IT
H

 P
L

O
W

 *
* 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E
M

E
N

T
S

 *
* 

G
E

O
 T

H
E

R
M

A
L

 P
U

M
PS

  *
* 

C
O

U
R

S
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 *
* 

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 G

O
L

F
 C

A
R

T
S

 **
 

C
L

U
B

H
O

U
SE

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 *
* 

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

  U
P

G
R

A
D

E
S

  

LuUl 

81 



O 
O 

+A- 
ti 
0 

Lel 	
LI 	 9-1 	 N 

©01 ©00 LA 000000 

v.9  

UI0 

0>1 z 

O 	 °I 

CO 

0 	Li) 

51 1 

0 Lc) 	 Ln 	o 
o 	N 
(y) 

n1 

        

13
9 

IN
SP

E
C

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
  *

* 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
PA

N
S

IO
N

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 C

A
R

PE
T

IN
G

 **
 

A
IR

F
IE

L
D

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

-  
L

E
D

 *
* 

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 **
 

R
E

P
E

A
T

E
R

S
 **

 

L9 
a: 

        



0 

JE
T

 A
 F

U
E

L 
T

A
N

K
  *

* 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L *
* 

C
C

TV
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 G
A

TE
S

 **
 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
 **

 

D
O

O
R

  A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
TR

O
L *

* 

T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 R
E

LA
M

P
IN

G
 **

 

F
U

E
L 

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 C
R

E
D

IT
  C

A
R

D
 

R
E

R
O

O
F

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 **

 

S
R

E
 D

O
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

1— o ti 

0 0 0 0I 
0 	PS PS -I 	N It 

PA 	IA 	0 14 	FA IA! N 	N 	7•1 	sri N 
7-1 

F21 

0 
0 

01 
0) 

1-1 1-1 

1-1 	3-11 

01 1 
N 

0 

LUCI1 

zl 

Ul0 

8 1 z 

01 

N 

N 	 N 

511  

O 	 LA LA LA LAI LOI 	 N 



N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T

  R
E

IM
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

  

 

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 

 

   

UIsu  

z 

'061 

6.1 

D 

z 

T
A

N
K

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 **

 

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 (

ID
D

E
)  

C
O

R
PO

R
A

T
E

 D
R

IV
E

-  
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 

U) 
1-1 L4I 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 F
L

E
E

T
 R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

PA
IN

T
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
 **

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
N

FR
A

ST
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 **
 

M
O

W
E

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

JO
H

N
 D

E
E

R
E

 T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

C
R

A
C

K
 S

EA
L

IN
G

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

 *
* 

T
R

A
C

K
 S

K
ID

 M
O

W
E

R
 **

 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

O
N

-G
R

A
N

T
 

R
E

IM
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
EC

T
S  

CO 0 O 0 01 
7.1 0 

VD 	

CO .fl0 WI  CO 0 ,1-1 !A CO 
CO°  

,171‘ 
0 
O 
O 

(s4 

N 	C. 
N  

03 

cr) 	co 	' 	
1-02)1 (NI 

O 
	

OIlfl 

0 
	

El 

0 
c-I 

OI 

CIO  

OI 

N 

GOI
O  

GOILe) 



zl CD 
	ion 

ri 

UI 

81 z 
LO 	 CD 

U 
01 N 

CD LA 	CD 
CO N 	O i0 

zl 

N 

0 
cn 

00 

Ln 
00 
N 

LA 
N 

CPI 

00 
N 

ri 

Ps) 

1.1 )1 

OI 

OOI
N  

MIIri 

rl 

ri 

14111 

N IA 	0 	0 0 	CO 	1.11 

	

N 0 	 N 	N CO N N  0 0 

I— z 
g 

0 o 	 w z z 	z 	 o a < a 	0p 	z Z 
CD ks) (9 © 	t 	

0 
0_ 	D Z Z Z E 

n ,--i 	(f) r■i 	M 	 in 
U.1 I: LLJ -V- LLJ V- 	 cc 

0 r ,,, 	a Lc, 	I— 	 0 
v) v) 	00 
z 	 m 
0 	 oc 

5 6 < 
< z < z 	 z 0 

i: 	> w 

ce  CL  < Z Z 
LLI U 	 < ■-• 0- P

O
R

T
S

M
O

U
T

H
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

w 
 
t
 

w 
 b

 

1-1 	 0
 

U
 
	

-J 

< D < D
 

Z 	 z 	 >-
 •-.. 	 F .  ,..-, 	 °
 

■ --. F-
 
	 ■ - ■

 
F-

 

W
H

E
E

L
  L

O
A

D
E

R
  

L
O

W
E

R
Y

 L
A

N
E

 P
A

V
IN

G
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
A

P
R

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N
 (

S
B

G
-7

)  



   

0
5
-3

1
-
2
0
2
1
 

Ln 
c0 

  

    

LU 
Ce 
VU 

I-1 0 
0 
N 
u) < 
ed 
> 

H z 
0 

LU z 
0 
ILI 
F- 

25 
111 

H 

31V/i 

O 

0 

tn 	o 	t 	o 	n 

T
H

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
N

T
 

12
-3

1-
2
0
2
2
 

N
O

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 

Lc) 
r. 

Lri 	 •71"-' 

T
E

R
M

  D
A

T
E

 

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
 

u. 
0 
LU 
N 

Z 
X 0 

 M 
LU z g 

o 



> 
-o 

0 

(s,000 $) 

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

gq Pd 	 CO N N 
"I L0 	 01 
4.0 e-] tN N 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

 L
O

A
N

 F
U

N
D

 

H
A

R
B

O
R

 D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
  

FO
R

E
IG

N
 T

R
A

D
E

  Z
O

N
E

 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

:  

D
E

S
IG

N
A

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

  

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

 

m al 00 (5) 
IN 	 CA 0 
Ps 	 CV CO 

4 

N 	 0 0 0 NI CD CO C71 
00 N LO CO 0 LO 1-1 

LO M 1-I rl 	 LO If) CO 00 	 N' 	C71 
CO 

_en 
0 
0 
0 

LLI 

LL 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S

 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 / 

 W
H

A
R

FA
G

E
 

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 R
E

N
T

A
L

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
C

E
S

S
IO

N
S

 

F
U

E
L

 PR
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 F

E
E

S 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 N

H
-  

P
O

S
T

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 

U
SE

S O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
  

'.4 
co 
co 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

1— 
Z 

O 

NI 
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
  O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 



00
N  

Cn 

Li") 

OM 
CO 
N 

CT 
N 
01 

N 
0 ") 

N. 
0 

01 0 0 0 0 PI  0 0 r'i N100 0 0 CO 0 
N s-i 0 O N N 	CO N. 0 g-I N. NI CO NI NI 
0 	lf, 	I-1 	.1-3 	tv0 	CO 	tO, 	.fl 	,,,-1 	,ri 	GO 	 N 

,r 	 NON 

N 	 0 v.) 	N 	c) 0 CO N CO 	 CO 
LO N 	 N 

N 	 N 

CO 
CO 

O 
N  

ri 

vi
co'  
GO 

O 

co 

O 
ri 

rl 

ri 

N 0 

71-  
CO 

vim] 

CO GD 

N 
1-1 

43,41 
.zr 

Qf N 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

co 
en "41 
tCl 
tO 

091 
LA 

O 

LI) 
LD 

LULn 

Ln 
L ID 

CO 
liD 

CO 
110 

CO 
Lo 

c) 
GO 

0 
OD 

LC) 
N 

0 
v 

. 

I 

I 

I 

L() 

CD 

0 

c) 
-4 

0 
In 

Ln 
CO 

0 
CO 

LO 

■ 

Ln 
N 
,-4 

, 

I 

LC) 

Ln 

Lni 

.--I 

ool 
C) 
N 

M 
N 
T-11 

rn 
CO 

/ 11 

0 
74- 

111 

0 
LI) 

Ln 
N. 
.-i 

Ln 
LID 
N 

c) 
1- 

 .,--i 

Ln 
CO 

O 

uD 
LD 

N. 

Ln 
N 

111 
N 

-,--1 
N 

LU 
CO 

i 

N 

LU 
- I 

N 
.,--1 

N 
.,-I 

LU 
.,.-I 

Lo 
.-T 

M 
i 

M 

N 

C`i 
7-1 

CO 
.-1 

N 
•,-I 

N 
.,-i 

CT 

00 

a) 

CFI 

CO 

CO 

' 

' 

0 
.,-i 

■ 

7.1` 

' 

' 

0 	, 
••-• 

■ 

LC) 111 M I 	O lO N cn 	 oo tD 
N N Ln 	 l0 rn 

M 

Ln 
U-1 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
 R

E
T

IR
EM

E
N

T
 

FU
E

L
 PR

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S  

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 /

  W
H

A
R

FA
G

E
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 

C)
 

F
U

E
L

 SA
LE

S 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 FE

E
S 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 FU
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 

S
O

U
R

C
E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

0 

LLUe l 

LiJ 

O 

OI 

= I 



N 

N N 

N 

N I 

N 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

P
IE

R
 U

SA
G

E
 F

E
E

S 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
  

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
  O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

O 
z 

eNNI  r.1 
0 

gl 

	MI 

—11 	011 
D i 	en 

crialnl 	N 

CO 	 I 	001 

CO 	 c01 

CO N 

00 

CO 

CO N 

CO 

Co 

0 31 :1 

NI 	031 	MI 
1 

NI 	UDI 
O 

001 	CNI 

N 

k.01 
O N 

ooi 	

GI N 

NI vD1 	r11 

cp 	NIis)  
N 

NI 	tO1 

M 

I 	col 	raj 
M 

Go 

goi 	6n1 
ILI 	Pe) 

CO N 	 N 

 

F
U

E
L

 FL
O

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S 

 

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

-  
( C

B
O

C
)  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
  

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 



B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S  
A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 IN

C
O

M
E-

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

L
O

A
N

 R
E

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

S 

N
E

W
 L

O
A

N
S

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
  F

U
N

D
S

  

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 IN

C
O

M
E

-L
O

A
N

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

 

t- 
o 

▪ N NI 
Ell 	LTD 
LLI 

N 	it 

N 	NI 	Lnl 	 Lr) 

- N NI Lill N NI 	DI 

O 
▪ N NI N 1 I NI 	Cl 

N N 
c•:‘ 
LC) 

I 	MI 0 N NI 

(7) N NI 	
741 

0 N 

N N 	I cr, 

(7) N NI t 	N 
I 	NI 

LE) 
Lu 

H 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

UIO 
	

N.C1N 

0.1 
1.1.1 	NI 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 



es1 
I 

	I 
	

CO !,11 

71- (.41 

N '1 

' I 

N N N 

LU 
Lu 

0 

(1) O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

ES
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

I C
E

S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
 

U
S

E
  O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

0,1 

8 1 z 

OI 

chi 	L.r) 	' I 	in 

gl 

Is' 	 N 	' 1 	N  JI 

chi 

O 

z 
LI. 

z 
O 
N 

V) 

O Ce 
CO 0 

• 0 
Z 

= 

O U '4 
o z 

j  161 

z 
1-4 > 4 el 
1-4 1— ex  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Ferrini: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby accepts 

the recommendation of the Finance Committee and accepts and approves 

the proposed FY 2022 Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Budget and FY 

2023 - FY 2025 O&M Forecast; all in accordance with the documentation 

submitted by Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 FY 2022 Operating Budget.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



o.1•4„_ 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 55 Interm;qional Dr... 	,-)ortsmouth, 	03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Date: 	June 8, 2021 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance 

Subject: FY 2022 Operating Budget and FY 2023-FY 2025 Forecast Overview 

In anticipation of the upcoming June 14t h  Pease Development Authority Finance Committee (the Committee) 

meeting, we need to secure their favorable recommendation of the FY 2022 Operating Budget and FY 2023-FY 2025 

Forecast. The following is an overview of the Operating Budget process and corresponding results: 

On an annual basis, the Finance Department works together with the Department Management (DM) team and the 

Executive Director in preparation of the annual Operating Budget. Key assumptions and financial targets are 

discussed with the Executive Director at the start of the process. 

Using historical benchmarks, cost driver assumptions and current year-to-date information, the Director of Finance 

(DOF) prepares an initial forecast for the remainder of the fiscal year as well as a proposed budget for the subsequent 

fiscal year and a forecast for the next thirty-six months. 

The DOF meets with each DM to review the initial forecast and budget. Current cost drivers such as the number of 

flights, cost of fuel, fee increases, staffing changes, etc. are discussed in detail relative to each business unit. The 

budget is then updated, and a comprehensive review is performed for reasonableness and adherence to financial 

targets prior to a final review with the Executive Director. 

The current FY 2022 proposed budget identifies total revenues of $17.1 million which is a $767,000 increase (4.7%) 

over the prior year budget. Main drivers of this increase include the following: 

• Golf revenue increase of $365,000 due to a projected increase in rounds played and previously 

approved fee increases. 

• Division of Ports and Harbors revenue increase of $182,000 resulting from increased mooring fees, 

registration fees and fuel sales over prior year due to the full operation of fuel services at the 

Portsmouth Fish Pier. 

• Fuel flowage fee increase of $162,000 for the Portsmouth Airport is associated with an increase 

in pricing of $0.01 per gallon as well as an anticipated increase in consumption. 

• A 2.0% average rent increase in Building and Ground leases for the Tradeport during FY 2022. 

Relative to operating expenses, the FY 2022 budget reflects a $269,000 decrease (1.9%) from the FY 2021 budget. 

Total operating expenses, excluding depreciation of $7.1 million, equals $13.9 million. The more significant cost 

drivers supporting this decrease include: 

TAKING YOU THERE 

p h 603-433-6088 
	

Tax: 503-427-0433 	www.peasedev.ofr 



• Interest expenses decrease of $229,000 as the FY 2021 budget assumed higher debt balances 

associated with major capital expenditures. 

• Environmental testing expenses decrease of $194,000-while we still expect to incur costs 

related to environmental conservation, we project they will be lower than previously anticipated. 

• Law Enforcement (LEO) security expenses decrease of $141,000. The FY 2021 budget 

incorporated higher plane enplanements. 

• Snow related expenses are lower by $95,000 over the FY 2021 budget. The FY 2022 budget 

assumes 15-20 snow related instances which represents a three-year average. 

• Decreases in expenses are offset by a budgeted increase in property and liability insurance 

of $107,000 for FY 2022. We reached out to our insurance brokers who projected increases 

between 10% and 15% for the upcoming renewal, although these could fluctuate as we get 

closer to our renewal period later this calendar year. 

• Other increases include golf cart leases and merchandise (volume related), cleaning 

contract (COVID related) and technology expenses. 

Annual salary expenses are budgeted for a maximum 3.5% increase which include an anticipated 1.5% COLA 

adjustment and merit increases capped at 2.0%. 

For FY 2022 we are budgeting operating income on a cash basis (excluding depreciation) of $3.4 million. In 

any given year, positive cash margins are used to fund capital expenditures (non-grant related) which helps 

minimize the need to borrow external funds. 

In summary, we believe the FY 2022 proposed Operating Budget, as well as the three-year forecast, 

represent a fair and prudent budget. Our Department Management team is committed to managing and 

controlling expenses for their cost centers, seeking efficiencies, and researching ideas for additional 

revenue streams. 

At your convenience, I would be pleased to address any questions or need for supplemental information 

that you may have. 





Lu 

Gt. 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 

S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
 A

N
D

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 C
H

A
R

T
 

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

  

C
O

M
P

O
S
IT

E
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
 O

F
 C

A
S
H

 A
N

D
 O

U
T

S
T

A
N

D
IN

G
  D

E
B

T
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
  

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

IO
N

S
 

1-1 1-1 	
CO 	vl 
1-1 	N 

1;1 	 A 	Q1 	N 
v-I 	rl 	N 

U 
LU 

0 
U.. 
1/1 
CN 
O 

›- 
LL 

M 

O 

>- 
11. 

0 

gi 
I- 0 

N 
W 
Z 

CO 

F 

0 

0 

›.• 
LL 

0 

0 

O
F

  C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

  



- 

cN1 

uu 
z 
UJ 

0 

(11 

0 
LU z. 
-e 

IA 

Ui 
a. 

1- 
En 
u-I 

rf 
U. 
0 

I■•• 

tu 
In 
z 
lir 

X 

▪ iu  
iu 

W 

• 

0 

Z 

• 

Z 
••••i 

U1 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

  T
E

S
T

IN
G

 

1.4 
ce 

U 
11.1 
11/ 
0 

G
O

L
F

 C
A

R
T

 L
E

A
S

IN
G

  &
 M

E
R

C
H

A
N

D
IS

E
 

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

/ T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

  

S
N

O
W

 R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
  C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

0 N • T-1 
O 

; 	XI 	co 
0 0 0 0 

IS 1 	N. N Cr) 
(N 	CT) 
N. 

1..C1 	71' 	L.1 

- 1-1 

rl of 	In 	L.r.) o 

01 

P
S

M
- P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 R

E
N

T
A

L
 

4 
(.3 

0 LL 
N 
O 
N 

LL 

N 
O N 
LL 
0 

< 
I- o N 

W 
OZ 

ri 

z 

0 

0 

LL 
0 

0 

0 
Le 

st 

O 	
< 

Fi 

ILD 

< (f) Z 

Q WLU 
> 	(I) CO 	LU LU 	cr) 	< 

Ct. — 	I-11  
O^N F cC  

(Y) 
(N 	Lu  LU 

(N 
 rj 4A- 	1°  

r\1 LL 	0 LU 
>_ C)  
U.. u) 0? CO H 
• ui T-1 T-1 CZ 
Lu 	LL  

 0 I 	

o 
4(9 

"' 	(1)  
Q- 
O 0 (4)  U 

CL uj ce 2 < 
LU G.  U 

X 111  LI- < 
F- WO O> 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 



(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

):
  

LU 

0  
LU 

U 
LU 

uJ 



sO p•q N 
0 t•-. 

.N Cr) 
711 -  N 

:741, Ln 
.61 06 
ri N 

O 

oci

In  

N 

0 • IT) CO 
en 0 t.D 

	

. 	. 	. 

	

co 	•,-.1 	0 
N 

re 
0 
I . 

N 
O 
N 

LL 

NI N 
0 N 
LL 
0 

< 

W 0 
N 

W  
Z 
D 

03 

0 

O 

LL 
0 

0 

0 

ta 
O 

fl 

p 

 

VI 
ts1 < 
0 u 
N w 

U. 0 

	

I- 	e 

	

m u) 	r.._ 

	

N 4 	C3 

	

o u 	,-L 

	

N w 	rY-1 
f- 12  u. 0 

kb 

d 

tA 
N 
0 U 
N 

LL 0 

L
IF

E
  I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

  

k.c
• 

G
R

O
U

P
 I
I 

F 

0 Of fr) 
0 ko 
CO 

LL 

44
(E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 

LU 
U z 
z 

u_ 	< 0 	LU 	u_ v) 
eC 	Lu 0< 0 	>- 
I— 	cri  S 	LU s  
U 	D cl_  

H 
 0 	
1-- Ct 	0_ 	V) LLJ 	< 

'6 	0 

• • 
\ LU 	W ID 

--I 	 0 __I 	= U  < 	Li 	I- 	0 00 
1--, 	I- z 0 

< 	-1 	H 	isi 	CO U 
LI! 	< 

C 	I- 
(..) 	0 	Ul 	

> 

I- --I 	< p 0 
(1) 	V) 	< 11-I  
ILI 	IZ, 	 _1 	w 7.1 0 

u_ 	c) 	° --I  I- 
I•4 
	U 	< 	LU < 

< 	 CI_ 	LU LL 0 
LL 	H 	1.- 	CL Ce 	111 u 
LLI 	(/) 	

u) 
1-1 	 < 0 	>- z U IL 	_J 1-  1-1 Z 1- 

W 	Z 	›'' W ■.(;) 	-J 
D Vc Z 

al 	I-U 	 cn (c:4) 	U_ LU Ili ce 	D 	1:( Ln 	I n LIJ 
0 	tY 	in 	W • 	U-I •• ' co ca 0 
Z 	 LLI 	 r-I 	Cl- LL.1 < U U 

Z 
	U 0 0 ce > 

 U) 	
Z I-U 	1-  D < < 	1-1 ILI 	H °- I 0 Z 	U ILI 

o 	u_ 	171. 	t■ X 	>-LLI CD  (f)-  QC 
Z ui  

0 	
LL 	rt W  W 1-1  
0 	W 0 > I-  0 

re 	Z 	 E H m< (DLU .cC  
W 	IT 	CC 

H 	
>- H  ce 0  (I) 	u. 	0 

U) D 111 
_1 	< 	U 	< Z Lu co  -I 
LUI- 	I-U 	_I i_ 	03 

1--1 . 	
< I- V) z g 8 L-5 Z 0 

Z ..., 	 n .--.. 	
o f -J ,.. 	LL _j 

< 	'-' Z 
0 	I. 	IL < 	< NZ 	I-  w 

1•1 Lu Li_  
(1) 	Z 	0  a. 	z (i) 	w 1-. 1 0 Lu 	I- 	Z D 	Z -1- Lu ILI 	E 	Z Z 	< ri O. 	w 	Lu 0 	0 	LLI V) c9 

Lu 	
0:1 c)-  Q  'in' 	W  Ct 	5 H 

(9 	U 	W V) 	>-Q 	LLI  < Z  1 

ZZ Z Ce „ILI 0 ...I W 2 LU 
m 1-1 1/4-/ --I 0 Z u 

> 11- 	0 LL. 	 W D
Cr) 	

2 U Lii  LU u j 
< 	Z 	Ce 	1J-1 < 	U. Z a_ 
I- 
Li) 



A
N

N
I

E
 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 F

R
IN

G
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 E
S

C
A

L
A

T
I 

— 
0 2 
Z/ 
u- 
u. o 
44 12- P

O
S

T
  R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

 C
O

S
T

S
-  

R
A

T
E

 R
E

V
IE

W
 E

V
E

R
Y

  J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
  1

ST
.  

I 0 
(D Z 
Dc:t_is 
O —I 
mr-M 0 w 

p>-- 
< o< 

O mw 	a  ,Lnic,_,<I__ 

,, 

CL 

ui mw  I— 	 03 

N 

O 
af 

U H E 0 

	

LI_ 	 U1 
I- 

UJ U L 	L u Lu 

	

izics>... 	 w 

	

—J 	
0 a 

	

IL W  —I 	 -I 	 H 	 in 

	

Ce  frj < 	 N 
111 	 •Lt Cr) 

	

NI < 	
IN 
N 

	

Lir 

• 

< D 	Cu 	
N 

> 01—z 	 IN u_i 	 >- 

	

.., CI- Z z 	 >- °'- 	'-,-.1 	 u. 

	

W < 	
U- 0 \M ta CL 

—, 	
t4 
0 1

• 

:.r71 () 
O 0 	 .0 . 	 el 

	

0" 	 0 	 >,- 

	

H j. W  0 	
a 

—J CL 	 r,:. 	0 
03 	 H 	 z .., 

O I! 	
Lf1 	 CO (I) 	 < N 
N 	 IN < 	c.., 	 I- 0 

	

0 u 	f.
. 	 Lu N 

Ow (N u_i 

---1 	
:4-,2 	

>. - C'L' 	 n D ° Z 

	

0 .: I— 	
: 	 11- 0 	,,. 	 CO , 

W Z U) 	 U._ 	 . 
> (..nri., 	

,  . 	F.. w 

1(.7) >- 	
E.g 

	

V) ea  > 0 	 Or) 
1.0 	 0 	

t.,.1". 
a-'   0. 

	

W 0 r- in 	 ("NI 111 	',..0 	
0 

fY W 	CL 	 rsi (f) 	 N 

CDO 	
° 0 IN 0_   • 

N o 
N 

	

CD Z - la.< 	 ;--- o 	 )- 
< W W  cn 	 u_ 
,0 v.__]<rn 
I— u_ 
(r) 
w"Ow 
D120> 

z (.) 

w 
...., 
< ke 

09 
N 	 cTil i  

r
lur)-  

	

rA < 	

u. 
0 Lu u) 0 
0 
a 

Z (f) < O III  0  U 

O z = 	 _ oz. 6_ 0 
< a- 	 u_ 

O WW 0  
U --I 	........ 

CO 0 
< <<< 	 0 0 o 0 
O 1-4 11-0 	 o 

C
o o 

	

mcCeLm 	 .Ki- 	c.-) 	c-,, 	-.1 

w << Lu  
7-  ss o a 

LU 



R
A

T
E

  P
E

R
 G

A
L

L
O

N
 

O 
N 

O Lc) 
O 
O 
-EA- 

O 
to 
O 

O 

O 

O 

O 
-EA- 

O 

O 

O 
O 
N 
N 

r‘i 

O 
O 
1.0 

N-. 

1 0 
0 
0 

05" 
P 

0 
O 
c;- 

 c) 

C) 
O 
C) 

O 

0 

P
R

W
E

C
T

E
D

 G
A

L
L

O
N

S
  

N 

N 

f7. H-7,.  rF 

is 

0 
0 
fA 

Lfl (P) 
N < 

N W 

11. 0 
LL 

(i) 
N < 
O U 
N LLI 
›. CC 
U. 0 

IL 

C 

CL 

C 
Ix; 

O 

N 

45A- 

d. 

C) 
fl 

N 

"-A 

crl 
N 
N 
In 

 

O 
N 

kip q 
1/40 

N N 
N 

N 
ri N 

0 
N 
co 

0 
0 
N 

O 
O 

P
A

S
S

E
N

G
E

R
 P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
:  

F-
ill (0) 
N < 
0 U 
N LLI 
›- Cg 
LL 0 

U. 

i-
d.  in 
N 
0 U 
N 
›- 
LL 0 

LL 

N < 
0 U 
esi 
›- 
IL 0 

U. 

• NW tu 
O 1° o
a. e4 

 rt 

• 

LL 
a. 

• (f) 
N < 

N
U 
LL1 
eg 

U. 0 
U- 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  
K

E
Y

  P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 A

S
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

S
 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

F
U

E
L

 F
L

O
W

A
G

E
 F

E
E

S
:  

U 

0 
U. 
In 
N 
0 
N 

LL 
M N 
0 
N 
)- 
u. 
a 
z 
tN 

o 
ILI N 
LI  ILI 

Z 
D 

0 

LL 
0 

O 

O 
ec 



S
S

U
M

P
T

I 
K

E
Y

  P
L

A
N

N
I

N
G

 

I- . 
--I

 
	 F-  eZ

 
	 Cr)

 
 L I-I  U

 In  

LLI
 D 

	 D
 

Lu
 	

H , , L
LJ I-U

 

111
 0
 
	 u)

 

—1
 
	

n
  z
 

uj C
 

 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U
T

H
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

  A
IR

P
O

R
T

 (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

(f) 

_J 
(.1-3 
u_ 

Lu 
(9 

Lu 
U) 
(f) 

o_ 
0 

0 

w w w 

0 (-9 
 Z z 

< z 
W < 
co --I 
O 0  H z 
LU 

Z 

Z < 
0 I 
U U C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 N

E
W

 H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

 A
IR

C
R

A
F

T
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S
 

E
X

P
E

C
T

 T
O

 R
E

C
E

IV
E

 $
1
. 5

 M
IL

L
IO

N
 IN

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

C
A

R
E

S
 A

C
T

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 F
O

R
 FY

2
1

.  

op 

(/) 

U 

0 

In 
N 
0 
N 

0 
N 
>- 
u. 
0 
Z 
< N 
I- LLI 
° 
° Z 
7 

,-, 
(.9 

a. 
0 

1.4 

>- 
u. 
0 
1.1.3 

0 

0 
EL 

cn 
in 0 Li, 

LL,>- ,-,--' 
_I 0 
D _J :L- 

cZ 	0 M  >- F- 	 0 	LLI  I- Z 	 LL LU 	-i-  11-1  
< 	

;22 F-  U a T <  

H I-I  
ry> 	 0 2_ W 2  r (I)  

W Lu 	 LLI D LU Z iy < D Lu 

-I U)> 	I-1  1--1 eL 0 Z u) 	 •.-... f n 	LL D I-- 	 x .;" g 	u. 0, CC= 
Z I.71( 	 .Z 	<11.100 
Z u_ 	 g Lu < 	fm. iy In ,--1 

0 0 	
,., U lii 	(i) < -/ %;# < > 	Li_ _I LI- 

U 
z 	 O—'--I 	1-  I-1-- 0 

< 0 	 W °-  g 0.4 I- N 
I- < N  w  

1E5 I:<- 	
11 Z 
ce 	Ln 	g (1)" NCD  f3T--i  

I—I H 

Q D 	 u >- >- LU 
, .1"  Z(f)  ZI-1 	lij < I-L  I- 

Z 

Z  
..• i__, 1-1 	,,,, a u j  < 

LT. 12 	 LL Li. Z 0 
C9 0 	 0 Lcij  < < E g (9z 

f n 	Z 	III Z U 	 I— w ,̀-' re 0> ici-i_ 
1=1  0 	 Z (9 It; 	ILI < U- 
LU z 	 ILI < a i- I-- z i _< Y 
ce 	 XCeD 	o< Zu) 
< (1) 	 uj LLI -I 	1-1 . - I__ . 

< 0 
u > U Z1-- 	 ___i }- 1-  •-•-' 

OWZ 	 ce 0 X < < 
• 	 0 U U-I H M H  _i ILI y ,I- 	 u. ›- 0 	z i--1 -r ___ 

D Lu %.../ 	 Lu u 6- u 
z z ‹ 	 z H N 	I- 1---1 Z  

Ii2-2 	U-I Z Et I—I  
F- 2, F- 	 D 
Z 0_ Z 	 u t U< (f) 

 0 

0 z 0 	 < Lu w z  Lu _J 
U W U 	 (n 0 ,--, < 0- < 

0 w __J 	 r i z 
D N Lr) 

tY 111 	eC 	u_ W 	a „Ill rn >1.  
U > 	 U OX 	

LU _.,e'-' cr) < 
Z LU 	 -/- 	X 	(J) -' .--i 0 
i-; 0 	 -'-- Z LIJ 	<(J -LA- 

0 11_1 	 [-17; 0 w 	CD I- 	f2  LL u j 
I-  U 	 1--:' -I 	V) Z  0 0- 

	

,p_ U 	)--1 LLI 

C 



K
E

Y
  P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
)  

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

N
O

  C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I
N

 H
A

N
G

A
R

 A
N

D
  O

R
 T

IE
 D

O
W

N
  R

E
N

T
A

L
  R

A
T

E
S

.  

(I) 
Z 

0 
0 

0 

cY 

Z 

LL U 
Oz 0 < 

> 
z 

< 
0. o 
• < 
t.) 
p0 
• Z 
LLI 

• Z 0 Ili 
(J) 
wZ  

Ur 1-1-1 
w e  
Z as 

1-LI 
U 

M 
Z C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 N

E
W

 H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

 A
IR

C
R

A
F

T
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S
  

G
R

O
S

S
  S

A
L

E
S

  

C
O

S
T

 O
F

 G
O

O
D

S
 S

O
L

D
 

0 
0 
N 

1-1 

'-I 
 

O 

N 

N 
N 
to 
-(FA- 

4 

CO 

CO 
N 

1:  

Lfl 

)- 
cn 

In 
N 
0 
N 
>- 
U. 

en N  
N 
O N 
LL 
0 
Z 
6 N 

 I- 
11.1 N 
OW 

Z 
" 

0 
0 

>" 

VI 
0 
0 

F
U

E
L

 S
O

L
D

 

LU 
• Z 

E 0 
Z CI: 

O I-U D 
cL 
,°- 0 ce 
< E 

cc")  
cL 	NI  
W Z „ , 
Z 0 " 
LU 
O < 

CO E 
L-1 

„ 
0 

LL1 

< u 
Lu z 
a. Z x < w D 

0 0 
w Z 

< 0 /-- fit 
U-I Z 

O M 
(f) 

F- < is 
cat U U-I 

Z N 
° Z 
. 

Z o o 
1-1 	

Mc° Lu 
Lu z  

VI V) 
N 
0 U 
N LIJ 

>•• 
11. 0 

▪ 0 0 0 
n' V) 	0 0 0 
N 4 	trl N PO 

0 U 	.0.-  ,-i Ln 
N ILI 	N t..0 -1 

>- C4  
U. 0 

11. 

I- 0 0 0 
0 0 Cl In V/ 	•-1 rf) CO N .4 	.. 

O 'I' cli 4 
N 

U 
 11.1 	r---- tn 

LL U.  U. 0 U. 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
O.  t.0 

r■ 4 
N 	L.-I 

0 0 0 
CO 00 0 

00 -  N 



0 
LLI 

L) 

M
P

T
IO

N
S

  

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
A

D
E

P
O

R
T

 
1 
H  

° 
0 

LLJ 
▪ LL1 
< 

O W  
LO 

Li) 
< ILI  

-r 
te 
• (-9 

;2

• 

1  

I-0 1.11 
LU 
• LI-I 
Z (1)  
LLI < 
> _J 
rt W D  

D 
W 0 
U. 
1—i (.9 
• ce 
O 0 

• Z 
O < 

Z 

LU 
H CC1  
U 
111 w 

LL H 
0_ 

N 
0 
N 

0 

c 

H 
UJ 
(f) 
-r 
(.9 

H
 0 

z 

0 

_J 

0 
z 

H 
0 
0 
U- 
LU 

(f) 

11.1 
a. 

N 
Lc) 

+5. 

6 

z 
IJ_ 

< 0 
0 
UJ < p_ 0 
< LI-I 1—  
(Y 0 
O LU  

W 
E- 

O < 
OH 

(f) ° 
0 

W Lij 

• < 
Z  
D cn 
LLI 

(f) O 
< 
LLJ 
_J  CO co 

- LLI (1) 

0 D Lu 
tp (i) 
(.9 < D 

111  
O Z 
- (f) 
1-1  < 
< Lus  
C.9 I—  CO 
Z < 

D• 0 —J 
1-1  < 

an I- < 
u- 0 
0 IL  LL 

r < 
o D 17.) Z 

Z LL 
• < 0 



( C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
A

D
E

P
O

R
T

 (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

):
  

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  A

S
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

S
 

CIIn 

C r ri 
Co 
C 
C 

rn 

co 
O 
O 

I---  
<  

O 0 
LLJ 	 Z I-U  F- 	I- 	I- 0 u < Z 
(171) 	w 	WLLJ 

O I- v) 	f25. 6 

Q
(f) 	 a_ 

(71 	x a_ 
< 	z 	w z 
(J) 	0 	0 0  
LI) 	cr, I- 0 a_ 
0 	Z 	LLJ 
U ;N 	17.3  

‹. 	
-J 
D 

(.9  EU) 	 0 (I)  - .-.. w w Z 
Pe2 x rY 	x 0 
w  
w 	>- 	0 0  

LW 	1U 	
'Lin' r I- 	...1 ." v) 	...I 	1--1 

( F P- 	0 Z CI) 	R ;S2 LLI r4  
-.I 	 I- 	l0 

ILI 	
I- 

N L.) 
< .. 	I- 	0 LLJ 
I- 	v~, 	O ej  z U-I 	< 	-EA - LLI th 	0 	-_-• ce 
Z 4L- U W < 
III if' 

	I-U 
Ce re 	0 	ect >- 
0 0 H 	d --1  
1--, Le) 	ce 	>-0 
O al 0 	-I v) 
Z I- 	eL 	a. 1.-1 

--C   D 	
a. II- 
n I-U 

V) 	(/) cY < 
g 	

D 
F- 

ift 	

• 

LL 
0- Lu 	Z 	i- n 
CL 	 1-i 
D - 	IE3'  
(f) .,-.1 	Z 	1-1 Nj 
_1 ''' 	 re rNi 
< i.;fit 	LLD 	

I- 0 
(.9 u -1 	U N 
LLJ i... 	< 	ILI 

1 ...I -1-  
-I  Z D 	W M
J --, Z 
< it-r. 	Z - 	I- eC 
z 	< 0 	z LLI 
fY 	,, N 	wCO 
LLI 1 	:" r-I 	tY 0 

4A- 
X 
LIJ 	

0 I— 	D U 
0- < U 0 

A (n  - 
 tn 
to 

	

I- 	
U) 

	

Lf1 U) 	 '  CCI GO 	Lel 

	

ISI 4 	0 0 +-1
0 u ci c; N W vv. 
>- Cre 
u. 0 u. 

. 	U) N „,:z 
 0 u 

N 
›- oc 
U. 0 

N a 
0 u 
N Lu 
›- 
U. 0 

U. 

NI 
N 
In 

rC1In 

W N 
u. 0 u. 

C 
0 

S
U

P
P

L
IE

R
  

LOI 

(.3 
ILI 

0 

in 
N 
0 
N 

M 
0  N  

LL 

0 

< 
I- 0 
ILI esi 

° Z 

z 

M D 

1.1 

0 
N 
eq 

>- 
LL 

0 a. 
0 re 
a. 



(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

G
O

L
F

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
 

S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 

ee 
0 0 

C
O

U
P

L
E

S
 

CO 	

- 	

71- 	tr) 
• NM CO 

0 Cr% N E-7 'Kt 
Olvt NreF M 

LLl 
LU 
-I 0 
0 
• CO 

I 

-J 

I° la 

- 0 
- X 
O 00 
< ri 

▪ 0 
0 

• CO 
01 W

E
E

K
D

A
Y

 

W
E

E
K

E
N

D
 

T
W

IL
IG

H
T

 

S
E

N
IO

R
 9

 H
O

L
E 

S
E

N
IO

R
 L

S
 H

O
LE

 

0 U. 
Ill 

O 

>- 
U. 

M 
N 

>- u.. 
0 
Z ▪ (NI  
I- w N 

iu 
M O z  

1-1 	 r-i 
rs  

0 

N 

>- 
u. 
0 

0 
a. 
0 
a. 
a. 

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
  /
  
H

O
U

R
L

Y
  

W
E

E
K

E
N

D
 /
  
H

O
U

R
L

Y
 

✓ I 
N N In 

Lrl 

-EA- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 
N 

0 0 
,4-  

0 
01 

0 
tr) 01 IT) 

- I N N ri r,-; 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
in V) 0 0 0 0 0 
r■ 7*.i-  ifl 0 CO 0 0 

,--1 rei N M 

(r) 	® T, 
w 	v, 
1— 	0. 
< 
(D 

cns 0 
0._ • cp_ 0  . ro 
-r .-1 	z 
(f) o 0 c, NI U 111 

 LU  Z C3 
 CO I 

t--1 
—1 	(f) 

Z LU I— LL1  V) I-LU uJ < < 
Z 1_1—  0 lY 

1 1.. W 
LLI z ce 0 

L  

ig z 0 inUj  
• 0 L   
I".  U 	0- 
V< 0 
D 1±i  W Cy 
• 0 II-  °- 1 0 2 

LU 
ui 0 
WI—  1 
LL p F- w 
LU U-I I—  eC 
ty Z al 
D 1(11)  D UF- 
O u j a D 
U fy mill  HIY 

	Ow 

cC u)  

J 0- co ( A 	: 
__i 	 C2  ,--, cn D ...., 	Li-) < 	iu 	a LI" 

I— 
C9  
F- 	(Y Z >-Z  
Lii 	< >- 	1- 

cC 0_ I— < 	1 z 
,11.1 

CL W —1   a. 	12 W  LIJ 

U L00,4  U 
C3  O cE: :1 N  0 I— 	ca 
a. D NI c-v ui 	a. . Ni 

W . J
(. n<  °< No ( . z >7 I 

>- I—I < 
U (-r) u-  
Z O°° I-1-1  _1 > I— ILI  --I l---I 
LU 0 ° H.  LL. U 

W 
< ZOLLI u_ 
IC i-1 	1 u_ 
o_ (1) 0- I— LU 

16- 	r‘J 	CT) 

,, m M 
MI ' ' 	-b-i- 

ujUJ  
el' 

0 

U 

O LrI 	0 
IL! 	nl 	ci- 
(A GI 	rA 
0 11.1 

M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
L

A
Y

 
N

O
N

M
E

M
B

E
R

  P
L

A
Y

 

0 
I.- 	 0 
Z 	 r•-• 
ILI (.4  e 111 	.4 
C4 Ill 	

1 	 0. la 
-Le- 	- 	 4:Fl• 0 u 

V 	 a. 



0 
0 

8 

rf} 

N 

0 0 0 
I- in Lil 0 
U) 	Z IN (-NJ Ln 
'CC In 0 v•-•1 N: 06 0 (4 (/) 
11.1 0   'Kl" 5-1 in 
Ct N u

<
j 

0 	VI 
U. 

0 0 
0 0 

Z 0 0  

< Tr 0 
11.1 O 

N uj 
0 	(0) 
LL 

o 
in in 

Z N N 

< M 
rsi 

LU 

ON Uf 
 uj 

U. 

o 
0 0 Z 

< IN 0 
(.) N 	 lf5.  
ILI 0 < 
1:C N  uj 
0 UI 

< 0Z  0 
(0) 

0 < 
rsi uj 

(/) 

     

      

  

(t) 
z 
0  
Iwo 

12. 

(i) 
(1) 

z 
z 
z 

0- 

>ft 
Liu 

   

     

     

   

R
O

U
N

D
S

 O
F

  G
O

L
F

 P
L

A
Y

E
D

:  

 

  

G
O

L
F

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
):

  

 

0 Cf; 

—J 

U cr) 
< (1) 
tY 0 

ec 
Z (9  
0 
U 

LU 
V) I-

Z UJ 
W O  71 

  
X 
UJ 

I—  ILI 
>- 

E Z  0 
Z 
L1.1 O- 
E 0 
< 
I- 
Z 
LU 

Ce  
Lu LL  
W LL  

(Y 0 
z 

I— 1— 
z 1-1 

D cr) 
 < 

F- ° 
N  

1-1  
co fy  
CN1 ui 
...I in 

U 
W 0 

 

Cs,000) $ 



Ce 
0 

C.9 	LL 
Z 1--1 
LL 	 D 
U_ 	 0 
 02 F- 

L!) 	ce 
LU LU _J 

Z ,. ko 
Z 	H. I-1-1 	Z N 
Z 	0 *--1  u..1 	U -Lc' 
U (f) 
Z 	Ce F- 

0 

0 
O 0 I-I-I  
Z 	i ("1/  < 
1 	et U-I 

0 (Y  C)  9 Z ._: wil, 111 (2] ..1 uj  U1 uj 
> 	...i F- ill < C) UJ 
-I 	2! ce 

0 
Z >- 
O < ,--, w 	0_ N U) Z 1--, 	W Z 1-1 fy 
WD 

z2  ‹0 a 2 

Ce D < 
(/) < 	Z i'l 

_.

• 

: 
O N 0  ail-) 

 I-1 0 	< 
I- N 	LLI C9 I
I-
-N 

 L LA < 
Z 

0 LU F- 
11 z Z Z 

ma  ti OZ  0 LU a 

• U 	ig r---' 	w U) 
D U 

W 
W 

0 > LLI 0 
LL_ 	0 c cv W

O
R

K
E

R
S

 C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
  R

E
M

A
IN

S
 S

E
LF

-F
U

N
D

E
D

.  

LU 
z 
1- z 

A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

  

(19 
z 
pi-14 

z 
z 

O 

LU 

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 H

A
R

B
O

R
S

 
Lu 

O 0_ 
0 

LU 	-EA- 
(n 	

2 	 111 
N O 	 (n N 	Ce 0 	 0  U_ . N 	 H 	00 

< W 
Ce 	0 	W 0 	W 	ce o_ 	cC N 	

ee 0- 0a 	fY Ce 	0 0 Ca D 	D O Z ,--1 	CC Ln 	U IL 	1-1  Vi- 	< 
(r) i C9 	Z 
w ULU  ° 	Z 	0 
LU 	1 1  I- 	2 1=. 	ce 

LU 	 cf) i___ C.9 	c 	0 D ui rl ty 
,-.1 	U- LU 	 a Z < 0 	CL _I CL 	 < N 	a_ < I-U 

O N. 	 Z < 4A- 	 zuj 	in 
(r) 	H 	Lu z 	I- U Z 	Lu Z Ill 
I 	I-U 0 r  0 
I- 	__I Ce 	 Z 	W U_ 	i--1 LIJ < 	Z 

tY  

	

UJ 	0[ 
1.11 IL 	Y 0 z 

(.n 0`-' Lu > C) 0- 	W W 	C)  C) F- 	Z Ili 00  
F- T.-1 	:D u_ 	C) (y 2E 	U0 
< +A- 	2! F_ 	a_ .R1 	LU 

ur cn 	 Jo w 0 Z ( U p 0 	

• 

,--! 	 0 O H 	ILI -1  5 Ln . 	ct H 	ce (r)  z 	0 Ln I- 

	

LL_ 	 11-1 W < 	f2e 
< UJ < > D 	CL UJ > .;> 	CD 2: , 	ui UJ (Y 	UL ce LU 

	

CI_ 	 F- If:=1
2 

 '.; 	2! 
D cf) 	

C9 0 	Ili Z  F" 	Z 	

1.4 Ce 

< 	(.9 0 u_if3- 	iS1 Lri U 4'f}. 	I•4 	0 U cy 	Ce 
n 2 	rt 	D ,-, 	ILI  0 
0 0 	op " 0 0 Z z e 

Lu 
0 

I- oc 
	OW 
	__I D ,__, 

(f) LI- 	E W 	< Li_ 0 	ai Z  
ILI C) 	0 a- 	it (.9 (Y 	1-  > 
I- 11-1 	uj N 	0- 	I-U 	Z 11-1 

g <CUI 	
I-  V_ 
W 	

< Z  2 
C.) 0 LU 	C9 uu  

	

UJ 	0 C) I C) F- W2 

WU 	D I- 	
F- LU W 

III  
D 	,-,  Lu 	0 U- 

Z Z  Ca LL X 0 2 LL 0 

U 

0 
LL 

In 
N O 
N 

LL 
N  

0 
N 

LL 

0 
Z 

N 
I- 0 

N 

° Z 
D 
m 

0 

0 

LL 

a 

a 



• 0 

• 

rd 

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  

0 
LL 

N 
0 
N 

Li. 

N 

0 
N 

V- 
0 

< 
I— 0 

esi 
IQ 
z 

z 

0. 
0 
N 
N 
C 
N 

U. 
C 
LLI 
IA 
0 
C. 
0 
CL 
0. 

N 

N 

G
R

O
S

S
 F

U
E

L
  S

A
L

E
S

 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 F
IS

H
 P

IE
R

  

N 

0 
N 

R
Y

E
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 

0 

1-2  

0 
U 

T
IO

N
S

 
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 P
O

R
T

S
 A

N
D

 H
A

R
B

O
R

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
):

  

(1) 

S 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

E
  

sui 
O 
O 
O 

0 
Z 
I- 	

CV 
N 

Z 	0 
LU 	N 
(n 	>- 
in 	ia.. 
iY 	LL a_ 	0 Lu 

r.. cL 	cL 

Ln 	 I- N +A- o 
>-. N  —I 	D 	't 
LU 6 	a Z 
I—  co 	 if52  

Z < 

 

LLJ 

 
XD 	

0 
U 

0 "  
CC 0 	C/) 	U 
ta- Z 	 < ,_, 	0 	L u < a 	Z 
LU Z 	1121 	0 

I- I— LU 	n ▪ a 	O 0 
ce 	 Lu 
Lu 0 	11-1 	I— 
Z P62 	U 	< LU uLu 5 (.9 a. 	ce 	0 

_J 
0 M 	Ili 	-1 	0 
I—  I— 	(/) 	< 	ILI r4 

( 	
I-, 

lf r'l ILL 

D0 Z  0 UJ 0 0  CP O 
j 0 I— CO a el 0 

U co 	(r) 	0 	et II- co Z 	F- Lu ,4. 	 a 
a_ 	 LLI 
X LU 0- 	 D 
LU = D 1—

D 
 

LU F- 	cZ 	1:2 	
,,-, (f) 
N < 

ce (.9 cc < z 	 ct z < 	 ° 0  N 1 L 1 
I 1 I 	0 

V ) re Z 	1-f 	U 	.  >- 12  
i  Ls 0 Z 	CI. 	CA 	Li.. 

O p p  	I 	ILI 1-1 
	IL I- 	-1 	u) 1-1 	u. 

J4  0 111 	IL 	ILI -J I- 
Lij U_ < 	I 	W 
Q. i  2 	I— 	< 
O (f) >1—<1 	,..D 
O < 0 w 0 
Z ce 	 —I  
1-1 1— °- 	th 	II- 
...1 W a- 	I— 	_1 
Lu Z < 	rt 	LLI 
D z Z 0 D 
U. )--1 < 	0. 	U. 

I- 
IA U1 
N < 
0 U 
N 
>" 
LL 0 

U. 

• (,) 
N < 
• u 
N 

›-O u. 

M 
N < 

NW uj 
>" a 0 u. 

w 



th 
N 
0 

LLI 

U. 0 
LL 

1°. 

NaN  

N0  Lu0  

>. 
U. 0 

U. 

VI 
N 
0 
N 

u. 0 
u. 

NI-
: 	N  1 0 2 (5  

— el 
0 >- 
re IL  ea 
O. 

1-♦ (/) 
N < 
0 
N w 
)"' 
U. 0 

U. 

-ut 

0; 
so 

:1=1 

9t6-11 
rl 

14. 

.to 
.w 

.01  
0 
0 
0 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
IO

N
S

  

iew 
LU 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E 

7.1 

0 
v-i 

(N .- 

—1 01 

WO) 

• 

. 	 • 

• • 

. ✓ 
Lu 
H 

U 

Ch

0 

 1^- 

LU : 
re, 
• Lu r. 
z 

M 

N
E

T
  O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 

1.- co 

0 

O 
N 

rt 
N 

; 

U. 

Z 
< 
I— 0 
ILI N 

o z 
 

er3 
O 

41 

0 

>- 
U. 

U1 
0 
O. 
0 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

LL 
z 
CD 
liJ 
0 
z 

!J- 

O 
z 

wr 
c‘l  

1  
De 01  

4t 
-.1 VI 
LU 

< 
0 6- 
Cel 
ce tr.] w B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 (

S
E

E
 P

A
G

E
 #

2
2

)  U-i 

0 

LLI 
LIJ 
Cr3 

H 

0 

LIJ 

U
TI

L
IT

IE
S

 (
S

EE
 P

A
G

E  
#

24
)  

le 	01 
Iii ,: 	- 	N 
!si 	N . 	. 	. 
ao 	N 

A7r.) .- 
	

-. 	• 	i'' 
-al. 	• 	. 	,-, 
-Ni::-.. .•:::.]"•:" 	N 
. 	.rf r• -. 7- 	, ' : ' . ..• . , - -, . f . 	( <1 
i,...1•1:'0:= 
.r•r 	+.I.: 	•.-!-- 

:; 	.... 	. 

• 
. N 

0 .  • 
N 	•:1 

N 

• . 
. 	 • 

N 

• 

• 

0 	N 
VD 
'4 

rh 
1.0 
1.6 . 
•-1  

„ 

C) 

.:lii 

: 

Cr) 

01 

N 
00 

. 	OD 

- 

o 
N 
00 

0 

N co  

00 
Cl 
00 

.M. 	N 
MI 	Ln 
-01 	T.:1-  

.. 	 • 	- 

. 

iii : o 
T'4: In 
in 	. 'CI' 

7••••:'.:r: 
. 	. 

a 	...:...: 
. 

'di. 
71- 

kb 
C, 	cr) 
1.r, 	•zzi-  

N 

r1 	N 

CO  

ri• 	. 	sH 
Cl 	0 
N 0 
t-4 	Li., 

,-1 

••en- 	 - 	 -,  in 
•-•',-t• 	 • 	ai 
N 	=HI 

...,Z• 	-,. -j.,zr  
;:,. 	•:, 	ri 

1:, 
:,- 	11 	• 	:, 

. 	. 
N 

'-I 	Tr 

III 
• in 	GI -.-I 	N. 
, 	M 

1-1 

0, 
Tr 

00 	Tr 

N 

il - rn 
*1. • 09  
a _ 0-1 
44:: 0 

. 

	

$40 	7i- 

	

(0 	N 

	

.01 	c° 

	

' 03. 	,o- 

:...: 	•-: 	, 

,r1 	 - 	, 	: 

	

Is 	CO 
A N 

-14-  

	

Pill 	GI 

	

IN 	.,-1 
N , 

	

,r,i 	Ns 

	

N 	co 
11-;- 

• 

. 

C 

Ln 

• 

r-1 

L.r) 
Cl 

1.11 

Lit 

O- 
W 
LLJ 
U_I Z 

❑ 

W ❑ 

LIJ 
O  
Z 

< < 

0 0# 
Z w  

P- 0 in a 

❑
LL-1 

< 1-11  
E 

   

IN
T

IE
RE

ST
  E

X
P

EN
SE

  (
SE

E  
PA

G
E

 #
2

7
)  

Zn 

X 
LU 

z 

NLID  
is 

0 
< 

W 
uJ i•-'" 

0 f-n O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 

D
EP

R
E

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

C
A

R
E

S
 A

CT
 FU

N
D

IN
G

 



LL 

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 

F
U

E
L

 F
LO

W
A

G
E

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 A

N
D

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 H
A

N
G

A
R

S
 

FE
E

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

  

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 H

A
R

B
O

R
S

 

A
V

IA
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 B
A

D
G

IN
G

 

R
E

N
T

A
L

 O
F

 F
A

C
IL

I T
IE

S
 

1
:
 L 

S
IM

U
L

A
T

O
R

S
 A

N
D

 LE
S

S
O

N
S

  

D 0 
(.7 

LA 

ri 

IS) 	 tr 	N co 
00 Cr 	 N 
tri 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

  F
E

E
S

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

  A
N

D
  F

U
E

L
  F

L
O

W
A

G
E

 

W
H

A
R

F
A

G
E

  A
N

D
 D

O
C

K
A

G
E

 

es 
rt 

N 

Lr• 
r•-• 
Lrf 

1.0 

o 
rei 

N 
rPJ 

N 

N 
N 

1.11 

Cl te) 
t—I 

 

m 
$0 

O 
0 
m Z ty  

0 

O 
N 
>- LL 

m 
N 
O 

u. 
0 

ty 
, 

IN 
w 

Z 
77 

O z 

▪ N 
Cl 	0 ON

▪ 

 

▪  

0:1 
 

LI 	 0 
N 

1-1 

u. 
0 

0 0. 
0 re a. 

UJ 

H 
0 

O 
O 
■-• 

it) (i) 
N < 
0 
N Lu 
3“ 
LL 0 

LL 

V LA 
N 
0 

Lu 

LL. 0 
U. 

rol Ul 
N 
0 

Lu 

LL 0 

0 
tu 

O 0 (3 
N 

O ›- 
▪ 03 
0. 

I- 
I 1'1  ul < 

0  
N Lu 

U. 0 
U. 

Ln 

NIl 

C3 Cc) CP 
- -f

OD NI- 

w 



• O% 
	Cr 	1-1 

N 

N N 

N 
00 	Cr) 

0 
co 

U 
 U 

0 
u. 

0 
N 

Ll. 

N 
0 

).• 
U. 

0 

N 

0 
N 

4" al z 
w 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

  

Co 

0 

11%-'1 

oI 

A
L
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 

O
T

H
E
R

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

G
O

L
F

 M
E

R
C

H
A

N
D

IS
E

 

z 
I 	Ll.. 

LU 

u

• 

0

• . 

 

I+1 
Z 

LL1 

00 
N 

Cr) 
N 	d1 
N N 

C
O

N
C

E
S

S
IO

N
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

0
 
	 LU

 
 >

 

P
U

E
L

.S
A

L
E

S
 

OD 
1-r) 

00 

• M 
N  < 
O L.) 
N 

Li.  0 
Ls 

N  < 
O L.) 
N Lu 

U. U.  
U. 

.4" 

co 

0 
Lu 

0 

et 
N 
oI 
co 
val 

N 	 a, 	 CO 	 co 	".,' 	N 

	

I° 	N 	 Ln 	 01 	at 

	

111 (I) 	CJ) 	 Ln 	
N 	

N as 	M 
CNI et 
0 0 
N Lu 
›,  12  
LI.  0 

LL. 



'r- 

kr: 
N 

ri 

N 

CO 
O 
Cr) 

00 

N 

ko 

O
V

E
R

T
IM

E
 

F
R

IN
G

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

fr) 
ce) 
cr 

!t. 

CC ai O N 
N 

N 
CO CD 

cr, 	Ln 
N N 

CD 
N 

N 

Ft  

OfI  

N 

Ul a 

co 

O 

6-1 
! N 

O 

N 

L
IF

E
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

H
E

A
LT

H
 C

A
R

E
 

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 

a 
LU 
0 

N 
ID 
N 

LLI 

0 

O 
ri 

P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
 LA

B
O

R
 

u) 
N < 

U 
N uj 
>" Ce 
LI. 0 

LL 

Rzt U) 
N < 

N
U 
uj 

LI. 0 
LI. 

I- 

CC 
0 

N 
0 
N 

LL 

N 
0 
N 

LL 
C 

ri 
`N 
I.- 0 
ILI CV 

ui 
z 

1- 
g 
ft. 
0 
N 
N 
O 
N 

C 

0 
CL 
0 ce 
U. 



M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

1 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 

o 	 o 000 
o 	o 	 01 to at 

co 	o 	 N 0 
N 	LO. 	 1"1N 	 (NI 

N L1,1 
0 
N  0 
} U-
u. 

N  

Wi 

0 0 

CO 	0.; 
crZ 	Caj 
1-1 

0 0 

<r 
LQ 	Lri 

71  0 0 
IA 	14. 

to 

in 
N 
0 rt 
N 0 

LL 

0 
N 
00 

0 
,-1 

CO 

0 
rn 

0, - • 

- 0 
4.1  

0 
0 

v:i 

o 
0 

oN 
 0 

.. 	. 
... 

!:..0 
: N 
ri 
1.4 

0 
rs-I 

- 
0 

in 

o 
O 
N 

a∎ M 

0 
N 

cn 

0 

0 

Ln 
.41  
67) 
..4 

..1S5  
rn 

0 

C,7 

U_ 	 I 
_J 	 co 

N 
0 	 V.1 	 o 
0 	 0_ • . 	 ri 

>- U- 
0 
z .4 N 

ILI IN 
!I.:=... 	..t-  .. 	 . . !Er --,.  

• ■ ,.'. 
Tt 	.-I 	 ° Z 

a) 	r4 .-4 	 r--. 	• L! F . 	7i- . ' . !Ali.. 	.-i 	-4:. • 	CA 	 11 	
7 m .r...-:: 1  

• 

	

z 

in 	1 	 co , 
 .,_:i 	1.:. 

-;.t,=..-.:.:. 	 .,.,• 
•,... , .....ri, 	 g 

	

i.,.: -•f : i. . 	 w 
•':_! ..,..;,. 	

... 
0 

• ,.., 

N01-1 ,. 1-1 141 1 

- - - -.•
in 
0 

0 • • 

• • D.:: 	
O. 

1'4 

7 • 

'.4 

'cr 
a, 
N 
lf1 

N 

N 0 
>- LL 
U. 

0 O 

in 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
  

_ 

_
 T

O
T

A
L

  F
'D

A
 



• 5 L1•4 

[3.2 
W QS: 

a M1 

L.: „if" 
...d 

:, i.. 
} 
	2i,7jIX 	... EA 

Lid a 	0 	SIJ  
J -. J 	= < 
'A:1. 	2 y  
CA u. 	4 45 	G ? 

 LA ==a 	a"5 
.4 c 

•4 

:...LI. 

1=4 L!, 

	

■-. 	 :C. 	'1.1 
,-  

	

a ... e , Z 	2..r4 	LA 	 C.' 	PV 

1.126.   	> , 

	

,..1 ,7,-) 	 Zt; a.,4 4 4  
U..1 i2 •••• 

..c.,  p•  .7.4 	 -I 

	

-, 	_, E2..;--.  '...) N.7,•••2 	 'tr.. 	•,2: 
&''---  	1 	1   E 	 1 	 (.1 

,,.., 

	

w_t 	A2 	 fft 
c.: z 	LLI 

	

ro'hgq. F ii 	:,: 1 

	

......_. 	... . ..=. = 

	

i 	I 

fa"  
ti 

 uc% 

L1.1 	 .1. 2.4 c 0. 
Y. n 

111 
0 

0 thl  1 La  y 	-1 
cz,e, _r 0- .  	I 	1 	I 	.1 	1, 	I 	, > 

....,.._- 	  

w. a ‘a 

1.1.1 	 .rac z 2._ ■-• 0 	 0 •a < 	 C.. L, 	0 .iil 
2 

.t.) 

LL 	 ....7.4 
°O2 	 2' 	a t` 	,Lr VI 

	

7 	cc ,z  
L11 0 

	SW LI 

	

1.1 < UJ 	
LEJ 

raill 

	

a 	2 co 	CZI 
Li 

	

< 	7L 

	

h: - 	g rt 	
4,1 Q. 
cr. -: 2 	

LI- 

	

2 ° 	
a 

1 	11., 
n n 

Z Cl. 

0 C 
0 ut 

f- 
Cg 

J 4 

U 
z 
C 

z 
LLI  

Q. 2 

0 

>m  !tun 

RESQ,21— 

) 	

• r

^u

saew 
 

)114 	 Fc ce 
0  ilt2  

6 
0 66 : 

}um X w0 

C- .1 -E . 	,..i 	 , 
,..i Z 	

4 ersCI. 'i" Lid c -  A 	ti, 	 1.-, 	,,,, c.. 
. 	,4 	c- LE ^ 	5  

o ,r- 	 d  
2 La w  

r2 J 
ILI V,  'O. a 

E' .1  
.. : 41 

.7: a 
L•:... tz x 
= 7 c. "g 

	

= 	1.." 2. 

	

Ul.' 	
4 	4 

a 	

i..1 r--, 
I.. °  

	

06!  	Q. 
41 

	

r.S_ 	2 ..., .1 = x i r 

.. •ef (7, 
2 m •...1,,, 
a ,./,  .... 
Z 	

.4 
 0  

i  . 
✓ ., • cra 	...  ,:.- . , ...,:„.. 

1:[‘q  

>- 0 d CC  
0 2 2  11.1 LA -'  
Gt -, .1  0 
.4 iz—  .7.1 es 
▪ CZ C. Z 
0 ..J . 2 5 
0- 0- 0  a 

U 

,T:,zi. 

uu.r 
Lt.iL.7' 
•'+Q 

< 02 
2 a< 

 

%.= J  •k 	6- 	0 --2  1" 	,.. ,...T ..1 	t..,  ,,,,.. 	,di ; 

	

t v.:::i 	,..,•-• 	ii.. 
-, a -1 

'..1;.• Le 
Ctimw 	.17'1  t  2 

0-  

	

V't 	a `c 
'I  t) 2-2Y 	 ki CV  , 4  r, 	0,.., 2" 

	

a -.7 	;- 	:1 

.._S • rA A".  
2 t•• 	,. 	I- 	- 	- 	_ 

*, 

1 	_1 

1 

t.Lt 

0 

0 

L'a .0 

0 

CA-  Ul 
41 

U 

1 
• 0 

C,4 	u. 
0 

0 N 
LL 

N 
0 N 
LL 
0 
Z 

r4  
I- o 

N 

Z 
EO 

D 

I 
I 
CI 
0 

0 

LL 
N 

/ 	I , 
re 77 0 

< 

••• 

Li 
	

4-2 
■.... a< 

...I 

	

C. .,,, 	

5. e_ 	 , — 	o V/  
a 

	

E. 3 	
a a 
..z .T...-  g, ... 

..1 F., 
 0 

0 
re — 

=.0,- 
.r.: -c-, 

,:, F.2,- 	—I 	 u, 	.„... 	M  LJ 	,-,...,, 	C7::„- 
'27. 
O 0  
...„ p. c_., 	9 p.1 z = 0 I.- 
2 	 ...1 	r9C  
'1'.. 2 Cat 	C 1 Ce 0  

•ii; •-. r.7 2 	C. 

2 Li 2 in .r `d 
/ 1 

2 o 
1 cl. 	

c.L. 
fix. - 

< :5 
§ 

§ . = 
.., ..-,_ a ...5 - 	..m. ,--. tit' S a+ 

5' 	Li 4.2 	 i. 

2 xy. 
	i 	I 	i 	I < ild•-. , .z 

„ 
E 

Q 

 

3 

4 5 
2 
z  JJ 

WWI 
L1.1 

.C...1 



rn N OD ,-I N N 
CO 	(.0 in sn 10 	co 

	

l-,1 	0 
N 

co  .  Ln an 	al 	rl 
•cr N 

4:1- 	Ln 	cn 
N kD 	 In 

N 

I 

N 

S- 
us 

0 

in 

N 

LL 

N 
O 
N 

LL 

z ti  

I- 0 
LLI N 
(.7 

Z 

a. 
0 

O 

>- 
u. 

0 
tt. 
0 o. 
o. 

S
N

O
W

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

  T
E

S
T

IN
G

 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

G
A

S
O

L
IN

E
 A

N
D

 D
IE

S
E

L 

H
V

A
C

,E
LE

C
T

R
IC

A
L

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 

V
E

G
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
  C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

C
O

M
P

O
S
IT

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
  A

N
D

 F
►
C

IL
I 

0 Ln N N In 7.1-  N 01 LO N sn r,  o 	o m 

I-- 

 
LO Cr rrl '1" N On On -r-I •--: 0 	N 	LO Ln in LO 	el 

111 U) 	
NNN,-1,-1,-1 	1--1 	N-I N 	.r.-1 	 N 	iy 

fq < 	 IN 
0 (,) 
N tu 

U. 0 
4L. 

O 	 t.o 

	

N 	0") 	.■-■  
N it4tv 	 • 	 N rl 

! 	V) 
:  0 

:•. W..  • N • ..if 	 : 

Ls. 0 
U- 

01 N Nt N Lin a) N V.  Ln V.  'In 	V 01  ;  N "t's1 N 

i""' 	•.,- 	N 	N 	tr 	N 	N 	N 	•-1 	,--I 	al 	.1.--,± 	,C) 	V) 	1-n 	tr 	(v) 
N N N ,-4 	,..-: N 	 -- Ni 	1-i 

< 
0 	

N 
Li 

N la 

U. 0 
ti- 

0
01 U.I 	I- 

(1) (4  ILI 2 gi, g 
et LL  ea 
C. 

rl (/) 
est < 
0 
N 

Ln 
v 
N 

in 

r-1 

cn 
cn 
N 

—1 
0-1 
1-1 

N 
—I 
N 

On 

rn 
(.0 
,-I 

01 
 N 

0 
In 
,-,- 

Ln 

.-F 

(.0 
N 
,-i 

crt 

10 
N 
r-i 

C•) 

01 
+-4 
1-1 

o 
In 

10 
at 

t0 
71-  

cn 
al 

o 
00 

>- 
U. 0 



re) 

0 

C-' 
oo 

B
A

N
K

 &
 C

R
E

D
IT

  C
A

R
D

 F
E

E
S

 

to 
0 

U 

ry 	Ct 	
J N . COl 	 Nt Cl  Fq CO 

_ 

r1; 01 
U1 tt fiS 

lb 

P- 
M' IA 
N 
0 
N 
>' re 
U. 0 

N. 

141 
1  N  CO 

N 
CO 

CD 	C, 

rl 

I. 

N 
N 

co ul 	r, 
CD 

cr) co 

ri 

CD N 	[- 
O 	CD 
M 

Ql 0 Nt 0 1.0 0 
Lt1 	+4" 	•cr 	Cr  i 

F- 
ri VI 
N < 
0 
N 

U. 0 
LL 

Cl N. al 01 L 	N 
rn 7-1  0 

0 
u- 
m N O N 
LL 

N 

LL 

z

▪ 

 ti  
< 
I- 0 
UJ N 

tu 
Z 7 

0 
z 

0 

0 

0 
(A 
0 
0 

z 
LK 
LLE 

z 
et 

0 
X 

LLd 

U. 
LU 

ce 
In 

U 
1.1 
z 

6 

z 

LLI 
(I) 

X 

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 

CD 
0 
O 
tri 
41- 
AC 

O 

Ltd 
S 
► t 

LU A
L

L
  O

T
H

E
R

 

T
R

A
V

E
L

 A
N

D
 M

IL
E

G
A

E 

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
  A

N
D

 P
R

I N
T

IN
G

 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 

S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 



('. < 

(N. is 

to 

OLL  
Lff 
N 
0 
N 

	

.".. c..) 	• 	>- 
•- 

ni 
N 
0 
N 
>. 

	

F. 	;:.' IL.. 
0 e%) 0  in  z 

• < rsi 
I— 0 

	

cs1 t!] 	MI N 

	

',;,, P,, 	 0 W
LL a 	. z  

	

Lt. 	 0 = 
0 ,.., 
L.7 
Z 

i',5  I- 
. 	g 

✓ Lu 

	

el U.1 	 a. 
N ii.4 

	

(...= n 	N 
N 

	

N a 	 0 

	

C.) 	
N 

	

ti, te; 	.. 	
>- IL s:... 

f"!' 	0 
0 	

Lu 
u) 

L. 	0 
III 	a 

0 
.---,1 	w 

a 

	

...-; rA 	cs.::'. 
N. ..,-..,; 
O _": 	fre. 
N L■,,, 

!I. .'......) 
',:. 

aatili 
1 	 1 

oaf 
(1) 
0 
CL 

0  
U 

W
A

S
T

E
 D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

 

sin 

w  

w 

crl 	r4 
LO 	vr 

(G) 	 PA 
N at 
0 N Ld  
Is. 0 

LL 

✓ V

▪  

I 
Cs1 < 
0 
N • Ce 

 LL 
LL 

PI V) 
N < 
0
0 N  

O 
ILI 1N1  I— 
L/1 ,..(4  ILI 

ta. m 0 

Old 1.1- 03 

0-5 

N! 
i.n 

, o 
N 

ci) oo 

00 

o o 

C 

op 
0 

r,4 

N 

Ln 
1.0 

1 

• 

in 

.4:Iiiirr-1 

;:::"T. 

af. 

LT) 

Xf :41 
• 

ct-  
Nt 

: 	, 	- 	: 

1-•-..-,--f 

- 4 

!.1..-" "v 	--"---.. 

-1 
.a-  

00 

rs1 
MI 

03 

M 
WI 

r„, 
lay 

72! 

0 

. u o 	- 	-,, 

'M- 
	

r 	CO 
tn 	

▪ 	

tr) 
	

4  
LO 	 rrr 	 co 

,r4 (f) 
N et 

PI ui - 

>. re 	,.... . 1_ 

fil 	a 
(.2

• 

< 8 
... 	im „, 

d 
< Z i 

LLI 	n 	It. 
I— I— 0 < 
< < tX w 

Z 	Ct. : , 

HMN 



N 
0 

N 
0 
N 

_N 
 • 

'-;; 

.1- 	a) 
CT) 	 Ln 

Ln 
LD 

P
R

O
M

O
T

IO
N

  

N 	N 00 
CO 	N Ln 

z 

O 
0 
- J 
0 

I 

• 

I- 
UOC 
ILI 

Z 
O N  

1-1 
I- _1 

et 
X Z 

O w 
 

LL 
Z X 

UJ 

CO 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 

is 
CJs 

00 

N 	t0 

N 

Err 

 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 

 

Va• 

Lt1 V) 
N < 
O U 
N 
)- 
U. 0 

U. 

I- 
✓ V) 
N < 
O U 
N 
>" 
IL 0 

LL 

N CA 
N < 
• (,) 
N uj 
>" 
U. 0 

U. 

UJ
to) 
• (Si 1— 

LU 
O ° 
• (%1  
• >- 
ct 11- 
a. 

N 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 

ILI 

0 
11. 
UI 
N 
O 
N 

LL 

0 
N 

LL 
0 

1- 
ILI IN 

ILJ 
O = 7 
gel n 

0 
1,4 

0 
N 
>- 
u. 

0 

0 

0 



.9)  
O 
O 
O 

44- 

C
O

M
P

O
S
IT

E
  O

T
H

ER
.  O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
  E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
  co 

In 

Ln 
N 

O 

cY 	CD 	U) 
P1 

al C rO 

eNJ 	rf 

1.11 	0 	0 
N 

N 

✓

▪  

4 
Cd 
9•4 

et 

e:gtiqp 
17-  

ail 

I- 

w  

0 

0 N 

N 
N 

LL 
0 
Z 
< 

o 
ri 

O Z 
to 

0 

0 

LL 

(/) 
0 

0 

0 
N 

G
O

L
F

 M
E

R
C

H
A

N
D

IS
E

 

LPI (y 
• 61% 

 Cu 
w 

U. 

• U) 
N < 
0 (,) 
N LLj 

U. 0 
LL 

VI U1 
N< 
O (,) 
N uj 

U. 0 
U. 

f. 
Ul 

N < 
O U 
N uj 
>" 
U. 0 

LL  

TI 0 0 

N 	r•-■ 

CO 0 	't 

N 	7-1 	ri 

G
O

L
F

 C
A

R
T

 L
E

A
S

E 



LOI 

	

0 	03 

	

Lu -J 	■.0 Ln 
< z 

	

0

• 

0 
	 CNI 

M 

	

i- 	N 

	

MO 	lO N 1 
W 

	

Ca -, 	0 Cr)  ... N. N 

	

<0 
	N ' 

n2i 	tviri 

	

W 	4.$1- 

M U) 

	

W I- 	N N TI" U) 	0 	•-i 
O DI  LU 	c0 't in ko vr 

	

< -, 	O 

	

0 0 	R.  CO t.r) NI  N  
CC 	W 	-(A- 
a. 	0. 

0 G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
:  

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
L
Y

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

 U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

Lf) 

0 
ozs 
5 

I 

o o 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
.7r.' 	q:)-  
N N ,-1 

0 
0 
0 

C \ r 
,-I 

0 
0 
0 

00' 

0 
0 
0 

,:t- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 o o o o o o 
Lri 	(-Ni 	a 	v5- 	a.--] 	,--1 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

 D
E

B
T

 O
U

T
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 

> 	4t1 01(') 	Z 1-1 U_ 	LU 
...• ce 

W w 	< E- 	0 	0 0 >-0- 	--IZ 	&>_ LU X 	0_11J 	0_ • 	N ce Y LU 	HO N N Eis  !-I 
<CH 	Z'-'rNI 	, i-O ui 

WWO 	j- k-1 	1-4 1-  V) 	 -4- ce-.-W 
Ej lri l_., ..‹ onr 
> 	.E 'E2D.. 1_111 	 0_ 
OF)M << aU D  w WZ 	
WW0 00 wal- 

W 
w-   

r3-  0 D 	a WW 
F.T2 F-,  . 	7,2 PLE .w 	...J <=  mm —wc,_ 

00 	<II— F----- Hu_o z o 	1-- . ,t w 
0 0  u <  

w, i_ Lu 	(3_0m ,w ._, 
etz 	.tc

• 

,:1- 00 00 L1 x.c5 . 0--k - cez Wzz Lu 	Cr) 	CO 
ZW I-WN 0-D (3- <tw 

--I <C0 	Z-EA)- LL 	-1 1-0 LL 

i5- 1- Z LLI P-1 	OH < - Z 
i....M.< 	las--ct 	_Z 	..j< 
a__J 	cep-1.- 	(ug 	8-2.:ti 
<CD< DIL0 ul 	<ILI 
UOM 001- koU UMw

Z  



0-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY MOTION  

Director Anderson, 

In accordance with the recommendation of the Revolving Loan Fund ("RLF") 

Committee the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors 

recommends and approves of a Request for Release of the Economic 

Development Administration's ("EDA") Federal interest in the EDA RLF Award 

consistent with the requirements of the "Reinvigorating Lending for the Future 

Act," contingent upon: 

1. The continued use of the funds in offering financial and related 

assistance to members of the local fishing industry along the New 

Hampshire Seacoast, and to aid in the creation of economic 

opportunities in support thereof; 

2. The continued role of the RLF Committee with the use of these funds 

pursuant to the provisions of RSA 1 2-G:54, as may be amended; and 

3. The continued use of the Five Year Revolving Loan Fund Plan as a 

guide for future strategies, policies, operating rules, and 

administrative procedures for operating the RLF, as may be 

periodically updated at the discretion of the RLF Committee and the 

PDA Board of Directors. 

All in accordance with the memorandum of Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of 

Finance dated _June 7, 2021, attached hereto. 

N RtsULVts \ 2-02 i \MOTION to approve release of EDA federal interest in RLF 6-17-2021.docx 
TAKING YOU THERE 



E SE 

 

 

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Date: 	June 7, 2021 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance 

Subject: Release of EDA Federal Interest in the Revolving Loan Fund 

In a letter dated January 25, 2021 (see attached) from the Economic Development Administration (EDA) we received an 

invitation to release EDA's federal interest in the Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) in accordance with the recently enacted 

Reinvigorating Lending for the Future Act (the Act). 

As you may recall, the RLF was approved by the EDA in 1994 with initial grant funds of $810,000 being provided. The 

program serves the purpose of providing financial assistance to members of the local commercial fishing industry in New 

Hampshire who may not have access to other conventional forms of financing. In addition, we currently have an 

agreement with Provident Bank (Provident) where they provide 25% of the project funding request with the remainder 

funded by the RLF grant monies. Provident also provides administration services for all the loans. 

Since the inception, the RLF has loaned over $4.7 million to 111 recipients. Access to this funding has saved 250 jobs 

within the industry and has created 113 jobs. At present, the RLF has a total valuation of $1,253,000 comprised of 24 

loans outstanding, all in good standing, totaling approximately $942,000 and more than $311,000 cash for additional 

loan requests. We provide semi-annual reporting to the EDA and the fund is audited annually by our external auditors. 

The RLF Committee, which is comprised of 7 members, is tasked with, in parallel with Provident, to evaluate each loan 

application, reviewing all semi-annual reporting to the EDA, as well as updating and submitting a comprehensive RLF 

plan to the EDA every five years. 

As outlined in EDA's January letter, if we authorize the EDA to release their interest, it will reduce the administrative 

burden to the Pease Development Authority (PDA) and could allow the funds to be used for broader economic 

development purposes. This concept was presented to the RLF Committee during their May 26 t  meeting. The RLF 

Committee was amenable to the release providing certain conditions were met to ensure that the program would 

continue under the same guidelines as outlined in the current Five Year RLF Plan as submitted to the EDA on March 9, 

2017. 

During their June 3r d  meeting, the RLF Committee approved the attached motion and is asking for approval by the PDA 

Board of Director's (the Board) for release of the EDA's federal interest in the Revolving Loan Fund program. 

If approved by the PDA Board, we will then need to submit a written request to the EDA for release which must include 

the Board resolution, as well as a final RLF Financial Report (Form ED-209) and our most recent audited financial 

statements regarding the RLF. Accordingly, I am asking that you please present this proposal to the Board at their June 

17 th  meeting. At your convenience, I would be pleased to address any questions or need for supplemental information 

that you may have. 

0 0 0 0 TAKING YOU THERE 

ph: 603-433-6088 	fax: 603-427-0433 	www.peasedev,org 



Dated ,l1,----■  

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND COMMITTEE 

MOTION  

To recommend to the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors 

that it request a release of the Economic Development Administration's ("EDA") 

Federal interest in the EDA Revolving Loan Fund ("RLF") Award consistent with 

the requirements of the "Reinvigorating Lending for the Future Act," contingent 

upon: 

1. The continued use of the funds in offering financial and related assistance 

to members of the local commercial fishing industry along the New 

Hampshire seacoast, and to aid in the creation of economic opportunities in 

support thereof; 

2. The continued role of the RLF Committee with the use of these funds 

pursuant to the provisions of RSA 12-G:54, as may be amended; and 

3. The continued use of the Five Year RLF Plan as a guide for future strategies, 

policies, operating rules, and administrative procedures for operating the 

RLF, as may be periodically updated at the discretion of the RLF Committee 

and the PDA Board of Directors. 

All in accordance with the letter dated January 25, 2021, from Linda Cruz-Carnall, 

EDA Regional Director, Philadelphia Regional Office, to former PDA Executive 

Director David Mullen, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

.//,/..e) , / 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Economic Development Administration 

Robert N.C. Nix Sr. Federal Building and U.S. 

Courthouse, Room 602 

900 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19107 

David Mullen 

Executive Director 

New Hampshire State Port Authority/Pease Development Authority 

55 International Drive 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: 	Invitation to request release of EDA's federal interest in EDA revolving loan fund award 

Dear David Mullen: 

The recently enacted Reinvigorating Lending for the Future Act (the Act) authorizes EDA to release its 

federal interest in certain Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) awards that have operated satisfactorily for seven 

years beyond disbursement of grant funds. By authorizing EDA to release its federal interest in certain 

RLF awards, the Act will reduce RLF recipient administrative burden and allow RLF award funds to be 

used for broader economic development purposes. 

To request that EDA release its federal interest in an RLF award, you must submit to EDA a written 

request for release that includes the information below. If you seek a release of EDA's federal interest 

for more than one RLF award, this information must be submitted separately for each RLF award. 

1. Your organization's name and contact information; 

2. Identifying information for the RLF award, including the award number, date of award, federal 

investment rate, and evidence that final disbursement occurred more than seven years ago (if 

available); 

3. Value of the RLF award (including the capital base and any available administrative income); 

4. Proposed use of RLF award funds for one or more activities that continue to carry out the 

economic development purposes of PWEDA, which may include continued operation of the RLF; 

and 

5. Certification by your organization that it has complied with the terms and conditions of the RLF 

award. 

Additionally, you must provide the following supplemental materials: 

6. Resolution or letter from your organization's Board of Directors, or agency leadership if your 

organization is a public entity or otherwise does not have a Board of Directors, supporting the 

request to release EDA's federal interest and committing to using the RLF for one or more 

activities that continue to carry out the economic development purposes of PWEDA in 

compliance with on-going restrictions required by the Act as articulated in the release 

agreement; 

7. Final RLF Financial Report (Form ED-209) for the RLF award; and 



8. Most recent Single Audit for your organization, if available. If a recent Single Audit is not 

available, the most recent audit or audited financial statements for your organization, if 

available. 

EDA will review and evaluate requests for release of EDA's federal interest in an RLF award, and EDA 

may request additional information. If EDA determines that your RLF award is eligible for release of 

EDA's federal interest, the next step would be for EDA and your organization to execute an agreement 

to release EDA's federal interest in the RLF award. A sample release agreement is attached for your 

reference, although the exact terms of the agreement may vary based on the individual circumstances 

of your RLF award. Please review the terms of the agreement, including the requirement that any RLF 

award funds be used for one or more activities that continue to carry out the economic development 

purposes of PWEDA. Your request letter will be included as an attachment to the agreement. 

EDA plans to hold a webinar to share information about the release of EDA's federal interest in certain 

RLF awards. EDA will notify you of the event when scheduled. In the meantime, if you have any 

questions regarding this letter, please reach out to Jennifer Sloms, EDA RLF Administrator, via email at 

Jsloms@eda.gov . 

Regards, 

Linda Cruz- 
Carnal! 

Linda Cruz-Carnall 

Regional Director 

Philadelphia Regional Office 

Digitally signed by Linda 
Cruz-Carnal) 
Date: 2021.01.25 15:22:31 
-05'00' 



to-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 a Portsmouth, 	0 '1 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Diisectors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 	* 
RE: 	Licenses / ROEs / Easements / Rights of Way 
DATE: 	June 8, 2021 
****************************************************************************** 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of 
License Agreements," PDA entered into the following Right-of-Entry: 

1. 	Name: 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air) 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	West of Hangar 229 (aka 53 Exeter Street) 
Purpose: 	Conducting site inspection and survey work on the Premises 
Term: 	June 21, 2021 through December 21, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

PABOARDMT0\202 I \License Report 6-17-2021,docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

,pei:a 	:.`.c. , 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

June 3, 2021 

Charles Suma, COO 
Pease Aviation Partners, LLC 
7555 Ipswich 
Houston, Texas 77061 

	

Re: 	Right of Entry - West of Hangar 229 (aka 53 Exeter Street) 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") 

Dear Chuck: 

This Right of Entry ("ROE") will authorize Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million 
Air) ("Million Air") and/or its agents to enter upon the premises west of Hangar 229, sometimes 
referred to as 53 Exeter Street, as more particularly shown on Exhibit A  attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, (the "Premises"). Million Air is granted the right to access the Premises 
for a six (6) month period commencing on June 21, 2021 through December 20, 2021 for the 
purpose of conducting, at its sole risk, an inspection of the Premises with respect to the 
suitability of the use of the site as an aircraft hangar, fuel farm, and storage of ground support 
equipment in connection with Million Air's planned aviation related activities at PSM. Such 
inspection may include a review of environmental matters, including adequacy of utility services, 
general site conditions, and any other inspection or evaluation of the Premises you deem 
reasonably necessary. This ROE will expire at midnight on December 21, 2021 unless 
otherwise extended by agreement of Million Air and Pease Development Authority (PDA). 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. Million Air providing PDA, upon execution of this letter of authorization or 
promptly upon completion of its inspection, with a copy of any report, letter or summary with 
respect to conditions found at the Premises; 

2. Million Air's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and 
that its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all 
risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its 
entry or the entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the 
exercise of any of the authorities granted herein. Million Air expressly waives all claims against 
the PDA for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a 
consequence of Million Air's use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance 
of responsibilities under this authorization. Million Air further agrees to indemnify, save, hold 
harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and 
against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603 427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



Page Two 
June 3, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry - West of Hangar 229 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") 

arising out of Million Air's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in 
connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

3. Million Air agrees to provide PDA with satisfactory evidence that Million Air's 
insurance covers Million Air and any of its agent and/or contractors for the operations designated 
in the terms of this ROE. Said insurance shall include: a) comprehensive general liability 
insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), naming the PDA as 
additional insured; b) automobile liability insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00; and 
c) workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision 
that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of Million Air which would otherwise 
result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation 
of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) if obtainable, an agreement 
by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by registered mail to PDA; (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation 
against the PDA; and (iv) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried 
shall be primary and non-contributory with respect to any insurance carried by PDA. 

4. Million Air obtaining the prior written consent of the Engineering Department of 
the PDA before conducting any testing of existing infrastructure which is on site or any drilling, 
testpitting, borings or other soil disturbing activities on the Premises, and thereafter complying 
with all terms and conditions of said consent. 

5. Million Air's agreement to ensure that its agents and contractors comply with all 
PSM Airport security requirements and that it inform PDA's Airport Management Department 
when contractors will be on site conducting work authorized under this ROE. 	Million Air 
understands and agrees that the Premises is located within the Airport Security Identification 
Display Area ("SIDA"). Individuals may not enter or remain within the SIDA without a qualified 
escort. Designated representatives of the Million Air will be required to obtain security badges 
and qualify as escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of the Million Air to gain 
access to and remain on the Premises. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements 
of the Pease International Airport Security Program must be met. Prior to accessing the Premises, 
all persons providing SIDA escort must undergo verification of their criminal history for the past 
ten (10) years, attend a training class that is offered no more than once every two weeks, and pay 
any applicable fees. Information regarding escort requirements and training classes can be 
obtained by calling the Airport Operations Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Friday, 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. No representative, employee, or agent of Million Air will be allowed in 
the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements of the Pease International Airport Security 
Program. 



Page Three 
June 3, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry - West of Hangar 229 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") 

6. Million Air's agreement to restore said premises to its condition as the same existed 
prior to the commencement of any work undertaken pursuant to this ROE. 

7. Million Air's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute 
a grant of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease 
the Premises. Million Air acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no 
legal interests in the Premises shall accrue to Million Air with respect to the Premises. 

8. Million Air's agreement that this ROE; (a) allows only temporary use of the 
facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at will by PDA or 
terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination. 
The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not 
cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

Please indicate by your signature below Million Air's consent and return the same to me 
with evidence of insurance as required. 

Sincerely, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	  day of  	, 2021 

Pease Aviation Partners, LLC 
(d/b/a Million Air) 

By: 	  
Print Name: 	  
Its Duly Authorized: 	  

cc: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Maria Stowell, P.E. - Manager - Engineering 
Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory Compliance 
Chasen Congreves, Manager Airport Administration 

P:\Pease  Aviation Partners dba Million Air\ROE\ROE - Hangar 229 (Exeter Street).docx 



Page Four 
June 3, 2021 
Re: 	Right of Entry - West of Hangar 229 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") 

EXHIBIT A 

PREMISES 

Million Air Right of Entry at PSM 	 DESIGNED BY: IARJA 	DATE 672t21 	SCALE: 1 -=200'. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	 55 IFITERNA110HAL DANE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03851 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Parker: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and execute an 

Amendment to the Port City Air lease for the construction of a 24' x 26' 

addition to the existing hangar located at 44 Durham Street; all in 

accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of 

Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated June 2, 2021, attached 

hereto. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \PCA - 44 Durham Street Building Addition (Hangar Bump Out) 06-17-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONALINTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Directo 	ce, 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 

Date: 	June 2, 2021 

Subject: 	Port City Air, 44 Durham Street Building Addition 

Port City Air ("PCA"), PDA's tenant in the hangar at 44 Durham Street, is requesting approval to add a 

24 feet by 26 feet addition to the hangar. The addition would allow Port City Air additional floor area 

to pull the nose of an aircraft forward and possibly fit one more aircraft in the hangar. 

In most circumstances, a building addition requires site review as prescribed in part 404 of the Pease 

Site Plan Regulations. In consideration of i.) the size of PCA's proposed addition in comparison to the 

existing hangar (27,000 square feet), ii.) the use of the addition and its lack of impact on the use of 

the hangar or site (at most one additional aircraft), and iii.) the capability of the site to accommodate 

the requested addition, staff believes an administrative site review' is justified. 

As to aesthetics, this addition will mirror a similar addition that was built in 2001 for the same purpose. 

That addition was successfully constructed and placed in service and we anticipate the same result if 

this request is granted. 

At the June meeting, please ask the Board to approve Port City Air's request to construct a building 

addition to 44 Durham Street. If approved, an administrative site review will be conducted before 

referring PCA's building permit application to the City. 

'A 1993 Board interpretation of the PDA Land Use controls provides for administrative review when a proposed building addition is 

"...unlikely to have impact on traffic, safety or intensity of use as determined by the applicable enforcement official...." 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\PCA 44 Dur BldgAdd.docx 



                  

0. 

0 

0 
4 ; 

Q 
a. 

             

                               

                   

• 

       

1 

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                               

                                 

                 

U 
 0 

O 

0 
z 

               

                           

O 

O 

- 
-4 

 

                            

                             

           

• 
..0 -,9Z 

            

                                 

                       

                  

0 

0 
0 

- Q 

iu 

    

                      

                      

                       

                

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 N
O

S
E

 D
O

C
K

 

                

                              

E
X

I S
T

IN
G

  N
O

S
E

 D
O

C
K 

 

                               

                               

                               

                               

                               

                               

                               

                       

Li 

         

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                 



I 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ / 
/ 

- I 

_ 	
? 

= 	• I • 	 
= = ■ = • mi==....„ 

q ■-...11 = 	'''  I  — 

.,„.—.'  	 
.=.=,_ ,

■=91  

_.. 
..•■=—==.7  

■ 

.7... 
•  ,WO■la.--W .=......,-.■•11, 	iN 1  





011—  
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby: 

a. approves and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Consent 

of Sublessor and Agreement Concerning Assignment of Sublease 

("Consent") by and between PDA, Cinthesys Real Estate Management, 

LLC, and Gather, a New Hampshire non-profit corporation, for the 

premises located at 68 New Hampshire Avenue on substantially similar 

terms and conditions contained in the draft Consent attached hereto; 

b. approves and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into Lease 

Amendment No. 5 ("Amendment") on substantially similar terms and 

conditions contained in the draft lease Amendment attached hereto, 

contingent on the Assignment of the Sublease to Gather; and 

c. approves and authorizes such other action(s) and the execution of 

such other document(s) as shall be necessary or advisable to 

implement the transaction; 

all as more fully described in the memorandums of Maria Stowell, Engineering 

Manager dated June 8, 2021 and Paul E. Brean, Executive Director dated June 9, 

2021, attached hereto, and incorporated herein. 

N:\RESOLVES\2021\68  NI-I Ave 6- I 7-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	PDA Board of Directors 
CC: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director/General Counsel 
From: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 	, ■.5 
Date: 	6/9/2021 
Re: 	Assignment and Assumption of Sublease by Cinthesys Real Estate Management, 

LLC to Gather 

In May 2015, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approved the assignment of 
the underlying ground lease concerning 68 New Hampshire Ave. and the 18,525 square foot 
building thereon, to Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC ("Cinthesys"), a New Hampshire 
Limited Liability Company. 

At this time, Cinthesys has negotiated the sale of the building and an assignment of the ground 
lease to Gather, a New Hampshire non-profit corporation, for use as its headquarters. Gather 
strives to make the Seacoast region a hunger-free community through the distribution of nourishing 
food to people who do not have enough to eat; by taking a leadership role in building an equitable 
and sustainable regional food system; and by galvanizing public support for ending hunger. 
Gather's programs and its proposed uses of the 68 New Hampshire Ave. facility are discussed in 
detail in the memorandum of Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager, dated June 8, 2021, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein. These proposed uses would require an amendment to the Article 
9 of the Lease concerning the use of the leased premises by Gather. A draft consent to assignment 
and lease amendment are attached hereto, which both require Board approval. 

In addition to the above, two additional points should be understood by the Board: 

First, in October 2013 the parcel at 68 New Hampshire Ave. was rezoned from Airport Zone to 
Business Commercial Zone and the lot size of the premises was increased from 3.5 acres to 5.02 
acres in conformance with the PDA land use controls regarding minimum lot size in the Business 
Commercial Zone. The lot size under the ground lease was amended at the same time. However, 
given the additional 1.52 acres added to the lot has not been utilized by the tenant, the PDA has 
continued to only bill for the 3.5 acre lot size. In the future, should any tenant begin utilizing the 
additional 1.52 acres, or expand its building or parking on any portion of the parcel, the lot would 
be billed at its entire 5.02 acre size (minus any applicable contiguous wetlands reductions). 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone' 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



Second, Gather has been informed and understands that as a tenant of the PDA it is obligated under 
the terms of its lease, in addition to its payment of monthly rent and any other assessments, to pay 
a Municipal Services Fee consistent with NH RSA 12-G and the Municipal Services Agreement 
between the PDA and the City of Portsmouth. 

In order to facilitate the sale of the premises, at the Board Meeting on June 17, 2021, the Board 
will be asked to take the following actions: 

1. Authorize and approve execution of a Consent of Sublessor and Agreement 
concerning Assignment of Sublease ("Consent") by and between PDA, Cinthesys, 
and Gather for the premises located at 68 New Hampshire Avenue, on substantially 
similar terms and conditions contained in the Consent attached hereto; 

2. Authorize and approve execution of Lease Amendment No. 5 in substantially the 
form attached hereto, which amendment will amend Article 9, Use of the Leased 
Premises to conform with permitted uses in the Business Commercial Zone, 
contingent on the assignment of the lease to Gather; and 

3. Authorize and approve such other action(s) and the execution of such other 
document(s) as shall be necessary or advisable to implement the transaction 
contemplated in this Memorandum. 

PABOARDMTG\2021\Cinthesys Board Memo re Gather Assignment Assumption 06-17-2021.docx 

2 



CONSENT OF SUBLESSOR AND AGREEMENT CONCERNING 
ASSIGNMENT OF SUBLEASE 

THIS CONSENT AND AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") effective this 	day of 
	 , 2021 (the "Effective Date") by and between Pease Development 
Authority, an agency of the State of New Hampshire created pursuant to RSA Chapter 12-G, 
having a principal mailing address of 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 
("Sublessor"), Cinthesys Real Estate Management LLC, a New Hampshire limited liability 
company having a mailing address of 1 Glenwood Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810 
("Sublessee" or "Assignor") and Gather, a New Hampshire Non-profit Corporation having a 
mailing address of 210 West Road, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 ("Assignee"). 

WHEREAS, TACP Group, Inc. ("TACP") as Sublessee and Pease Development 
Authority, as Sublessor entered into a certain Sublease dated September 9, 1998, as amended by 
Sublease Amendment No. 1 effective November 1, 1999 (the "Sublease") for property located at 
68 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, consisting of 152,250 square feet 
(approximately 3.5 acres), Statutory Notice of Sublease of which is recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 3356, Page 1523 (the "Property") as assigned to Londavia, Inc. 
by Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated April 18, 2001 and recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 3569, Page 666, and subsequently assumed by AmSafe 
Bridport, Inc. with respect to land and improvements thereon situated at 68 New Hampshire 
Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire (the "Premises"); 

WHEREAS, Aftermarket Spares & Services, LLC, successor in interest to all of the rights 
and obligations of AmSafe Bridport, Inc., including all of the rights and obligations under the 
Sublease, assigned to 68 NH Ave, LLC all of the obligations of Aftermarket Spares & Services, 
LLC under the Sublease by Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated December 19, 2013 
and recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 5503, Page 1385; 

WHEREAS, Old Tex Mex, LLC, assumed the rights, duties, and obligations of 68 NH 
Ave. LLC under the terms and conditions of the Sublease by Assignment and Assumption of 
Sublease dated August 21, 2014 and recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds on 
August 22, 2014 at Book 5554, Page 2973; 

1 



WHEREAS, effective August 21, 2014, Old Tex Mex, LLC and Pease Development 
Authority amended the Lease pursuant to Lease Amendment No. 2 to include an increase in the 
size of the Property from 3.5 acres to 5.02 acres; 

WHEREAS, effective May 1, 2015, Old Tex Mex, LLC and Pease Development Authority 
amended the Lease pursuant to Lease Amendment No. 3 to provide, inter alia, that in no event 
shall the Base Term and all option periods extend beyond April 30, 2055; 

WHEREAS, Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC ("Cinthesys") assumed the rights, 
duties, and obligations of Old Tex Mex, LLC under the terms and conditions of the Sublease by 
Assignment and Assumption of Sublease dated May 4, 2015 and recorded in the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds on at Book , Page  

WHEREAS, effective April 1, 2016, Cinthesys and Pease Development Authority 
amended the Lease pursuant to Lease Amendment No. 4 to delete and replace Article 7, Insurance; 

WHEREAS, as of the Effective Date, and from and after the Effective Date, Sublessee 
will he deemed to have assigned to Assignee, and Assignee will be deemed to have assumed from 
Sublessee all of Sublessee's rights and obligations under the Sublease (such assignment and 
assumption being referred to herein as the "Assignment"); and 

WHEREAS, Sublessee and Assignee have requested that Sublessor consent to the 
Assignment, and accept Assignee as the Sublessee under the Sublease. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, Sublessor, Sublessee and Assignee agree as follows: 

1. 	Consent. Sublessor, subject to the covenants, agreements, terms, provisions and 
conditions contained in the Sublease and this Agreement, hereby consents to the 
Assignment, and agrees to accept the Assignee as the Sublessee under the Sublease 
effective as of the date of such Assignment. 

2. 	Assignee's Covenants. Assignee covenants that from and after the Effective Date, and 
throughout the term of the Sublease: 

a. Assignee will fully, faithfully and timely perform all of Sublessee's obligations 
under the Sublease; and 

b. Assignee will use the Premises only for uses permitted under the Sublease or 
allowed by Sublessor. 

3 . 

	 Sublessor's Representations. Sublessor hereby represents to Assignee to the best of its 
knowledge that as of the Effective Date: 

a. 	the Sublease is in full force and effect; 

2 



b. 	neither Sublessor nor Assignor is in default in the performance of or compliance 
with any provision of the Sublease; 

c. 	Sublessor has not received any notice of default or termination of the Sublease; 

d. 	the Sublease, as amended as set forth herein, is a complete statement of the 
agreement of the parties thereto with respect to the leasing of the Subleased 
Premises subject only to the Minutes of the Board dated August 15, 2013, 
September 19, 2013 and October 17, 2013, regarding rezoning and/or a lot line 
revision; 

e. 	there is no prepaid rent and no security deposit; 

f. 	rent was last paid on 	  and has been paid through 

	

4. 	Assignor's Representations. Assignor hereby represents and warrants to Assignee to 
the best of its knowledge that as of the Effective Date: 

a. the Sublease is in full force and effect; 

b. neither Sublessor nor Assignor is in default in the performance of or compliance 
with any provision of the Sublease; 

c. the Assignor has not received any notice of default or termination of the 
Sublease; 

d. the Sublease, as amended as set forth herein, is a complete statement of the 
agreement of the parties thereto with respect to the leasing of the Subleased 
Premises; 

e. there is no prepaid rent and no security deposit; 

Assignor took possession of the premises on or about May 4, 2015, the date of 
Assignor's Assumption; 

g. 
	the Assignor has not sold, transferred, assigned, hypothecated or pledged its 

interest under the Sublease or the rent received thereunder. 

	

5. 	Notices. Any notices required under the Sublease or with respect to this Agreement 
shall be sent (a) if to Sublessor, to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801, (b) 
if to Sublessee, to 1 Glenwood Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, and (c) if to 
Assignee, to  

Signed this 	day of 	 , 2021. 

3 



Pease Development Authority 
(Sublessor) 

By: 
Witness 	 Paul E. Brean 

Its Executive Director, duly authorized 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 

On this the 	 day of 	 , 2021, before me the undersigned officer, 
personally appeared Paul E. Brean as Executive Director of Pease Development Authority, 
personally known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes contained 
therein on behalf of the development authority. 

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace 
Printed Name: 
My Commission Expires: 

4 



Signed this 	day of 	 , 2021. 

Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC 
(Sublessee/Assignor) 

Witness 	 By: 	  
Its: Duly Authorized Member 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 

On this the 	 day of 	 , 2021, before me the undersigned officer, 
personally appeared  , as duly authorized Member of 
Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC, personally known to me or satisfactorily proven to be 
the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he 
executed the same for the purposes contained herein on behalf of the limited liability company. 

Notary Public 
Print Name: 
My commission expires: 

5 



Signed this 	day of 	 , 2021. 

Gather (Assignee) 

 

By: 	  
Name: 	  
Title: 

Witness 

   

s -FATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAIV1 

On this the 	day of 	 , 2021, before me the undersigned officer, 
personally appeared  , as   of Gather, 
personally known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the same person whose name is subscribed 
to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes 
contained herein on behalf of limited liability company. 

Notary Public 
Print Name: 
My commission expires: 	 

P:\CINTFIESYS  REAL ESTATE \ Gather\CONSENT OF SUBLESSOR Gather and Cinthesys 6-17-2021,docx 

6 



LEASE AMENDMENT NO. 5 

Lessor: 	Pease Development Authority ("Lessor" or "PDA") 

Lessee: 	Gather ("Lessee") 

Premises: 	68 New Hampshire Avenue - Pease International Tradeport 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

Lease Date: September 9, 1998 

This Lease Amendment No. 5 effective 	 by and between the above 
referenced Lessor and Lessee: 

WHEREAS, TACP Group, Inc. ("TACP") as Sublessee and Pease Development 
Authority, as Sublessor entered into a certain Sublease dated September 9, 1998, as amended by 
Sublease Amendment No. 1 effective November 1, 1999 (the "Sublease") for property located at 
68 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, consisting of 152,250 square feet 
(approximately 3.5 acres), Statutory Notice of Sublease of which is recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 3356, Page 1523 (the "Property") as assigned to Londavia, Inc. 
by Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated April 18, 2001 and recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 3569, Page 666, and subsequently assumed by AmSafe 
Bridport, Inc. with respect to land and improvements thereon situated at 68 New Hampshire 
Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire; 

WHEREAS, Aftermarket Spares & Services, LLC, successor in interest to all of the rights 
and obligations of AmSafe Bridport, Inc., including all of the rights and obligations under the 
Sublease, assigned to 68 NH Ave, LLC all of the obligations of Aftermarket Spares & Services, 
LLC under the Sublease by Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated December 19, 2013 
and recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 5503, Page 1385; 

WHEREAS, 68 NH, LLC assigned to Old Tex Mex, LLC a New Hampshire limited 
liability company with a principal place of business at 3510 Lafayette Rd., Ste 4, Portsmouth NH 
03801, all its rights and obligations under the Sublease pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement dated August 21, 2014; 

WHEREAS, effective August 21, 2014, Old Tex Mex, LLC and Pease Development 
Authority amended the sublease pursuant to Sublease Amendment No. 2 to include an increase in 
the size of the premises from 3.5 acres to 5.02 acres, and to amend the use of the leased premises; 

WHEREAS, by Quitclaim Deed (and Exhibits A-G, inclusive) made and entered into on 
October 15, 2003 and Quitclaim Deed dated September 16, 2005 (the "Deeds"), the government, 
acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force did grant to PDA the land and improvements 
located in the City of Portsmouth, Town of Newington and Town of Greenland, as contemplated 
by the Master Lease, Application and Acceptances, which Deed included the Premises. In 

1 



accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section 3.1 of the Sublease and the Deeds, the sublease 
is now a direct lease, (the "Lease"); 

WHEREAS, effective May 1, 2015, Old Tex Mex, LLC and Pease Development Authority 
amended the sublease pursuant to Lease Amendment No. 3 to modify the Lease to reflect a 
conditional increase in the term of the lease, subject to the Lessee constructing, during the initial 
base term of the Lease, a new building or an increase in the square footage of the existing Facility, 
as defined in Article 2A of the Lease, of not less than 5,000 square feet; 

WHEREAS, Old Tex Mex, LLC assigned all its rights and obligations under the Sublease 
to Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC, a New Hampshire limited liability company 
("Cinthesys") pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Sublease dated May 4, 2015. 
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Lease, Cinthesys leased the entirety of the Premises to 
IPSUMM, Inc. ("IPSUMM"), a Delaware corporation with a principal place of business at 5 
Fanaras Drive, Salisbury, MA 01952; 

WHEREAS, effective April 1, 2016 Cinthesys and Pease Development Authority 
amended the sublease pursuant to Lease Amendment No. 4 to modify the Lease by deleting and 
replacing Article 7, Insurance; 

WHEREAS, Cinthesys assigned all its rights and obligations under the Sublease to Gather, 
a New Hampshire Non-profit Corporation, pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Sublease 
dated 

WHEREAS, LESSEE has requested and LESSOR has agreed to make certain 
amendments to the Lease; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Lessor and Lessee agree for good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, that the Lease be amended as set forth 
below: 

1. 	Article 9, Use of Leased Premises, Section 9.1, as amended by Lease Amendment 
No. 2, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language: 

9.1 
	

The purposes for which Lessee may use the Leased Premises are: offices, 
professional and business offices; educational and training facilities; 
vehicular parking lots; consumer services, provided no such use exceeds 
10,000 square feet, nor such contiguous uses via attached buildings exceed 
25,000 square feet; restaurants, bakeries, convenience stores, including the 
sale of food and housewares and similar convenience facilities, provided no 
such use exceeds 10,000 square feet, nor such contiguous uses via attached 
buildings exceed 25,000 square feet; customary accessary uses incidental to 
permitted uses to include but not be limited to off-street parking and 
loading; and for no other uses without the Lessor's prior written consent. 
Lessor's consent shall be subject to the execution of an appropriate 
agreement which shall include a provision requiring the payment of 
established fees and charges that may be applicable to any such additional 

2 



uses consented to by Lessor. Lessee is prohibited from any use of the 
Leased Premises not specifically granted in this Section 9.1. 

2. 	All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall continue to be binding upon Lessor and Lessee. 

WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Lease Amendment No. 5 
made effective 	 , 2021. 

Lessee: 	GATHER 

By: 	 

Name: 	 

Its: 

Lessor: 	PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By: 	  
Name: Paul E. Brean 
Its: 	Executive Director 

(REMAINING PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK) 

3 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, ss. 

On this 	day of 	2021, before me, 	 , a Notary Public 
in and for said County and State, personally appeared Paul E. Brean, personally known to me (or 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Executive Director of the Pease 
Development Authority and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this instrument and 
acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein. 

Notary Public in and for said County and State 
Printed Name: 
My commission expires: 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINHSM ss. 

On this 	day of 	 2021, before me, 	 , a Notary Public 
in and for said County and State, personally appeared 	  personally 
known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the 	  of 
Gather and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be 
his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein. 

Notary Public in and for said County and State 
Printed Name: 
My commission expires: 

PACINTHESYS REAL ESTATE\Gather\68 NH Lease Amend No5.docx 

4 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Director 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 

Date: 	June 8, 2021 

Subject: 	68 New Hampshire Avenue, Proposed Sale 

Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC, PDA's tenant and the owner of the building at 68 New 

Hampshire Avenue, has made the building available for sale. Gather, a local non-profit corporation 

dedicated to promoting a healthy and hunger-free community through food distribution and 

education, is interested in purchasing the building and assuming the lease in order to use the space 

as its administrative offices and base of operations. Staff met with representatives of Gather last 

month to learn more about the proposed use. 

Absent any designation for charitable or non-profit uses in the PDA Zoning Ordinance, Staff 

considered each of the programs that Gather offers to see if they were compatible with the allowed 

uses in the Airport Business Commercial Zone in which the property is situated. 

Gather's services are centered on food distribution and food educational services, with an emphasis 

on healthy choices, such as consumption of fresh produce. This occurs through a number of 

programs, which Gather is proposing to operate from 68 NH. 

1. The Pantry Market would occupy 1248 square feet. This space is a small market where 

members can visit once a month and on "Community Friday" to receive food and personal 

care items. 

2. Meals-4-Kids delivers meals to a number of sites throughout the region. The meals would be 

prepared, packaged, and loaded into vehicles at this location. 

3. Through the Mobile Pantry Market, Gather collects perishable items that would otherwise go 

to waste from multiple vendors, such as supermarkets and restaurants. These food items 

would be brought to the site, either by Gather trucks or the donating vendor, where they 

would be sorted and then delivered to selected sites throughout the service area for 

distribution. 

4. Gather's Cooking-4-Community program facilitates the preparation of cooked meals that are 

delivered to members. Currently, Gather is "borrowing" kitchen space from local churches 

and civic groups for this program. Gather is proposing to construct a commercial kitchen at 

68 New Hampshire to support this work. Besides the meal preparation as described, Gather 

would use the kitchen for educational purposes (cooking and nutrition classes) and would, 

occasionally, host demonstration or fundraising events where prepared items may be served 

TAKING YOU THERE 



to guests. 	Gather does not want the permitted uses of the premises to include a 

recurring/daily serving of meals for consumption on premises. 

5. The Gleaning Program provides another source of healthy food (local farms) that would be 

brought to the site for distribution. 

Gather also works closely with governmental agencies, such as SNAP, Medicaid, and other local 

support groups, which would have an informational presence in the building through a "resource 

gallery." 

While Gather has suggested the possible use of a portion of the exterior of the premises to grow 

vegetables on site, the PDA Zoning Ordinance does not permit agricultural uses on PDA property. 

Given its status as an EPA Superfund site, the growing of food items on PDA property for human 

consumption is also not recommended. Furthermore, given its proximity to the airfield, activities that 

may encourage birds and wildlife into the area, such as vegetable production, are not allowed. 

Additionally, Gather has suggested the possible use of the outside space for a seasonal outdoor 

marketplace. Such outdoor market use is not permitted under PDA zoning, and, therefore, would not 

be allowed, absent the occasional occurrence as a PDA authorized special event (subject to receipt of 

a special event permit). 

To facilitate the allowed uses described herein, the existing building on the premises would be fit up 

to provide offices, a warehouse, indoor market space, meeting rooms, the commercial/ 

demonstration kitchen, coolers, and storage. Such changes would require a building permit. Gather 

also plans to have approximately 3000 square feet available to sublease. 

The Airport Business and Commercial Zone is intended primarily for uses involving business, 

commercial and trade-related enterprise.' Allowed uses include: offices; educational and training 

facilities; consumer services; restaurants, bakeries, convenience stores including the sale of food, 

governmental facilities, and their customary accessory uses. The area used by retail facilities cannot 

exceed 10,000 square feet for a single use or 25,000 square feet for contiguous uses. Staff believes 

that Gather's proposed uses as described herein, including the 1248 square foot Pantry Market and 

the commercial and demonstration kitchen totaling 2047 square feet, (but excluding any agricultural 

use or outdoor marketplace) can be viewed as aligning with the allowed uses in this zone. The Board 

has the final decision regarding interpretation of the Land Use Controls. Should the Board agree with 

Staff, that Gather's uses as described herein are permitted by right, no further land use review is 

contemplated. 

In order for Gather to occupy the building the current lease needs to be assigned to it and revised to 

permit the appropriate permitted uses in the Airport Business Commercial Zone. If assigned, Gather 

would take the lease as is and be subject to all lease requirements, including but not limited to, the 

payment of the required municipal services fee. No site changes are being proposed, therefore the 

required site review can be done through administrative review. However, pursuant to Section 

315.03 of the PDA Zoning requirements, any change in occupancy of any building or structure at Pease 



requires the issuance of a certificate of occupancy by the City of Portsmouth before said building or 

structure may be used by the new occupant. 

In closing, it should be noted that Gather has indirectly been part of the Pease community for the last 

12 years as the beneficiary of the annual Pease 'n Carrots food drive event held during the holiday 

season. 

At the June Board meeting, please ask the Board to consent to the assignment of the lease to Gather 

and, contingent on said assignment, approve a lease amendment to adjust the permitted uses under 

the lease consistent with the above. Additional information on Gather's programs and plans for the 

building are attached. 

1  Part 303.05(a) of the Pease Development Authority Zoning 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\68 NH Gather.docx 



+-J 
LL 

-
1U

N
G

E
R

-
F

R
E

E
 C

O
M

M
U

N
I
T

Y
  



C 
-0 

4--,  

1- 
4- 

c

▪  

a 

CU 

U 
(.0 
a) 

+Jcu" 

a) 
LL 
>- 

C 
co 
CL 
a) 

1- 

0 

a) 

4--

- 

, 
 (13 

-0 
CD 

-0 
'17 

-0 
0 
0 

9- 

0 

O 
0 
t.C) 
C 
ca _C 
a

▪  

) 

o 

✓
 In

  2
0

20
  C

Y
 w

e  
se

rv
e

d
 2

,4
6
4
  f

a
m

ili
e

s  
di

st
ri

bu
ti

ng
  6

4,
1

8
8

 p
ou

n
d

s  
o
f
 fr

es
h
 fo

o
d 

✓
 In

  2
0

20
  C

Y
,  w

e 
 s

e
rv

e
d
 2

3
,2

11
  c

hi
ld

re
n  

v
ia

  (
1

3)
  d

if
fe

re
n
t  

s
it

es
,  

di
st

ri
bu

ti
ng

  5
85

,4
9
6
 p

o
u

n
ds

  o
f
 fo

o
d 

0 

E
4-,  

LI3To 
0 

To u_ 

bD 
C 

*E 
a- 

a) 

U 
C 

a) 
_C ti; 

U _ 

a) 

C 
-cs 

ra 

cn 
c-I 

0 tioL13  
> 

 0 
0
8_ 

O 
4-,  

a) 
• a) 

a) 
C 

 

(,) 0- 
U 

O 0 
O 47, 

- 'Es E 
(3.1 

-C 

0 
4-' a--+ 

 E' 
(.01 	CL) 
C E 
O a)  
0- 
v, 
- E 

E 8 

Cr) 
1-. 
0 

-0 
C 
a) 
a) 

(1) 

(CS 
4-,  

13.1 
b.0 
a) 

47 

C

E 

0 

4-,  

_c 
4-,  

0 

a) 
U Q 

 
CM 

E 
a) 
4-,  

(1) 
-C1 

-C 
. - 
L- 
a) 

C 

a) 

O 
-o 

_c 
a) 
4- 

a) 

a) 

0 

(f) _ 

(a 
0 
b0 

0 

ss> 

     

a) 
0 
E 
+-) 

v, 
a) 
Q 
a) 

0 
C 

U 

a

▪  

) 

(Ji‘  
CI) 

a) 

-0 
C13 

110 
a) 

. -- 
0 

(l3 
a) 

E 
al) 
a) 

E 
4-' . - 

-0 
0 
0 

4- 

a)  

-C 
. _ 
a)" 
0 

(13 

4-,  

0 
(J1 
(/) 

O 
O  

-o 

4- 

(3) 
4-0  
ra 
C 
0 

4- 
O 

E  

a) 

-a 
a) 
O 

0 

E 

  

      

CM 
C 
0 
47) 
(ts 
C 
0 
-0 
-o 
0 
0 
-o 
a) 

U 
(.0 
a) C.- 

-C 
to 
a) 
1- 
4- 

4- 
O 

co 

C 
kr) 

ra 

 

      

2.
  M

e
a

ls
-4

-K
id

s  
(M

4K
)  

      

      

c—I 

  

3.
  M

o
bi

le
  P

a
nt

ry
  M

a
rk

et
  



✓
 F

or
  2

0
2

1
  F

Y
T

D
  (

Ju
l 
1
-  

A
p

r  
3

0
,  
2

0
2

1
)  

w
e
  h

av
e  

re
p

u
rp

os
e

d 
1

84
.1

k 
p

o
u
n

ds
  o
f
 fo

o
d

 in
to

  -
87

.7
k 

p
re

p
ar

e
d

 m
e

a
ls

  

✓
 M

o
s
t  

o
f 

th
e  

1
8

4
. 1

k 
o

f 
re

p
u

rp
os

e
d
 fo

o
d

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

ve
  g

o
n
e
  t

o
  c

o
m

p
os

t  

4.
  C

o
o

ki
ng

-4
-C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y  

0 

	

-0 	.5 
0.)  

	

-C CD 	 EL"  C c

▪  

o 
(-7 	 0 vi.  4-J 

	

tn -0 	C 
O C C 	CU ._ 	 > co 	co 	a) co _ a.) 	-0 	t).0 _C 	 (...7 	O.) 	C u 	 C 	._ 

LE 	 2 co 	c 
3 	 LE 	

O.) 
W 
co 

v) 	 v) 	ttO 
OA a 	 a_ (/) 

o E cn 

	

a) 	c) 
lo 	 co LI 	M 
co vi 	 = X 	M 
NJ )- 	 CD 	-0 • - 0..) C 	 3 4- 	CD _0 co 	 a) 

	0 
	-I-, 

U to E 	 z to 	= 1- 
o 0.) 	 s_ 	C 

	

._ 	-0 
u E 	 o 

	

co 	c ,.4- 	5- 
o 

o 	 E 

" 	u = 	 4-, 	Ln v) 

	

a) 	c co s- 	 LE _c 	co (...) 0 	

▪ 	

O.) o — —v) 	 c co 	(-7 s_ r,3 	 0 4-, 
CO ra.) CU 	 0_ 4-, 	= 

_0 ,- 	 cr) 	*- 
4.-,  t 	 0..) = 	Z 

u O ,— • oLI- 
-0 

	

-0 w 	 _C 
OA o 	c c t- 

	

fo co 	 .- 	4-0 	0 e2 
Crl 	----, ,V) a  9-  

• I_ 	 W 

- 

Z 	CL) E > cl_ 	cc L_ _c ta 
o v., 	 0 u- 

...-... 	 4.-) co 4- 

	

.--, = 	 a) __ \ as  

	

o 	 E L_ 	o 

	

v) .0 	 = 0 	u 

	

-c = 	 in 	 cu 

	

a.) 	 in 	 a) 

	

5 C3 	 co % VI 0 CNi 
-.' 	 0 Z  CU 	CU 

	

4-' 4_, 	 -I-, 	 -C C  

	

C C 	 L'" 'Z 	+-, co 

	

Cli --- 	E 	a)

▪ 

 4-, 
c c I- ... _c 

	

E -0 	 co 

	

a, o 	co 	2 	co (13  

	

2 42 	s_. 	u 	0

- 

- cu 0.) 
8 

tx0 ct 

	

co v) 	2 2  0 0 
O

▪  • 

0 
4- -0 

ct:5

• 	

1-  E 

	

C \ cu 	 L_ 

	

c ° 	 LL 	c E 
CO 0- s_ 

 
O. 	17'0 	(1)' 	w  2 , 0 

	

w = 	0  tv 	4—, 0 (0 ,4-• 
> CL 	 ... 	U  a) 

	

_c L- 	C ai -o u01 u co w 
• — 	‘-'I 	(I)  c 	,.-1 = 

	

a) 0 	c 0 _C 47; 0 -0 

	

® 	
N 

C 
>. u 

a3  0_ N 0 
s- 

CD . (-7  -C 
(1) a_ 

	

5: a) 	CI) 	= 
.4-, 	4-J -C CD 	 ■■■ 	03 	... - 

	

u 	(D 	a' 	,_ 	L_ v) 
o -w 	 a >a)  (0  o 22 

	

1— :2 	— 	a. u... 4.- 

Lf) 	\ 



0) 
0) 

0 
0 
N 

a) 
tic 
co ,.._. 
a) 
> 
< 

>- > >-(0 (0 (0 
---, -..

- 

.., .-, 
o o 0 
LO 0 0 
LI.)  N N 
in 06 oc5' 

(3
)  

v
an

s  
an

d 
(1

)  
p

ic
ku

p  
tr

u
ck

 

M
o

bi
le

  M
ar

ke
ts

  —
  f

am
il

ie
s  

s
e

rv
e

d 

[o
u

ts
id

e 
 "

F
a

rm
er

s
' M

a
rk

e
t  

he
ld

 a
t  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  C

a
m

p
us

  p
a

rk
in

g
  l

o
t]
  

F
re

e
-f

o
r-

a
ll-

Fr
id

ay
  

P
ou

n
d

s  
o
f
 fo

o
d
 r

ec
e

iv
e

d 

Pa
n
tr

y
  M

ar
ke

t  
m

em
b
e

r  
v

is
it

s  

■
 

P
ou

n
ds

  o
f
 fo

o
d
 di

st
ri

bu
te

d 

■
 

#  
o

f 
m

ea
ls

  c
o

o
ke

d
 i

n
  b

o
rr

o
w

e
d
 ki

tc
h

e
n  

■
 

M
4K

  —
  c

hi
ld

re
n

  s
er

v
e

d 

-- 

▪  

0 0 0 
CNI 01 01 00w 

N rri eri co NI tr) 
c-I N N N e--1 
c-1 %-I 	c-I 

4-

- , 

 
C 
0 

2 
a) 
0 

0 
N 
I.11 

a 	• a 	• 	a 



r\I o Ln N rn 
Ol I< d .71 N LCS' onl< 

 LC) c-I CO c--1 M •Zt 
N 	 r-I 

0 
C.) 

0 	 0 

Ln cr? 

0 
0 

-a 
a) 
ea 

0 

ea 

0 
up- 
0 

-0 
C 

0 
0 

N 
LE; 
M 2 

479 	 i.r} 
CD 0 

U 4-1 

1- 2 
CU 0 

E O
u

r  
P

an
tr

y
  t

o
  T

a
b
le

  p
ro

g
ra

m
  p

re
p

a
re

d 
>

  8
7
, 0

0
0

 m
e

a
ls

.  

O
u

r  
m

o
bi

le
  p

an
tr

y
  p

ro
g

ra
m

s  
co

n
ti

n
u
e
  t

o
  g

ro
w

  a
t  

a  
ra

p
id

 p
ac

e.
  

,v) 
O 
O 
O 

x-1 
(11 
O 

0 en 

P
o
u
n

ds
  o
f
 fo

o
d
 di

st
r

ib
u

te
d 

Fo
o d

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
  b

y  
Pr

og
ra

  

U_ 
co 
L 

0 
E 
a) 
0 

:E 
a) 

E 
GJ 
2 

aJ 

aJ 

aJ 
_o 

aJ 
E 
O 
N 
lD 
N M

o
re

  t
h
a
n
  2

0
%

 o
f a

re
  

m
e

m
b

e
rs

  a
re

  s
e
n

io
rs

  

aJ 

a, 
_45 - 
■4— 
0 at 

O (11  
0 v) 
M 
>" _0 

E 
(1) 

z E in
  2

0
19

 F
Y

  w
it

h
 a

n
  

c
hi

ld
re

n
  o

r  
te

en
s  



w 
0 

a) 

(0 

z 

L 

w 
0 z 
0 

w 
z 
w 

w 
ce 

C1) 
0 

w 
00 
00 

w 



0  
ce 
O 

LL 
II 	_1  

0 
L 

I 

..0 - .0Z 	 ,.0 - .0Z ..9 - .ZZ 	 - ,ZZ .0 - .0Z 	 ,A - AZ 

.0 - .CU 



17.. 	F- 
LU 	 -J 	J 
(-) IN 	

g n 	.= , . 	.... ._ ::-.... 	z !,...... 	. — 
0 0 	 . 
C., 	C., 

LL fg 
0 

0 

I  • 	‘16......L 

z 
0 
2 

O : 

311N3AV HN 

z 

0 
0 

LL 

a_ 
- w 

(.) z 
0 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
 

A
S

S
E

M
B

L
Y

 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

H z 
z 

2s 

[ 
0 ) 

 ;1 1.... ,__,  a  _ 
51   

atl 

0 

■ 

I' 

li 

11 
ii 	 u_t 

u) = 	 0 
0 	 0 I; 	 z z , 
= , 	 73:- <0 0, V 	 a — u-I '',' ce " E < 	, j(-)  — 

i 	 u)  

- 9 - 29 

0 - .0Z 0 - .00 .9 - 9 - .ZZ 0 - .00 .0 - .00 

z 

 LU 



LIt 

.14 9 /LZ•9L 

.IVC 6 . .CE 

„9/L OL - 

r7177=71' 
7 

7  

(sdwei way epiepe4w) 
OW301' SSYd aood 

O 

TR
AS

H
 S

H
ED

 

7 
ry 

I 

0 
O 

a_ 



N 

<a 

2 



O 



fr
om

  w
o

rk
 ta

bl
es

  

co 
0 
E 



O
F

ro
n

t  K
itc

he
n  

fr
om

  f
oo

d 
p

as
s  

 



fr
om

  d
em

o  
se

a
ti

n  

•  



10■.- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Anderson: 

The PDA Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive 

Director to complete negotiations and to enter into a contract with 

LeaseQuery for Property Management Leasing Accounting Software; all in 

accordance with the memorandum of Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of 

Finance, dated June 8, 2021, attached hereto. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ LeaseQuery - Lease Management Software 6-17-2021.docx 



PEASE 
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 
To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 	 \‘\ 

From: 	Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance 

Date: 	June 8, 2021 

Subject: 	Contract with LeaseQuery for Lease Management Software 

The Pease Development Authority is interested in purchasing property management lease 
accounting software. This software purchase is driven by the requirements of GASB 87, a 
Government Accounting Standard requiring governmental agencies to change the accounting and 
financial reporting of leases. Each of PDA's approximately 120 leases will need to be 
individually converted to this new standard as the current lease management software, Binary 
Systems, does not have the capability to meet the requirements of this new standard. GASB 87 is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021, meaning PDA's FY22 audited financials 
must reflect the new reporting requirements. 

In preparation for this new regulatory requirement, PDA conducted a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) in January, 2021. We received four bids from vendors, all of whom met the guidelines 
outlined in the RFP. Software demonstrations were scheduled with 3 of the 4 vendors; 
LeaseQuery, a low bidder in terms of cost, was chosen as having the most appropriate 
technology necessary to meet the needs of PDA. 

LeaseQuery is a cloud based lease management software. The company has extensive experience 
in implementing GASB 87. PDA's Information Technology Director, Greg Siegenthaler, 
participated in the RFP review process and has confirmed that LeaseQuery meets PDA's 
cybersecurity requirements. 

The annual subscription cost for this software is $10,500 for up to 125 records/leases. One-time 
training and implementation/configuration fees will total $12,500, and an additional $5,000 one-
time fee will be incurred for data entry and analysis of up to 25 leases. Analysis of additional 
leases would be billed at $250 per lease if PDA felt analysis was necessary. 

At the June 17, 2021, meeting of the PDA Board of Directors, please seek approval to complete 
negotiations with LeaseQuery and to enter into a one year agreement for the provision of 
property management lease accounting software. Thank you for your consideration in this 
matter. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

PHone 603 433.6088 	Fax 603 42704 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

authorizes the Executive Director to institute a temporary application 

process for the short-term display of banner flag signs for the purpose of 

assisting small retail business impacted by the COVID-1 9 pandemic as they 

reopen, all in accordance with the Memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., 

Manager - Engineering, dated June 9, 2021, attached hereto. 

N: \ RESOLVES \2021 \Banner Signs - 14 Manchester Square 6-17-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Director -4.j  
From: 	Maria J. Stowell, RE., Engineering Manager j)DtAAX 

Date: 	June 9, 2021 

Subject: 	Temporary Signs for Covid Impacted Businesses 

As you know, signs are displayed on the Tradeport only after a tenant submits a request, that request 

is reviewed by staff and, if necessary, by the Board, and the reviews culminate in an approval. 

Recently, two small retail type businesses that are subtenants of PDA tenants have placed tall banners 

outside of their businesses to attract customers in violation of PDA land use controls and the 

applicable leases. Staff contacted PDA's tenant at the relevant locations to discuss the removal of the 

banners. The tenant, who subleases to these retail interests, indicated the immediate need for the 

banners in light of the downturn in business due to the pandemic. The businesses, which were forced 

to close for a time, have found the banner displays to be most effective in letting the public know that 

they have recently reopened. 

Recognizing the impact that Pease small retail businesses are still experiencing due to the pandemic 

and the very unique period of time we are in, staff is proposing that a temporary application process 

be implemented to allow the display of banners on a short-term basis. The process would, at a 

minimum, require: 

1. The application is submitted by PDA's direct tenant; 

2. The business seeking to display a banner has been impacted by the pandemic (i.e. small 

businesses that rely on foot/vehicle traffic as banners should not be allowed as a simple 

advertising tool); 

3. The banner must advertise a particular business on the lot or service being offered. 

4. The banner is of the tall, single support style, professionally made and properly erected. The 

banner proposal may be denied if the size is determined to be excessive; 

5. The banner is on the same lot as the business; 

6. Each business may have only one banner; 

7. If more than one business is located on a lot, there may be only one banner per 250 feet of 

frontage; 

8. The applicant shall submit a plan showing the approximate placement of the signs on the lot; 

9. All temporary banners shall be removed by September 10, 2021, the Friday after Labor Day. 

Staff would review the applications and grant the required approval based on the listed conditions. If 

you agree, please bring the matter to the PDA Board next week. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

0-asedev org 



I have attached a memo from the tenant at the Retail Center that provides additional justification for 

the banners. 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\CovidlmpactSigns.docx 



NH Avenue Retail Center, LLC 

1 New Hampshire Ave LLC 

25, 29 Retail, LLC 

C/O CPManagement, Inc. 

11 Court Street 

Exeter, NH 03833 

Memorandum 

To : 	Maria Stowell 

From: James J. Horne 

Date: June 8, 2021 

Re: 	Promotional Banners/Flags at Pease — 14 Manchester Square and One NH Ave. 

Maria: 

Per our conversation today, we would like to request that the PDA temporarily allow the use of 

flags/banners as set forth below to promote certain retail businesses that were adversely affected by 

the pandemic. 

At 14 Manchester Square and One New Hampshire Avenue we have six retail businesses severely 

affected first by the shutdowns and later (and ongoing) by the lack of customers at Pease. As you know, 

many office buildings remain at very low occupancy. Two of these businesses, Portsmouth Trade and 

Greeting and the US Post Office, have already closed down permanently, dealing a severe blow to our 

retail choices. The others, Belle Peppers, Tradeport Pizza, The Juicery, Tradeport Barber and What a 

Crock are only barely staying alive through government support and rent abatements. 

Our entities realize the importance of retail choices at Pease. We have waived large sums of rent to 

preserve these choices. 

Recently, Tradeport Barber and Belle Peppers have resorted to the placement of banners to attract more 

business from the street. These banners have been very effective. 

Banners have been placed at the intersection of the driveways and Manchester Square and/or New 

Hampshire Avenue and the intersection of Manchester Square and New Hampshire Avenue. We are 

asking that permission be granted to allow this practice. We would regulate it such that no more than 

one banner would be allowed at a given intersection, and we would also make sure that the banner is 

placed on the lot and not on public land. 

We understand the PDA rightfully restricts this type of promotion and we wholeheartedly support the 

typical restrictions. We do not want to degrade the streetscape with banners and advertisements. 

Notwithstanding, given the current tenuous situation faced by Pease retailers that are already marginal, 

we believe we need to do all we can from now until the end of 2021 to give these businesses a fighting 

chance. 



 

7A 'W 

7 A 
AIRPORT Airline Ave „ Portsmouth,NH 03801 

MANAGEMENT 
	 603.43.•536 

Memorandum 

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director 44.0, 
From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison tA, 

Date: 6/9/2021 

Subj: Noise Report for May, 2021 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received four noise inquiries in May, 2021. Three 
of the inquiries were pertaining to fixed wing aircraft and the forth inquiry was pertaining to a 
rotor wing aircraft. 

The fixed wing inquiries originated from Durham. Rye and Portsmouth. The Durham resident's 
concern was about noise and duration of six F-18's and two support tankers departing in 
succession to the North heading oversees. A follow up email was sent on May llth. The Rye 
resident's concern was about a Military C-17 cargo aircraft departing to the south at 11:00 PM. 
A voice message was left on May 1 lth. The last fixed wing inquiry was from a Rochester 
resident about continuous noise of aircraft overhead. The noise was from aircraft taking passengers 
up to Skydive departing Lebanon Airport in Maine. 

The rotor-wing aircraft inquiry was from a Portsmouth resident who lives adjacent to the 
southeast end of the airfield. The helicopter arrived and departed to the southeast putting the 
helicopter over the neighborhood. It was a normal take-off and landing but a courtesy phone call 
was made to Maine Helicopters to ask them to fly the runway heading to avoid the noise sensitive 
area if possible. 

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are researched 
and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have indicated that call 
backs are unnecessary. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 



0-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Ferrini: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of 

and authorizes the Executive Director to: 

1. Expend funds in the amount of $11,832.00 for legal services 

rendered to the Pease Development Authority from: 

Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green  

April 1, 2021 - April 30, 2021 	 $ 3,944.00 

(for Tradeport General Representation) 

April 1, 2021 - April 30, 2021 

(in support of MS4 and CLF 

settlement implementation) 

$ 7,888.00  

 

Total 	 $11,832.00 

2. Expend funds in the amount of $10,656.00 for legal services 

rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Anderson Kreiger 

as outside counsel for Federal Regulatory Advice from April 1, 2021 

through April 30, 2021. 

For a total amount of $22,488.00 in legal services 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Legal Services 6-17-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



Pease Development Authority 	 May 27, 2021 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Trade Port - General Representation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 
Invoice Number: 361519 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $3,944.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

	

TOTAL THIS BILL: 
	

$3,944.00 

	

PREVIOUS BALANCE: 
	

$5,539.00 

	

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 
	

$9,483.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 



Pease Development Authority 	 May 27, 2021 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Permit Implementation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 
Invoice Number: 361518 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $7,888.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

	

TOTAL THIS BILL: 
	

$7,888.00 

	

PREVIOUS BALANCE: 
	

$13,871.42 

	

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 
	

$21,759.42 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 



ANDERSON 

EIGER 
50 Milk Street, 21st Floor 

Boston, MA 02109 
(617) 621-6500 
EIN: 04 -2988950 

May 18, 2021 

Pease Development Authority 
Anthony Blenkinsop, Deputy Director/General Counsel 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Reference # 138197 	/ 1047-4136 

In Reference To: Federal Regulatory Advice 

Professional Services Hours 	Amount  

   

Attorney/Paralegal Summary 

Name Hours Rate Amount 

Scott P. Lewis 0.80 555.00 444.00 

David S. Mackey 18.40 555.00 10,212.00 

Total Current Billing: $10,656.00 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of the request made by 75 NH, LLC for the removal of ten (10) to 

twelve (1 2) trees near the building located at 85 New Hampshire Avenue, 

provided that any and all requisite permits are obtained and all tree 

removal work is done with reasonable prior notice to the PDA Engineering 

Department; all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, 

P.E. - Manager - Engineering dated June 2, 2021 attached hereto. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \85 NH Ave Tree Removal Request.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

w p 8 s 	e v o r g 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Director 'oi3 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager _ 

Date: 	June 2, 2021 

Subject: 	Tree Removal, 85 New Hampshire Ave 

In 2015 and 2016, 75 NH, LLC secured approvals and permits for the construction of the two story 

building at 85 New Hampshire Avenue. Construction was completed about three years ago. In laying 

out the building site, the developer took advantage of Part 304-A.07(a)(13) of the Pease Wetlands 

Protection Ordinance and located a portion of the building and site facilities within 25 feet of the 

wetland. Part304-A.07(a)(13) allows redevelopment within the nominal buffer if the land has been 

previously disturbed for the construction of an impervious surface. The result is that the building is 

very near trees situated in the wetland or wetland buffer. (See attached drawing.) 

75 NH, LLC recently notified staff that, for a second time, a tree had fallen onto the building causing 

damage and asked about approvals needed to remove ten to twelve trees. 75 NH provided the 

attached letter from its arborist, which assesses the condition of these trees and recommends their 

removal. Depending on the precise location of the trees to be removed (wetland or wetland buffer), 

the potential impact on the wetland, and the proposed method of tree removal, a DES wetland permit 

and/or a PDA conditional use permit may be required. 

To reduce the risk of further damage to the building or building occupants, please ask the Board to 

approve the request of 75 NH, LLC to remove trees near the building at 85 New Hampshire Avenue, 

provided that the requisite permits are obtained. 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\85NH Trees.docx 



a . 	•--"  .4 • 
	Fl 

• 

elebrating beauty since 1979 
ATAQ 

www.piscataqualandscaping.com  

LANDSCAPING 	 26 Maclellan Lane, Eliot, ME 03903 

"et TREE SERVICE 
	

TEL 207.439.2241 FAX 207.439.6661 

To: CP Management C/O: Jay Home 
From Chris Kemp 
Regarding: 85 New Hampshire Avenue 
Date: May 13, 2021 

Justin Gamester forwarded me your letter regarding the trees I marked for removal at 85 New 
Hampshire Avenue. I marked these trees in response to (2) trees that fell onto the building, one of them 
shattering an office window. They range in size from 6"-16" in diameter. All the trees I marked for removal are 
close to the building, they are a shallow rooted species and/or they may have a compromised trunk or root 
structure which would pre-dispose them to failure. All trees are within striking distance of the building and 
make them hazardous in nature. The trees that I marked are also on the edge of a seasonal wetland. The wet 
soils generally tend to destabilize root systems. 

Please let me know if you have any other questions regarding my assessment of the trees recommended for 
removal. 

Sincerely, 

/e/1 

Chris Kemp 
Certified ISA Arborist 
TRAQ certified 



i
il  

/1
1 0

  

AMBIT ENGINEERING, INC. 
Civil Engineers & Land Surveyors 

/ 

/ 	 ) 
`'... 	-.. 

	 41. 

* 	 V 200 Griffin Rood - Unit 3 
Portsmouth, N.H. 03501-7114 
Te1 	430-922 ) (603

(603) Fox 	436-231
8

5 

/ 
4,41111.611,1111EMNIMM 	 1 	e4 	

44, 
A. AM AX PROPOSED 	

PIEPOSED 
/ 	 w w STOP SIGN 	

Laos or 
WORK Cm) 	Bing  

/ 

• • 	 • 	- - - -- 	 -- . .. -- . 	- 	

). -4 

NOTES: 
1) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY DIG SAFE AT 
1-888-DIG-SAFE (1-888-344-7233) AT LEAST 72 
HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY EXCAVATION ON 
PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

2) UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE BASED UPON 
BEST AVAILABLE EVIDENCE AND ARE NOT FIELD VERIFIED. 
LOCATING AND PROTECTING ANY ABOVEGROUND OR 
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF 

THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR THE OWNER. UTILITY CONFUCTS 
SHOULD BE REPORTED AT ONCE TO THE DESIGN 
ENGINEER. 

3) CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN EROSION 

CONTROL MEASURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "NEW 
HAMPSHIRE STORMWATER MANUAL, VOLUME 3, EROSION 

AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS DURING CONSTRUCTION. (NHDES 

DECEMBER 2008). 

4) CONTRACTOR TO EXCAVATE AND REMOVE EXISTING 
BURIED CONCRETE SLAB BENEATH LIMITS OF PROPOSED 
BUILDING. 

5) CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE LANDSCAPE 
INSTALLATION LOCATIONS TO AVOID PLANTING OVER 
UTILITIES. 

6) UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION AND PRIOR TO 
ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY AND RELEASE 
OF BOND, THE APPUCANT SHALL SUBMIT A LETTER TO 
THE PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, SIGNED AND 
STAMPED BY A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, STATING 
CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN CONFORMANCE 
WITH THE APPROVED PLANS. 

7) CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT AS BUILT PLANS ON 
REPRODUCIBLE MYLAR AND IN DIGITAL FORMAT (.DWG FILE) 
ON DISK TO THE OWNER AND ENGINEER UPON 
COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT. 	AS BUILTS SHALL BE 
PREPARED AND CERTIFIED BY A NEW HAMPSHIRE LICENSED 
LAND SURVEYOR. 

B) ALL CURB RADII SHALL BE 5' UNLESS NOTED 
OTHERWISE. 

9) SNOW PILES SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE 
DURING WINTER PLOWING OPERATIONS. 

. 	
ir,s  

PROPOSED VERTICAL / 	 © GRANDE CURB 1/GC". '." 
	o 	., 

- • -29 	qP 	f 	______ . 	 itx, —4 	- --■— e 	v 	e.14' 	- 

tILMI= LI   ■1111 I-- 
i- 	i, 

}• 	A 

/ 	 IMT CONNECT TO CRISTING 
VERTICAL GRANITE CURS 

----.. 

---.. 	 .KA PAVEMENT JOINT 

i 
.. 

, 	4,4-ir. 	 III1 _ • 
... 	....,......, 

up ooD a. 

f...a... 	r_ 	I 	f 	- 	
Pi., 	'-'*i'4' 

A--ra, 	 -1/1/e 

 __,....aia. 
- 	92 

1, 

....' 

9 

k 

- g 	 r 	r 	 - - •  _ -. 	i 	.! . _.. 

"7—  - _ 
'-: ;-•, 	 - - - - 171,1-- --L--- v 	 4- ‘—I -- '--- 

• AA PROPOSED 5' coNcRrrE 
1E7 SODOM( VAIN cyrlyZ117.114  

■ 

In.,1S 

.t1 la 
-41.4 	 2) 	 ia) 	 9  

C AL 0 0 P ROPOSED CCRUETE I 	4:01 • 
- 

2". 	•1(011410) 	

....s 

., 	

//.. 
1 oukosrca Re No / 

srnE£N PELAGE 	 ,. Paoposoo  EA   
1 
§ 

/1111 	I 	g 

^ 0.11  ■ • 

1 

PAINTED 
■ 

11CIE, 	CROSSWALK  
. 

I 	CET 	 _ft 
.• 

 I 	/: 0 	 e 
' ---. 

' 

0 eROPOSED vklrr.I.,etc...‘ 

w CONNECT TD COSTING 
vER9944 cavurE cum 

N 

i 
I-24.cf 

kl r.1- 
o 	I 

 r 1 	 e , 	0. • .- 	 
TR P 	

ToR PAD 
HMO= LANS OF DISTii6NOZE. NO 

, 	 AM I 	 P 	
1511.1RISMICE SHALL Dane avow 

E 

8 

'- 

1- 

f 	 Ala 
© -4---J 	 isnoac Lois oft 2S' 'ELMO SUFFER. 

cf  * Ur  iEk LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE: 	117 MT 
ID, No. IM, 	 (NAM .S.IL 

RELOCATED 
swim TREES 
CM OF 5) 

0 0 . ID 	Li 
1111463<VER ISCLOSipenTAILDO 	5...._ 

Hen ir-i 	CET 'LORING 	© (MOTO 	 r .---.. 	ZONE 	 i9,932 S.F. 	 e 
07 	TT-RUA OCCIDENTAUS 'NIGRA' 

OARK AMERICAN ABBORVITAES 	 5 	8' HT. 

113 REMNI4 

	

P 
	C. - 	PARKING" SIGN 	'Ur 	 ,' 	0.4155 

II 	 P 	 e 	'Cite. t.ine....v., 
/ O'l \ 

13.13' 
PROPOSED ultra Or ii 	_.,........,._.  _ 	 trre.) 

e 	ZELKOVA SERRATA . 	-0 
JAPANESE ZELKOVA 	 7 	2" CAL. 

	

<C> 	MALUS 'BRANDYWINE' 
BRANDYWINE FLOWERING CRABAPPLE 	11 	2" CAL. 

11 	 <> 	SPIREA JAPONICA 
[Ora PRINCESS SPIREA 	 17 	2 GAL 

ERSPJRILANCE NO 

	

SMALL EOM SVONO (0> 	JUNPERUS COMMUNIS 
2.5.  REMIND BUFFER,LIFRIBL 	 COMMON JUNIPER 	 6 	2 GAL. 

TO IVETLISCIS 

92V> 
1-2o.o' 	 L 

i 	 I 
R) . 

'P' 
1  1 	_..,. 

24 0' v 	Mailiny, to.  es- 

- 	INERNSIPISIMINIEL 
, - 	 /.1 

C ' 	PRC fiEGED 	 . 	,..„.g.t.--,.  , 
DOLORES  	PROPOSED 72 IF •4 

D3 	RETADING WALL 

	

,1 	
115713RIC LIMBS OF r, 	(TYP. I3F 
NEW 0•311-TREATICE 

PROPOSED 12.A20' 	 $ 	14ISTORC LIMOS OR - 	 4111A 	0 7 .7. Tn. 7. 	 WISCREVER 15 COMER LDNING SPACE , 	 ILIET 	I I , e , 

ma ex wofel 
EWE OF DRINEWAY 

READCATf33 
1.1014f 

AT 
I 	 It, 

1,
1
2 
3 ) 

102 LF 
WALL 

LIGHT 

sem 	i 

E
1  

ARk PROPOSED 
TV RETAINING 

EXISTING 
TO RERAN 

ink III PROPOSED 
127 IcEr war 

li 	...-4 

	

, 	 -9 

	

1 ' 	PROPOSED 2 STORY 	 I 	1 

,0 . 0, \ 
I I 

i  

.. 

' 	

OFFICE BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT 	 PROPOSED 	AA 14,250 	 I. 

1$, -: 

	

.= S.F. 	 _..,•Ir... _ 
TOTAL AREA . 26, 	 Ear 

' 	
FINISH FLOOR ELEV 	67.0 

500 S.F. 	 BIKE Rh= 

'A 	 • , 4 
3C.  

1 

• 
I-I SD 1110.-11 -CREBIliaAiil 

PROPOSED 411TIICAL 
AA GRANITE CURD NGC". 
ICET CONNECT 10 COSTING 

VERTICAL GRANDE CURD 1 

illinul 

 PROPOSED 5' CONCRETE AIL SEE 
SETS.= 

PROPOSED 'SNOW 
VGC 

menu am vane& 	 Elk  ..4 	1111 
• GRANITE CURB (TM) 	Ur 	PROPOSUI PAINTED 

CRIOSSWAUT 	1127 	ficalhalliws"Rimmulumiammursirriiri ' 	 1111111 

1 • v. =Mr 0  
24.0' 	 0 	24.0. 

.re,e‘o.o, 	,•• ■ •,,,,,, 

(1) 
45 

I 
STOWE PROMOTED 
Pi OAS AREe SION 

Kik Lk ' IMINEWAiWo 
.,, r inirsitipiwirmimpowdarrecomisimin  

EL PROPOSED r 

'5,' 4- 
_ _ 

r 	 , 0., VGC EA 

Wu. 	5.0' 	--_-. 

t o„o' 	4> 	 8 	 '-' 9 	90 	9.9' 	CO' 

I 1 
s 	 1 _ 	j....±- ,.., 

CU IEr 

(0 p.o.,4 

PADDED CRDS5 	 R10' o' '' Icy 	ED 	14/4.1( 

411716. PROPOSE] mom 	:= 

85 NEW HAMPSHIRE 
AVENUE 
PEASE INTERNATIONAL 
TRADEPORT 
PORTSMOUTH, N.H. 

- 	 TEr AL0P_QTtl - 

AA 
eAvreem m .ocwir 

arik  PROPOSED VEJTDCAL . 

- - _ 

..y. 
_ 

if  A 
AR 	

I  
41  RR  

 

VW NW WO MI 0..-  

4 
-9 " v 

A 

9 
eol  at! 

kr, 

; f--sco t- 

ore 
SETBACK 5ETRAC 

 

ii 

•, 

. 	 ," 	do. 

C>C1 	

el 	*.F.40.....,40 nilll'4+111474Wilb O. 	A 	II  
4>:-/I 

PROPOSED 
STORMIVATER FATTY 	/ •R 

0 4* 
IL:9, co...E. TO ET3S1PAT 

VERTICAL GRAMM CORD 

PROPOSED DORY . 
PROPOSED HANDIC.AP PARKM6 	 r f.  AM. An sem Iv Nv4AccEssar 

El lay 	PROPOSED IWOCAP 	 .. (GR,ss ammo 1 1 
CA TV 	(0131011 Tem 
...LE _\, 

° 	SIG, - -. 

24. 	' 

EXISTINC 
ROADWAY 

.01cEy 
PARIMIC S1CNS TM) 

0 	O 0,,, 	• - 	maimimeamp......... ,„,, Illth :.. . 
, rii 
. I  4 	REVISED LIMIT OF WORK 11/10/15 

o 4, 	 V 
f a 	.rr a 

', 	• 	2-15* 	1 
" 	CEDARS 	.., ..-_,- 

r  

o 

3 	!SIDEWALK, MILL/OVERLAY, SIGN, NOTE 9 9/18/15 

93 2 	I ADA  PARKING, MILL/OVERLAY 

1 	(REVISED BUILDING, SITE LAYOUT, NOTES 

8/11/15 

7/21/15 
' -1", " 	CAM= 50-. 	9,  siDE\yAu<  ITC I" 'V 
	

•F it• vr 	 " mt RP vr rir," -v• %WW1. 1, -.• -Tr IT ••• 	 or ,TP 	15,  V' 	• IP T. 'V' 'I' • NV/ 

■ 
TA 	

(TYP) • • 4i, 
VOA,

•

.A 
4  b 	 . 	 el.. 	I- 	Ili 	& 	+Lir& 	. 	A.. 	t,,46401 Alb A. 	1 	.A. 	*tr. 	E. 	al% 	 rt■ . 

,IP• V.  10. ,Ir V' 	1T• IP vujorywripurappiiimihrirami,:wr 'Ire 
7  ir 	'r  Min 

‘ 1.4  

‘, 

PROPOSED WADS OF WORK 
(TTP ) 

0 	I ISSUED FOR COMMENT 6/15/15 

NO. ' 	 DESCRIPTION DATE 

*#,e,. Isa 4 	 .  	.. 	Att .416.4e,  4.4 

REVISIONS 

NEW HAMPSHIRE AYE TO RECEVE,t04461 AND OvERI.Ar 10
TRENCH

• 
EACH SIDE OF EXISTING AND P 	PAVEMENT TRENCH 
PATCHES FOLLOWING THE FIRST FREEZE/THAW CYCLE AFTER 
CONSTRUCTION 

,,,,00117N% 
os, ‘0, NM A,4  .(5 

',' 	ki 
,
t. ''t 11 OTN9 ° ' 

wCOLIN 
NO  01 

r-
• 

4 • 	, 

HANDHOLD I_ 	
1- CATV 

PROPOSED 5' CONCRETE 	Apik 
SIDEWALK. CONNECT TO 
EXISTING SIDEWALK 	Ir.27 

GRAPHIC SCALE SCALE: 1" = 30' 	 JUNE 2015 

30
.... 	

50 	 100 	120 
FEET LAYOUT AND 

LANDSCAPE PLAN C3 METERS 
io 	 1 	 20 	 30 

f  FB 297, PG 01 	 2435 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves of and 

authorizes the Executive Director to take all such action as may be required 

or appropriate to increase the current aviation fuel flowage fee rate by $.01, 

from $.03 to $.04 per gallon on 100 low lead fuel and Jet A fuel, commencing 

July 1, 2021; all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew Pomeroy, 

Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory Compliance, dated June 8, 2021, 

attached hereto. 

N: \ RESOLVES\ 2021 \ Fuel Flowage Fee 6-17-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

de' ,  a , a 



6.‘ 	E 
AIRPORT 
	

36 Airline Aye,, poitsmouth. NH 03801 

MANAGEMENT 
	 603 433 6536 

To: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director /Q9 

From: 	Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory Compliance 

Date: 	6/8/2021 

Subj: 	Aviation Fuel Flowage Fee Increase 

On July 1, 2018, Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") implemented an 
aviation fuel flowage fee of .02 cents per gallon on Jet A and 1 OOLL fuel sales and at its June 18, 
2020 meeting the Board approved an increase to the fuel flowage fee by one cent to .03 cents per 
gallon. PSM continues to recognize a significant increase in operating expenses associated with 
maintenance and security requirements to maintain airport certification. Additionally, capital 
expenditures have also been committed to address increased aviation activity as well as 
deterioration of primary airfield asphalts. It is my recommendation the fuel flowage fee for both 
Jet A and lOOLL fuel be increased to .04 cents per gallon as of July 1, 2021, to support additional 
aeronautical revenue. 

Fuel flowage fees are prominent at most airports throughout the country with a national 
average of .09 cents per gallon. The table below is a survey of similar airports in the Northeast 
comparing fuel prices and associated fuel flowage fees. Neighboring airports average .08 cents a 
gallon for a flowage fee, and it should be noted the lowest priced fuel is sold directly by the 
airport operator and not a Fixed Base Operator. 

With a proposed .01 cent increase PSM will remain extremely competitive with 
surrounding airports. Considerable attention should be given to the fact PSM is the only airport 
in the survey that does not charge landing fees to aircraft operators. Although landing fees are 
the most significant contributor to aeronautical revenue at airports, PSM must be conscientious 
to the fact ninety percent (90%) of PSM traffic can choose to use an alternative airport. A 
minimal increase to fuel flowage fee will safeguard operators seeking better value at alternative 
airports. 

It is my recommendation that you request the Board to authorize increasing the fuel 
flowage fee .01 cents per gallon to .04 cents on both 100 low lead fuel and Jet A fuel. This fee 
will commence on July 1, 2021 and will be collected on a monthly basis directly from our Fixed 
Based Operators, and authorized self-fueling tenants. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 



Airport 100 LL Jet A Fee Fee 

PSM $5.60 $5.25 .03/gal Avgas .03/gal Jet A 

MHT $6.75 $5.95 .05/gal Jet A .025/gal Cargo 

BED $7.38 $7.80 .11/gal Avgas .16/gal Jet A 

ORH $5.33 $4.49 .05/gal Avgas .11/gal Jet A 

PVD $6.99 $6.09 10% FBO Sales 10% FBO Sales 

BVY $5.55 $5.11 .10/gal Avgas .10/gal Jet A 

BGR* $5.17 $3.77 No Fee No Fee 

PWM $5.02 $3.85 % FBO Sales % FBO Sales 

*BGR Airport runs FBO and sells the fuel 

P:1130ARDMTG\202 I \Airport - Fuel Flowage Fee Increase.docx 

2 



Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tel 603-436-8500 
Fax 603-436-2780 

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 2021 

Pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:2 III(b) Port Council Chairman Roger Groux has declared COVID-19 
an emergency condition and waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the 
meeting in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8 and Emergency 
Order #12, Sections 3 and 4. Port Council members participated remotely and identified their 
location and any person present with them at that location. All votes were by roll call. Members 
of the public were allowed to participate by using the access information provided. The moderator 
for this telephone conference was Greg Siegenthaler, from the Pease Development Authority, who 
explained the meeting protocols. The meeting was audio recorded (there was no video component 
available). 

I . CALL TO ORDER  
A roll call attendance was taken and the meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: 
Roger Groux, Chairman, Dover Point, NH with no other individuals present. 
Brad Cook, Vice-Chairman, Hampton, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Erik Anderson-arrived at 6:15 PM, Portsmouth, NH, with no other individuals 
present. 
Chris Holt-Stratham, NH, no other individuals present. 
Chris Snow-Dover Point, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Mike Donahue-Newington, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Esther Kennedy-arrived at 6:30 PM, Portsmouth, NH with no other individuals 
present. 
Jeff Gilbert-Rye, NH with no other individuals present 

2. APPROVE MINUTES  
Jeff made a motion to accept the March 10, 2021 minutes. Brad seconded, there no 
discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. Regarding the minutes, Roger 
spoke on the bridge incident and asked Chris H. would report on the meeting that resulted 
in that. A meeting was held with the Coast Guard and the Supervisor of the NH DOT 
bridge authority. The Pilots are requested to call both bridges, discussed overall response 
for bridge tenders and communication issues. The bridge operator on duty has been spoken 
to and will now be following protocol and lift the bridge as requested. NH DOT should be 
reporting to the CG any bridge failures and delays, the Pilots practice is to write up an 
incident report. There have been no incidents since. In the end, communication will 
improve and operations will get back to normal. Geno said he spoke to Lt. Bourbeau from 
the CG, he went up on the SML and had a tour and viewed the operations. The minutes 
also mentioned the 2 letters that were approved to be sent on behalf of the Council (support 
for Grant Nichols, Lighthouse) and they have been sent to your email tonight. 

Port Advisory Council 
	

April 14, 2021 	 Page 1 of 4 



3. FINANCE REPORT  
Jeff reported that operating income is ahead of budget, the depreciation offsets and 
operating income. It appears that we are operating and are self-sustaining. Geno added 
that on Monday, Paul Brean testified before Senate Finance Committee on the operating 
budget, Geno reminded the Council that the only expenses that shows up in the State budget 
are the 6 classified positions. Wage and benefit costs are reimbursed by the PDA to the 
state so there is no effect on the State general fund. 

4. VESSEL TRANSIT REPORT, the March report was presented, noted that there is quite a bit of 

asphalt coming in. 

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT  

I. Director Marconi reported on the items from the March PDA Board meeting which included: 

Report: 	Portsmouth Fish Pier, Change order # 5, Hoists, $11,000-discussion 
included switching from a chain hoist to hydraulic, cost of maintenance vs. chain hoist, 
and how many hoists will remain after construction. Original bid documents called for 
re-installing the existing hoists. Both hoists were examined and determined that it 
would cost more to fix them than to replace them. Director reported on the rest of the 
PFP construction project, the floating docks are built, jib hoists, steel pipe pile guides, 
and fuel dispensers are in the warehouse. As a reminder from the last meeting, they 
are focusing on quality but the schedule is not far off. 
Report: 	Commercial Fishing Days with DMV and Fish and Game-allows 
commercial fishermen a "one stop shop" to take care of their annual permits, licenses 
and boat registrations. 
Report: 	Several Commercial Mooring Transfers (copies in packet) allows 

commercial moorings to be transferred for commercial use in order to ensure there 
are a fair amount available to the local fishing industry. Also the USCG looks at 
commercial use when they determine dredging activities. 
Approval: 	Juliet Marine, GHOST boat, Right of Entry, Market St. Terminal 
Approval: 	Project Partnership Agreement with the Army Corp for the expansion of 
the Piscataqua River's Uppermost Turning Basin-discussion regarding dredge spoils 
and where it may go (3 locations in MA) any additional transportation costs will be 
paid by the receiver of the spoils. Discussion on the additional cost of the project 
(post dredge operating and maintenance) and how the difference will be funded 
through the state. The Division went to Public Works, it has house approval, and is 
now in the Senate. All of the local Senators were contacted and are in support of the 
project. 

2. 2021 Mooring Permit Application Analysis Report-deferred to Chris Snow 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Business and Economic Relations-  Mike reported on a webinar that he attended which 
was geared towards the Grantee responsibilities for the Foreign-Trade Zone, he explained 
the benefits of joining an FTZ and presented a handout (included in the meeting packet) 
with some basic information on the FTZ program. Roger thanked Mike for taking on the 

Port Advisory Council 
	

April 14, 2021 	 Page 2 of 4 



challenge of learning about the FTZ. Geno said the Council will be receiving a report at 
their next meeting but did talk about the existing companies that are users of FTZ 
81.Diseussion continued around how duties are paused while product is in the Zone, and 
then calculated when it leaves, when the FTZ Act was passed, to help stimulate the 
economy and save jobs. 

Dredging-  Chris H. reported that Rye is done, as reported last month. The Army Corp is 
moving forward with the Turning Basin and bids should be going out around the end of 
May. Mike asked about the Simplex Reach, Chris reported that the ACOE said it's not in 
the budget so unfortunately doesn't look like it's going to be able to happen during the 
project. 

Fisheries-Erik  A. reported regarding the Right Whale regulations, the public comment 
period has ended and they should be issuing final rulings by the end of May and take effect 
at the beginning of January 2022. Erik explained some of the changes include color coding 
and quick release on the lines. This Sunday is the annual trap clean-up day on the 
shorelines, he thanked Geno and Fish & Game for their help in making this happen. 
Offshore wind is still developing and there are still a lot of questions regarding how it will 
effect the fishing industry. Offshore wind legislative committee meets monthly. There are 
a few boats ground fishing, lobster industry setting gear and getting ready to set some gear. 

Government Relations-Esther K. reported that at the last meeting the city council voted 
to move forward with the Maritime Festival in the fall. She spoke about the North Mill 
Pond and the public gathering, concerns with the proposed 50' set back instead of the 100' 
and with pollution in the pond. Roger asked if a meeting would be warranted with NH 
Marine Patrol about boat traffic in the back channel before the season starts up. Esther said 
that might not be a bad idea. Lots of people are still looking for spots for their boats and 
expects a very busy boating season. 

Moorings-  Chris S. reported on the mooring permit analysis report (in packet), applications 
are pretty steady from year to year, add together the applicants that missed the late filing 
period or voluntarily didn't renew was only 8 this year. Most non-renewables are from 
non-waitlist and shorefront, so it doesn't appear there will be much movement in the 
mooring fields this year. 

PDA Liaison-Roger reported on the issue with Port City Air and MillionAir, as far as who 
will become the FBO and if the facility will be able to support 2 _MO's. Erik added some 
further insight from a PDA Director point of view and said it's on the board agenda for 
tomorrow. Esther said the City of Portsmouth hasn't officially weighed in but 5 councilors 
individually signed a letter and sent to the paper. Roger also added that Great Bay Marine 
has a plan to increase their mooring fields by 5 per year over the next 25 years. Also, 
mentioned that all should complete their respect and civility training by 4/23. 

Recreational piers -Brad reported that the Rye and Hampton are coming alive, floats are 
going in Rye on the 22"d and Hampton on the 23 rd . Trailer storage is completely sold out. 
Whale Watch will start late May, due to Covid. Same with Star Island. Hampton charters 
have been going on decent weather days and fishing for Cod and haddock. Launches are 
up for private vessels. Variety of activities at each facility, both have lobster, Hampton has 

Port Advisory Council 
	

April 14, 2021 	 Page 3 of 4 



oysters, several 6 pack operators, head boat operators. Recommend Council members take 
a drive to both facilities to take a look. Roger projects its going to be a big summer on the 
seacoast. Barring any Covid restrictions, let's hope that is the case and they can recoup. 
Esther sits on the board for Star Island and reported they are planning to open for 60% 
capacity and folks are signing up. 

7. NEW BUSINESS-Article was presented on the delegation visit to the PNSY. Roger said 
none of this could have happened without our State Pier and we seem to be an unrecognized 
partner. Geno reported that he did reach out to Senator Shaheen's office after the article 
came out to be sure she is aware that all of this came across our docks and she is well aware 
and supports what we are doing. 

8. OLD BUSINESS — Erik asked if there is an update about the boat that sank in Seabrook 
last month. The boat was hauled out and is being stored at our Hampton Facility. NH DES 
and the Coast Guard worked together to get the boat out. Geno reported there is also a 
different boat that was impounded and bids are being accepted, boat is in Hampton. 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT  —Peter complimented Chris H. on his diplomatic response to the 
Bridge operator's behavior. 

10. PRESS QUESTIONS  
No press in attendance. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Chris H. made a motion to adjourn, Mike seconded. The meeting adjourned at 7:42 PM. 
Director thanked Greg from PDA for this help in facilitating the meeting. 

Port Advisory Council 	 April 14, 2021 	 Page 4 of 4 



Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tel 603-436-8500 
Fax 603-436-2780 

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 2021 

Pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:2 II1(b) Port Council Chairman Roger Groux has declared COVID-19 
an emergency condition and waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the 
meeting in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8 and Emergency 
Order #12, Sections 3 and 4. Port Council members participated remotely and identified their 
location and any person present with them at that location. All votes were by roll call. Members 
of the public were allowed to participate by using the access information provided. The moderator 
for this telephone conference was Greg Siegenthaler, from the Pease Development Authority, who 
explained the meeting protocols. The meeting was audio recorded (there was no video component 
available). 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
A roll call attendance was taken and the meeting was called to order at 6:05 PM. 

PRESENT: 
Roger Groux, Chairman, Dover Point, NH with no other individuals present. 
Brad Cook, Vice-Chairman, Hampton, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Erik Anderson- Portsmouth, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Chris Snow-Dover Point, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Mike Donahue-Newington, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Jeff Gilbert-Rye, NH with no other individuals present 

2. APPROVE MINUTES  Jeff made a motion to accept the minutes as presented, Erik 
seconded. Roger pointed out that although there are no changes to the minutes he wanted 
to ask if the Council could be notified of all upcoming off shore wind committee meetings. 
Roger reminded the Council that the mandatory civility training needs to be completed. 
Esther and Jeff need to do theirs. A roll call vote was taken and the minutes were approved. 

3. FINANCE REPORT Jeff reported that the positive operating results are due reduction in 
expenses, revenues are down as well but kudos are in order for the difficult circumstances 
to Geno and the Port staff for the remarkable outcome. 

4. VESSEL TRANSIT REPORT, the April report was presented, this report is put together by the 
Pilots and required under the Administrative Rules, it is shared with quite a few other agencies. 
The report tracks the ships coming and going in the river and can also used to help track the pilot's 
activity, which is required for their reappointment. A lot of information on the report including 
cargo, tonnage, weather, etc. 

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

1. Director Marconi reported on the items from the March PDA Board meeting which included: 

Port Advisory Council 
	

May 12, 2021 	 Page 1 of 4 



Report: 	Commercial Moorings for Hire, 6 in packet. Geno explained approval 
process for commercial moorings for hire which includes approval by the PDA 

Executive Director. 
■ 	Report: 	Foreign Trade Zone #81, Annual Report was presented. Customs duties 

for incoming foreign merchandise are not payable while in the FTZ Site. Geno 
reported there were 2 active users added in the last 2 years. There are 3 users now, 
including Millipore, Textiles Coated International, and Rochester Electronics. Geno 
went over the annual report with the Council and gave a detailed report on Millipore 
operations. Jeff asked if there were other prospects. Geno caul  there have been some 
inquiries from across the state. Currently there are 2 lobster companies that have 
applied but have not activated yet. Chris S. asked about the lumber industry and i f they 
would benefit from the program, Geno said probably would qualify for duty deferral, 
which is a one-time cash savings. Also spoke about the estimated entry form. Mike 
added as an example that duties between lumber and millwork (final project) could be 
different. Geno spoke about back in the late 90's Brita (water filter company was an 
active user). Erik asked about the revenue, regulations for FTZ zones prohibit any 
incoming monies to be flagged as profit center, but can be used for furtherance of the 
program, such as educational and training, advertising, and administrative costs. We 
received the FTZ grant of authority, traditionally given to Port Authorities as they are 
a customs point of entry, in 1982. As of today there are 400 FTZ's in the U.S. 
Approval:  Richard Holt Jr. Class I Pilot, the appointment runs concurrent with his 
Federal license which is through March 4, 2026 but annual certification is required. He 
was sworn in by Associate Justice ABH Marconi last week. 

■ 	Approval:  Main Wharf Dredging Permit application-Harbor Dredge Pier 
Maintenance Fund. Due to realignment of the SML Bridge, there has been some 
shoaling on the face of the pier and it's not covered under the Functional Replacement. 
With the amount of dredging that is going on in the area it was a good idea to submit 
a dredge & fill permit application put together. The amount in the proposal is "not to 
exceed" number. Billing will be clone in stages and the amount will be determined as 
the process goes along and depends on it - there will need to be borings. Hoping to bid 
the job out in November and get a good price, it's maybe 5000 CY. 

2. Update on Facilities:  At PFP, the sheet piles are in place and have gone around the corner 
where it abuts the timber wall. The tie rods are in, whales, toe pins grouted, caissons are in, 
patching, started backfilling behind the old wall, hanging scaffolding for concrete forms for caps. 
Project is moving along pretty quickly. The sub-contractor for the fuel system will be on site soon, 
and get ready to start installing the fuel lines to get the pumps back up. All hardware elements are 
physically in the warehouse except for the light poles and CCTV video cameras, which are 
scheduled to be installed towards the end of the project. Sometime after the of August the fuel 
pumps should be up. 
Roger asked about the next phase of the Navy Yard, there is still some dredging left. 
Cianbro's dredging was put on hold as the Port has had 2 salt ships and another coming 
next week. They are bringing in a 6 story high precast entrance section for the flood basin 
at the end of the month, Geno described the process of installation and probable restrictions 
on navigation. The next phase is a 10 year project and involves turning the flood basin into 
a graving dock. The Port will be available to assist in any way it can. 
Discussion on the Functional Replacement of the Barge Dock included discussion on the 
65% design that was completed in 2019 and included an estimated increase in construction 
costs. At that point any design work was put on hold and a peer review was inititatied by 
NH DOT. The results of the peer review were recently received and reviewed by the Port 

Port Advisory Council 
	

May 12, 2021 	 Page 2 of 4 



Staff and Appledore Marine and a response was provided to NH DOT. It is difficult to 
determine any further cost savings without going into Final Design, NHDOT has not given 
Notice to Proceed into Final Design but we hope to receive that soon. Recently the Port 
has been working with NH DOT for alternate funding sources in the form of Federal Grants 
to make up the difference in costs, Regarding the BUILD grant (Main Pier) the Port is 
holding on filing DES permit applications until July 1st due to pending legislation that will 
cap the permit fee at $10,000. Between the 2 projects this will save about $140,000 that 
can be used towards construction costs rather than permit fees. Discussion regarding 
receiving credit for the mitigation expense for the prior construction project that wasn't 
completed. 

6. NEW BUSINESS- 

a) Winter boat storage initial proposed fee increase. The Port staff and based on the findings 
recommended an increase in fees to the Director. The Director reviewed and agreed. Local 
comparisons are in the packet, proposing going from $9 to $18 per foot. Proposed fees will be 
presented to the PDA Board next week, if approved, a public hearing will be held, address any 
comments then a final proposed fee structure will be presented to the PDA Board in August. 
Discussion regarding insurance requirements for boat storage, the storage right of entry, and 
fall under the PDA land use regulations. Director will report back at the next meeting with the 
exact wording on the form but believes there are indemnification and at your own risk wording. 
Discussion on history of the facilities being turned over from the Parks Dept. to Pease in 2002 
which already had the boat storage program in place and just continued as it was. Brad 
commented that the boat storage fee as it is now is the bargain of the century and even if 
doubled it will still be the best deal out there. Further discussion on where the storage revenue 
goes. Jeff made a motion to recommend the initial proposed increase in fees to the PDA Board 
of Directors, Mike seconded the motion, a roll call vote was taken and all were in favor. 

b) Airshow in September, expecting a lot of boat traffic. Article in packet. 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Business and Economic Relations- Nothing to add 

Dredging-  Geno spoke on the Turning Basin, ACOE is working with several coastal 
communities that are all asking to use the sand from the dredge. There will be about 
750,000 CY available. Any extra transport costs (over 12 miles) will be absorbed by the 
municipality that gets the material. Instead of cash mitigation, regulators are requiring eel 
grass sites in the Piscataqua River and Little Bay, should be around $225,000 our cost share 
is 25%. There is a Capital Budget request for the extra $1.5 million going before the Senate 
on Friday then to House Committee. Further discussion on material composition which is 
glacial sand. 

Fisheries-Erik  reported. From the Marine Advisory committee meeting on Monday, 
CARES Act funding of $2.1 million was distributed among NH Fisheries, part 2 of the 
CARES act will distribute more. The Fishing Industry is monitoring the wind power issue 
and was able to express concerns. There is a meeting next week with Mark Sanborn from 

Port Advisory Council 
	

May 12, 2021 	 Page 3 of 4 



the Governor's office to discuss fishing industry concerns further. Ground fisheries are 
closed until June 15th. Trap cleanup day a couple weekends ago was successful. The DPH, 
NH F& G, and local fisherman participated. A little less than 10 tons of trash was collected 
of the beaches. Discussion on Menhaden, allocation is 1.2 million pounds. NH has no 
problem reaching that amount. Final Right Whale rules are coming out at the end of May 
implementing Jan 2022. 

Moorings- Nothing to add 

PDA  — Erik reported there is a new Director replacing Peter Loughlin that will be 
representing Newington and Greenland, her first meeting will be May 20. 

8. OLD BUSINESS -None 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT-None 

10L PRESS QUESTIONS-None 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Chris S. made a motion to adjourn, Brad seconded. The meeting adjourned at 7:39 PM. 

Port Advisory Council 	 May 12, 2021 	 Page 4 of 4 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DP 

DATE: 	June 8, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #7495, from James Flanders to Quinn 
Martell. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

ph: 803-43€ -8500 X : 603-436-2780 	w w 	p F. 5 17.,  e v. or 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief HIM Tracy R. Shattuck 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	June 7, 2021 

James Flanders and Quinn Martell of Bearded Lobster and Fish, Co are requesting 
the transfer of a Mooring Permit (#7495) in the Hampton Harbor area 3 mooring field. 
Attached is documentation of Marrtell's commercial enterprise in the form of his 
Partner's lobster license. Also attached is the transfer request and bill of sale from 
Flanders. Quinn Martell has asserted that he understands that the mooring must remain 
in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #7495 be transferred to: 

Quinn Martell 
13 Main St 
Brookline, NH 03033 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA-get- 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, D 

DATE: 	June 9, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #236, from Peter Flanigan to Casey 
Methot. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

SC3-435-8500 2730 	w— Ar.peasedev.ocp 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 	-eV 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck 'P,-- -  

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	June 9, 2021 

Peter Flanigan and Casey Methot are requesting the transfer of a Mooring Permit 
(#236) in the Sagamore Creek mooring field. Attached is documentation of Methot's 
commercial enterprise in the form of his lobster license. Also attached is the transfer 
request and bill of sale from Flanigan. Casey Methot has asserted that he understands 
that the mooring must remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #236 be transferred to: 

Casey Methot 
15 Winter St 
Farmington, NH 03835 



low-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Anderson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and consents to the extension of a Right of Entry ("ROE") with 

Cianbro Corporation for the use of the facilities at the Market Street 

Terminal for the purpose of staging and loading equipment and materials 

(for the manufacture of concrete), loading structural components (i.e. steel 

sheets and beams) and the discharge of clean blasted rock all in 

accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, 

dated June 9, 2021, attached hereto. 

N \RESOLVES \ 2021 \ DPH - Cianbro ROE.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

eased; v or.  ,: ,1. 



PE SSE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

To: 	Pease Development Authority ("FDA") Board of Directors 

From: 	Geno Marconi, Director 

Date: 	June 9, 2021 

Subject: 	Cianbro Corporation, Right of Entry, Market St. Terminal 

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the "Division") received a request from Cianbro Corporation 
("Cianbro") for an extension of their Right of Entry ("ROE") to use the facilities at the Market St. 
Terminal (the "Premises") in support of their contract to construct a Super Flood Basin at the Portsmouth 
Naval Shipyard. The current ROE expires June 30, 2021. 

The Division reviewed the request and recommends approval of an amendment to the existing ROE 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 

PREMISES: 	 Specified areas of the Market St. Terminal, 555 Market St., Portsmouth, 
NH as outlined in the attached lot map. 

PURPOSE:  Use for staging and loading equipment and materials (for the 
manufacture of concrete), loading structural components (i.e. steel sheets 
and beams) and the discharge of clean blasted rock. 

TERM: 	 July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

FEE: 
	

Terminal fees per Exhibit C which 
following: 
a. Dockage 

b. Wharfage 

c. Laydown 

d. Security/TWIC 

are not limited to and include the 

$500.00 per day per barge berth, not 
to exceed $1,000 per day 
$0.85 per ton of materials discharged 
and/or loaded 
$5250.00 per acre per month prorated on 
space used 
$37/hr. when applicable 

ADDITIONAL 
REQUIREMENTS:  

INSURANCE:  

Secure all appropriate federal and state permits including but not limited 
to EPA Stormwater Discharge Permits. 
Provide PDA DPH with a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. 

Minimum insurance coverage as outlined in Exhibit A (attached), as the 
same may be required or appropriate in connection with the individual 
operations of each entity doing business on state property. Coverage 
amounts and types may change from time to time contingent upon the 
nature and scope of operations. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

ph 0 3 	3 	2 1 0 



Ryan Collet 

RO 
The Cianbro Companies 

June 8, 2021 

Capt. Geno Marconi 
Director 
New Hampshire Port Authority 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

RE: NHSP ROE 

Ref: PNSY-Superflood 
Owner's Contract No.: N40085-2008500 

Dear Captain Marconi: 

Cianbro would like to formally request an extension in the "Right of Entry" to the New 
Hampshire Port Authority for the duration of the P310 Superflood project at the Portsmouth 
Naval Shipyard. Given recent modifications to the contract we have a revised contract 
completion date of March 22, 2022. The modification is a significant confined underwater 
blasting contract which will deepen the bedrock elevation at Dry Dock 1. Cianbro would like to 
offload approximately 40,000 tons of clean blasted rock through the facility with the same 
means and methods we currently implement at the port. 

Feel free to contact me at any time to discuss this matter. As always, Cianbro is committed to 
working with the port in order to find a mutually beneficial agreement. 

Respectfully, 

CIANBRO CORPORATION 

10 t CIANBRO SQUARE IPO Box 1000, .PITTSFIELD, ME 04967 I (207) 487-3311 I (207) 679-2465 (FAX )  www.cianbro.com  
The CIANBRE.) Lugo is a register rd trademark afThe Cianbro Companies 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



INTERNATIONAL 555 Market Street, Suite 'I Portsmouth, NI-1 03801 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

EXHIBIT A 

TO: ALL CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND/OR AGENTS 

RE ;  MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE FOR 
CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS WORKING ON PROPERTY OF PEASE 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY-DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS 

All contractors, subcontractors and/or any agents thereof are required to provide proof of insurance to the 
Pease Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors (PDA-DPH) before the commencement of 
any work on PDA-DPH property. The following are the minimum requirements for insurance coverage: 

1. Commercial General Liability: Two (2) million dollars commercial general liability coverage per 
occurrence; and Two (2) million dollars per project aggregate. 

2. Automobile Liability: One (1) million dollars automobile liability coverage. 

3. Workers Compensation: Coverage equal to minimum statutory levels as required by New 
Hampshire State law. 

4. Longshore and Harbor Workers Compensation Act Insurance: To the extent applicable and to 
limits as required by Federal and State law. 

5. Environmental/Pollution Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for 
such coverage and in such amounts as determined by PDA-DPH from time to time. 

6. Additional Insureds: Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors and the State 
of New Hampshire must be named as additional insureds under all liability coverages. 

7. Certificate Holder: 

	

	Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports of Harbors 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

8. Professional Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for such coverage 
and in a minimum amount of One (1) million dollars. 

9. Notice of Cancellation: A 30 day notice of cancellation (with the exception of a 10 day notice for 
non-payment of premium) must be provided. 

10. Waiver of Subrogation: With the exception of workers compensation coverage, a statement that 
a waiver of subrogation is included with respect to applicable coverage. 

11. Primary Insurance: A provision that any liability coverage required to be carried shall be primary 
and noncontributing with respect to any insurance carried by the PDA. 

For questions, please contact the Pease Development Authority Legal Department at (603) 433-6348. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 
Updated 8/8/2019 

ph 603-436-8500 	 503-436-2780 	www,peasedev,org 



NV1c1 SNOLLION00 ONI1SIX3 

IN3W30Y1d3blivNoli3Nnd 821c1 NNW 
1.1X . 1•11401'..74 	 T■141 ■ItIll 3410■1113.1S  

'IWINIS1110,1 .1.3111.5 	 55; '51100. 1 0,1v 51.110d JO NOISED 

A111,10H1f1V IN34,1d013A5O 3SV3d 

(%S9) Noism AUVN11,41138d 

of 
• / 

, 

—.4 

-1 

Ktse 

I 

z 

z 
0 

0 
z 
0 
0 

z 

( 

crrq 

0 0:1 

SNOISIM13tl 

y0,4,534,  

"gyitui,Joapa:lidaduv3 

8 


